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Highlights
of 2009

Operating Highlights

Financial Highlights

» Available beds increased to 38,124 at year end
(2008 37425 beds)

» Revenue from continuing operations increased
by 4 7% to £931.4m (2008, £389 4m).

¢ Number of homes operated increased to 744
at the year end (2008: 735},

¢ Home EBITDAR before central costs increased
by 5.4% to £290 6m (2008 £275.7m)

o Average mature occupancy 88 4% (2008: 90.5%).
Average occupancy 877% (2008. 89 5%)

» Average weekly fee increased by 4.6% to £546
(2008 £522)

» Home EBITDAR from continuing operations before
central costs increased by 4.9% to £289.1m
(2008; £275 7m)

* Adusted EBITDA of £725m (2008 £78.1m)

* Significant progress made towards improving
overall service qualtty, with 77% judged excellent
or good, up from 71% in March 2009

38,124 744

Available beds increased 744 Care homes across
by 699 {1 9%) the UK

* Home EBITDAR margin, before central costs, 31.0%
(2008 31 0%).

 Cash inflow from operations £87.5m (2008; £71.4m),

» Adjusted eamings per share for the year of 17.65p
(2008 1960p)

o Net debt at year end reduced by £64.4m to £331m

» Announcement of dividend policy.

44,711

we have over 44,000 trained staff

33,026

Average number of residents




Statutory Financial Highlights

* Revenue increased by 5 4% to £9371m
(2008 £8894m)

* Operating loss £12 7m (2008 loss of £5.2m} after
a non-cash charge of £51.8m (2008 £50 5m)
for future minimum lease increases under IAS17
Excluding this charge, operating income was
£391m (2008 £45 3m)

* Basic loss per share for the year of 11.75p
(2008. 957p loss)

Notes

Mature occupancy excludes mmature beds, newly
developed homes or refurbished homes which have
been trading for less than 12 months

Home EBITDAR represents earnings before interest, tax,
depreciation, amortisation, kess on disposal of property,
plant and equipment and subsidiary undertakings,
impairment of freehold assets held for sale and rent

Adjusted EBITOA represents eamings before interest, tax,
depreciation, amortsation, koss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment and subsidiary underiakings,
impasrment of freehold assets and charges for future
minmum rental Increases

Adjusted eamings per share 1s defined as earnings
before charge for future minmum rental increases,
loan arrangement fees written off, loss on disposal
of property, plant and equipment and subsidiary
undertakings and impairment of freehold assets
held for sale and the taxation impact thereof,
dmvided by the weighted average number of shares

Revenue £m
2009 937

2008 ag9

2007 732

Adjusted EPS pence
2009 1765

2008 1960

2007 1904

Adjusted EBITA £m
2009 75

2008 781

2007 568

Avallable heds year end
2009 38,124

2008 37425

2007 34,304



Our Homes

At Southem Cross, it 1s our aim to provide
an environment i each of our homes where
residents can feel comfortable, safe and
valued In short, we want cur repuiation

to be synonymous with the highest levels
of affordable care avallable anywhere

That means constantly improving the
facilitres in our homes for the benefit

of residents and staff alike

In the last year alone, we made a capital
mvestment of over £24 milhon in maintenance
and improvements, a level of expendriure we

are committed to continuing in the penod ahead
Where does this money go? Into new fixtures
and fittings, such as carpets, curtamns, pamtwork
and furniture It also goes into improved lighting,
heating and insulaton, as well as replacement
kitchen and dining equipment

The focus for every pound spent 15 the direct
benefit it will bnng to residents, so0 we also
mvest in the fabnic of the homes A number

of construction projects are always underway
at any given tme These include extenstons to
our homes, perhaps providing new and larger
bedroom accommodation or improved public
areas, such as conservatories and lounges
where residents can enjoy the company of
others or find a cosy cormner to themselves

Moorpark Ptace, Kilbirmue, North Ayrshire



Southern Cross Healthcare
Continuousl¥ striving to provide
0

excellent af

care at the heart of the
communities we serve.

Our Services

We provide an
extensive range of
healthcare services,
including:

Scotland and Northern Ireland
121 {2) homes

Etderly Gare Homes 697
Active Cara Homes (47)

Nursing GCare Homes

Nursing care homes offer an addiional level of care to residential
care homes Qualified nurses provide 24 hour speciakst nursing
care for a range of cinical needs Such services may Involve
palliatve care, dementia care, post-operative ¢are or respite care,
all tallored to the needs of the indmdual

Residential Care Homes

Southern Cross offer a number of residential care homes, which
are designed specifically to cater for the needs of those who find
difficulty canng for themselves at home, but wish to retan their
independence All Scuthern Cross care homes are staffed 24
hours a day by trained carers whose goalis to mantan the
quality of Ife of those for whom they care

Specialist Care

Southern Cross offers care for people with a vanety of special
needs in both residential and nursing care homes Our am s
to provide a safe and supportive environment which s sensitive
to the ever-changing needs of these residents

Head Office Darlington

North
215 (8) homes

Central
199 (19) homes

South
162 (18) homes
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Chairman’s
Statement

Ray Miles
Non-Executive Director and Chaiman

The Group is making considerable and steady
progress towards our objectives and further
advances will be made next year, securing
our long-term leadership position within

the marketplace.

Last year, | set out three strategic challenges
which | believed the Group had to address f

we were to achieve our goal of being recogrused
as the UK's premier pravider of residential and
nursing care home services These were to
bnng stability to the Group after a penod of
turbulence, to mprove operational efficiency
and, finally, to re-establish a platform for
long-term growth

Undertying this new strategy 1s a determined
drive for improved quality in everything we do
across our operatons, particularty in the all-
important delivery of services to residents in
our care homes Throughout the year, we have
made good progress in each of these areas

Strategic Focus

A change In strategic focus was made
necessary by events in 2008, outined in my
report last year Led by our Chief Executve,
Jamie Buchan, whao joined the Group n
January 2009, the new management team
has quickly established a new direction for
the Group squarely founded on improving
operational performance, IMproving senice
qualty and, in due course, resuming our
expansion In the market for elderly care

Qur Finance Director, Richard Midmer,

has led substantal improverment n the
qualty and tmeliness of management and
accounting information across the Group to
equip management with the tools to improve
our performance

Our group-wide change programme, New
Honzons, 1s aimed al creating an organisation
which 1s universally respected and trusted

for the quality of ts care Such a Group,

we beliave, will find its senaces In increasing
demand from thase who most benefit from
those services — residents and thewr farmibes
A new smplified operating structure 1s being
introduced through which indmdual care home
managers are being grven more responsibility
for effecting mprovernents at a local level
together with more appropnate support to
achieve this Best practice improverments will
be shared across all our homes, becoming a
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central element n our drive for higher quality
service delvery Fundamental to our fong-term
success and growth is our ambition that our
homes, In every location across the couritry,
should be ynonymous with the highest tevels
of care

A detaited, home by home, review of current
practices was carmed out early in the year
The results of this, complemented by the
planned introduction of new, streamlined
systems designed to improve efficiency and
control costs, will bnng about a sharper focus
on our end product — the provision of care
for the elderly and those with special needs
Some benefits will be Immediately ewdent
and, over time, we expect the full benefits to
result In improved margins being achieved

Financlals

The full year results are n ne with
expectations Adjusted EBITDA of £72 5m
was achieved compared with £78 1m 1n 2008
and £66 8min 2007 In many respects results
have held up well desprite the credit squeeze
and recession Revenue has grown by 5 4% to
£937 1m from last years £889 4m Meanwhile
the Home EBITDAR margin before central
costs has remained at 31 0%

The Group has made good progress in
managmng its finances with net debt fafling

by £64 4m from £97 5m to £33 tm The sale of
some freehold assets, strong operating cash
flow together with a one off tax repayment
facitated this At this tirme, the Group continues
10 pursue tts policy of reducing its debt and
therefore the Board has decided not to propose
afinal dnadend for FY2009

| am also pleased to confirm that there have
been no financing or bank covenant iIssues
duning the year in November 2009 the Group
extended the repayment date for its remairuing
development loan facility, currently £6 2m,

to 30 June 2011, being the same date as the
Group's syndicated term loan and revoling
credit facilty




Industry

Demographic surveys repeatedly indicate that
demand for high-guality care in a residential
or nursing home environment will remain
strong We are committed to providing
accemmodation which offers a safe, secure
and caring environment for physically less
able people In need of a helpmg hand —
people who would otherwise be vuinerable
and isolated in their own homes

The average age of people entenng care 1s
increasing Typically, our residents are highly
dependent, often fral with a vanety of acute
needs and conditions, such as dementia We
believe the care home environment Southem
Cross provides offers the most appropriate
ievel of all-round support for those in need
towards the and of ther ives

Private sector operators such as ourselves
have a responsibility, as well as an opportunity,
to support Local Authomties in therr efforts to
seek greater value for money through further
reducing their in-house care home provision

in favour of purchasing care services from

the independent or voluntary sectors

Industry Developments

Whilst aware of the financial problems faced
by Local Authorties, we continue to consider
that fee levels paid by many of themn do not
meet the generally accepted true cost of
care today 68% of our fee income comes
from the Local Authonty sector with a further
10% from Health Authorhes We continue

to campargn actively — through the English
Community Care Association, Scottish

Care and Care Forum Wales — for Local
Authonties to meet the true cost of care

Thus is a wially important area which needs
to be addressed continuously if we are to
deliver ever greater service quality to an ever
growing number of people across the country

We welcome the publicatton of the
Government's Green paper, ‘Shaping

the Future of Care Together’, and the national
debate on elderty care promsion it has
helped engender As the country's largest

operatlor In our sector, we are contnbuting
posttively to that debate The industry should
be encouraged to invest in the development
required to sustain the quantiy and quality
of care taciities demanded in future years
Atfording the rising costs resulting from

new legislation, regulation and changes

n minimurm wage levels will continue

to be a pnonty for all cperators

People

Today, the Group employs aver 44,000 staff
workung in 744 homes across the UK |am
dehghted with the way our new management
team and staff in every part of the business
have responded to the challenges we face
They are the core of our business and therr
enthusiasm in finding ways to improve the
qualrity of everything we do will help us achieve
our goals as a business Thewr support for
our new strategic focus 1s vital to success
On behalf of the Board, may | thank all of
our colleagues for ther dedication and
contnbution to the Group as a whole

In October, we announced Kamma Foulkes'
decision 1o step down from the Company with
effect from the end of December 2009 With
many years' expenence working in the nursing
and residential care sector, Kamma has made
a significant coninbution to Southern Cross
We record our thanks for her si years' service
and wish her well for the future

Outlook

The Group 1s making considerable and
steady progress towards our objectives

and further advances will be made next year,
secunng our long-term leadership poshion
within the marketplace We are in a penod

of consofidation after several years of rapid
growth, concentrating on what we do best
and locking to organic growth through
continuing Improvements in service quality
As the country's largest residenfial and nursing
care home operator, we believe that secunng
the best reputation in the business s wital to
our success Nothing else will reflect the: sidls
and dedication of our staff in our homes up
and down the country
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This 1s the nght approach for the business
at this stage It 1s a strategy which will
ultimately altow us te grow agan through
appropnate acquisitions as the industry
continues to consolidate in the years ahead
In a competitive market, Southerm Cross must
continue to mark itself cut as the number
one provider in terms of quality of care and
accommodation This represents the best
way of meeting the increasing demand for
residential and nursing care services and
secunng long-term shareholder value

While remasning focused on our core elderly
care operations, we also intend to respond
flexibly to changing market demands and
to take advantage of the cpportunities
presented This will include offenng more
speciaksed care — for example, in dementia,
palliative and step down care Eventually, it
could also Involve greater levels of day care
prowvision, outreach care in the community
and short-term and respite care as Local
Authonties seek to encourage people to
stay in their own homes, with support,

for as long as prachicable

The significant reduction in debt has prowded
the opportunity to reconsider our dndend
paoliey Furthermore, the Board has corfidence
in the future business performance and

cash flow sustainability, and now anticipates
working towards a dvidend cover of 3x
adjusted EPS over time, with dnvidend
payments recommencing in 2010

With signficant progress already made
towards our corperate goais and a continuing
focus on service qualty and operational
performance, we believe the Group is
strategcally well placed to capture a
significant proportion of the nsing demand
for care serwces With recent difficultes now
firmly behind us, we are looking forward with
renewed confidence to the penod ahead

Ray Miles
Chairman




Overview

Community
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Care
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At the Heart of the
Local Community

It's obvious whan you think about it. Just
because people have moved into a care home
doesn’t mean to say they are no longer part of
the community At Southem Cross, we sirongly
beliewe our residents have a vibrant and valuable
contnbution to make to the life of the local
community — Just as they have always done

That's why we encourage our residents to
reman engaged with therr local community

We beliewe there 1s no better way for our
residents — mostly elderly as they are —to
demonstrate that they are still part of the
community with something to ‘give’ Whether
it be new kit for the local hoys' foothall team
or adonatton to the special baby umit at the
local hospital, we are proud of our residents’
reputation for helping deserving local causes
and bnnging people together across the
generabions Funds raised by indivdual
Romes are topped up or matched centrally
by Southem Cross

And it s a two-way process As well as reaching
outwards into local communities, we also seek
to open up our homes to local groups, such as
school children, church groups and others,

s that everybody in the community can see

that they continue to have a responsibility for
the care of elderly people in their communrty

We see our homes and residents as playingan
absolutely central role in local ife and, of course,
in the lves of local people and local families




Business Review

Questions and
Answers from
Jamie Buchan,
our new Chief
Executive
Jamie Buchan was
appointed as an
Executive Director

of the Company
on 1 jJanuary 2009.

We want Southern
Cross to be clearly
differentiated from
other care providers.
That means striving
to achieve the highest
levels of quality in
everything we do by
seeking ever better
ways to do things.

Any

Questio

1. Quality

Q. Is the quality of care for elderly
people good enaugh in this country?

A. In all honesty, the overall answer has

o be "'no, nat yet' There are axceptions,

of course, and 1t 1s good 1o see the long
overdue national debate on care for the
elderly, partly engendered by the government,
hotting up | believe care for the elderty,
including dementa sufferers, will steadily nse
up the political agenda There 1s no doubt that
the industry has come a long way in recent
years, with significant investment in traming
as well as improvements in the qualty of
accommodation Hand in hand with a better
understanding of the needs of elderly people
and their nghts as indivmduals to choice and
dignity, this has led to much higher standards
The sterectypical, impersonal, Inshitutionaised
care home 1s increasingly becoming a thing

of the past

The current focus on tmproving care for
peopie in therr own homes 1s something we
support but we mustn't forget that for very
many people residential care will continue
to represent the most appropriate choice
So, as the elderty population continues to
grow In s1ze, we need vision and leadership
not just from the care profession itself, but
from national and local politicians to make
sure we get the funding structures and
support mechanisms in place to allow the
Investment needed to bnng service quality
up to the levels we all want to see | believe
the scale of the public sector deficit needs
Innovative solutions and this will lead to
opporturities for private sector providers

2. Service

Q. You say service quality Is the tap
priority at Southem Cross. How do
you measure progress in this area?

A. if you can't look your clients in the eye and
be proud of the ievel of service you are gmng
them, then what are you doing in business?
So, yes, service quality does lie at the heart
of everything we do at Southern Cross and
we actively measure it ina number of ways
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First of all, we regularly survey our residents
and theur famikes asking for ther views

on our performance and suggestions for
improvements Simularty, we survey our staff,
seeking to gan from therr frontline expenence
and gather valuable ideas on things we could
do better or more effectively The results of
these internal surveys are closely monitored
to ensure that we are making progress on

all frorts A pnonty 15 to make sure that best
practice is shared across all our homes

Then there are our regular internal INspections
augmented by those undertaken extemally

by the four Care Quality Commussions in

the UK These are ngorous, homs by

home examinations of every aspect of the
way we carry out our bustness and we are
absolutety datermined that the resuits wall
show contnuous iImprovement In the levels

of service provided to our residents

3. Demand

Q. What is the key to Increasing demand
for the residential care you provide?

A To my mind, it 13 all about the overall resident I
expenencs, Induding care And it 15 also about
ennching people’s Ives We want Southem
Cross to ba synonymous in the public’s mind
with levels of service which unequivocally put
the well-being of the Indnadual resident centre
stage We want Southem Cross to be clearly
differentiated from other care providers That
means strving to achieve the highest levels

of quality in everything we do by seeking ever
betier ways to do thengs

We believe cur homes are a crucial element

in local community bfe In most cases, people
choose a residential care home on the basis
of s own particular reputation, not the
reputation of the parent company Qur care
home managers ensure therr indmdual hormes
play a full part n the local community and are
free to market themselves 1o local people as
the premier provider of high-quality, affordable
care n ther area




4. Responsibility

Q. How does your responsibility to
Shareholders sit with your commitment
to your residents and their families?

A. | beleve the two sit very comfortably
together Of course, we are a business and
therefore rely on sound finances if we are to
flounsh and go on providing valuable senaces
to the people who need them We am to be
the best in the business and to demonstrate
our commitment to our residents by raising
affordable residential care standards to

new levels in this country If we succeed,
then increased demand for what we offer
wili follow Trus wall allow further growth to
meet demographic trends, which indicate a
significant increase in demand for residential
care services In the years ahead In this way,
the interests of shareholders and residents
alke are very closely aligned

5. Growth

Q. Looking beyond the current period
of consolidation after years of rapid
growth, where wlll future growth come
fram? Are there areas of the country
where you want a stronger presence?

A. We are always looking at opporturuties

to grow the business, take the Southern
Cross values forward and offer them to more
and more people who need them Although
we currently have a slight northern bias,
opportunities are exarmmned on therr ments,
not on any particular geographical basis

Growth will come through a number of
avenues Some will come organically through
extending the range of servces prowded in
our existing homes and | have no doubt that
some will come from greater participation in
outreach care services But further growth
will also come through acquistion, as it has
in the past, and through a greater degree of

speciahsation wathin the overall care sector

- for example, in catenng for the specific
needs of dementia sufferers But it 1s about
more than just adding new homes — it 1s about
doing what we do better and better, at the
same ttme enhancing our overall reputation
for excellence in care provision

6. National/Local

Q. Isn’t there a contradiction hetween
being a large, natlonal, publicly listed
Group and your wish to be seen as a
local care home operator?

A. Not at all in fact, it 1s our very size that
gves us the resources and breadth of
expenence necessary to offer outstanding
personat and affordable care based in

high- quahity homes firmly rooted in their
local communities The role of Southern
Gross is to provide support to the
management teams n our homes —

chirical knowledge, access to training

and development, best practice

and so on Our strategy 1s all about delivenng
tigh-guahty services at a local level with
ndmdual homes being positively empowered
and challenged to respond to local

needs and pnomties
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Chief Executive’s
Statement

Jarmie Buchan
Chief Executive

| am privileged to be associated with a Group
whose core purpose is to provide excellent
affordable personalised care to vulnerable
members of the many communities which

we serve across the UK.

Overview

Following four years of rapid, acquisition-led
growth, our focus in 2009 has been to begin
the process of establishing a well managed
Group with a clear strategy, capable of
fulfiling its cbhgations to all stakeholders as
the country's leading prowvider of residential
and nursing care home services

Wa believe the recent acquistions were not
fully integrated, hence symptoms emerged
which hampered business performance
These symptoms included inconsistency

of quahty in our service delivery, dupkcation
in management roles and a lack of
understanding of the business fundamentals,
all of which led to an undertying decline In
operating margin Dunng the first quarter of
2009, the new management team carned
out a comprehensive, home by home and
function by function review of the business,
aimed at addressing these related issues
and re-focusing the business on becoming
the acknowledged best In its sector From
this review, we identified what needs tobe
done to fully integrate recent acquisitions,
achieve consistent service quality and get
the best possible performance out of each
of our care homes Against an encouraging
demographic background, it became clear
that a programme of business transformation
was required at Southern Cross

New Horizons

Qur diagnosis of the business has fed us

to launch a major change management
intiative, internally known as the New Honzons
programme This programme, which we
expect to complete dunng 2011, 1s amed

at changing the way we operate such that
Southern Cross can provide a care expenence
which is the most trusted and sought afterin
the UK The prnncipal areas of focus of New
Honzons are as follows

* organsational effectiveness and service
quality

+ astate segmentaton and brand development

* cost re-engineenng

* management systems

* new business streams
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New Honzons 1s about investing n our
peaple, mvesting m new and better systems
and investing in the fabnc of our existing
properties Inchanging the way we do things
our home managers will become empowered
to delver the level of care each of us would
expect for our own family members To that
end each home will be supported by regionally
hased speculsts in qualty of care, people
development, estate management and such
other discipines as are required

Inthe medum term, specific quality

targets have been established for the
business In order to reduce the number

of underperforming homes 1n the portfolic
Our homes are situated in the middle of local
commurities and are used by individuals with
varying levels of need K our performance falls
short, word soon gets out and demand falls
off, particularly so given that the star rating
systemn (applied by the regulator across most
of the Group's portfolio) 1s publicly avalable
As a conseguence, service quakty must

be — and 1s - our number one prionty and
nothing wall get in the way of our determination
to raise our quality standards to the best In
the bustness | believe that it 1s our home
managers who are best placed to deliver

the Improvemenis we seek by responding to
local needs in their own particular areas with
fresh thunking, new inihatives and personal
relationships Management has a crucial role
to play 1n ensunng that systems exst through
which best practice can be shared and
adopted throughout our entire portfolio

When we pubkshed our 2008 intenm Report,
we said that 71% of our homes were judged
by the Care Qualty Commussion in England
twhich accounts for 75% of the Group's
estate) to bein the top two categones of their
star rating system and were therefore rated
as ‘good’ or ‘excellent’ We lagged behind
the Industry as a whole which had about
80% of homes in these categones Similar
challenges exist in Scotiand, Wales and
Northern lreland This i1s not an acceptable
position and our New Honzons programme
15 targeted &t improving these results over
the penod ahead Assessments by the four
UK Care Commussions are undertaken at



intervals of between 6 months and 3 years,
50 quantfiable steps in the nght direction take
time {o have an impact on operating margin,
however, we remamn committed 1o raising

the proportion of our homes In the good or
excellent category to a minmum of 80% by
May 2011 I'm pleased to report that some
progress has already been made and that by
the year end the number of our homes judged
to be good or excellent had tmproved to 77%

SCH SCH SCH

2009 2009 201

Intenrm Fult Interim

CQC Sconng (Actualy (Actuah (Target)
Good/Excallent Ti% 77% 80%
Poor/Adequate 29% 23% 20%

NB The Group has a target of zaro homes in the CQC
Poor' category or equivalent Dunng FY 2009 the aumber
of homes in this category reduced from 24 to 13

Giving our home managerment teams the
responsibility they deserve and the flexibility
they need to succeed in therr local area will
reguire the development of commercial

and people rnanagement skills supported
by appropnate traming The New Honzons
programme commits us to malkang that vital
investment in our peopte, not just for iocal
management but for all our care staff, who
are the Group's main point of contact with
our residents By improving staff engagement,
we expect this investment to signidficantly
reduce staff tumover rates wihich are a major
causal factor in infenor servce qualty

Each of our homes 1S now actively
implementing an agreed action plan covenng
quality of service, team development and local
marketing, all of which affect the reputation of
our homes and, therefore, impact positvely
on operating margin We want Southem
Cross, a natonwide group, to be synonymous
with local, high-quality, personalised care for
valued indmduals in the community, delivered
by appropnately franed, motvated and
dedicated staff Within the media, care homes
are often referred to as ‘insttutions’ and ther
residents charactensed as somehow on the
finges of society At Southern Cross we work
hard to ensure our homes are an integral

part of the community and that is why we
encourage iIndwvidual homes to support local
community nthatives and forge inks with
other local bodies and organisations

Personat Dignity

No society can call tseff truly cavilised unless

it treats s elderty citizens with respect and
dignity Hand in hand with our desire to improve
service qualty 1s our determination to champion
the dignity of our residents at all imes That
means respecting their nght to as much
ndependenceas possible, to prvacy and o
choice. We fully support the Government's
‘Digruty in Care’ campaign We already have
over 750 registered Dignty Champions i our
homes, responsible for ensunng the highest
levels of ndvidual dignity We plan to have a
permanent Dignity Champion in every Single
home in the Group and believe we lead the
market in gvng this commitment

Dunng the year, the Group entered into

a partnership with Action on Elder Abuse,

a hughly respected chanty focused on the
dignity of eiderty people Southemn Cross has
a policy of zero tolerance to any form of abuse
and wholeheartedly supports the work of this
chanty Our partnership investment prowides
a telephone ‘hotline” service allowang anyone
with a concemn about abuse in any of our
homes to contact them on an independent
and confidental basis

Porttolio

Southem Cross operates 744 homes across
the UK Bed numbers have iIncreased from
37,425 at the end of the last financial year

to 38,124 this year end, an increase of 1 9%,
gming the Group around 10 4% of the UK
markat for independently provided residential
care (Source Lang & Buissen)

This year, totat caprtal expenditure was £46 9m
of which the major components were £19 4m
spent on In-house development projects

and £24 1m on home capex Following our
review of the estate we believe that the level of
investment will need to increase by up to £10m
per year over the next two years in support of
our New Honzons programme objectives

Our Strategy

The Company has a
clear strategy to deliver
continued growth through:

- Improving the performance
of the existing care home
portfolio through service
enhancement, brand
differentiation, investment
and portfolio management;

- Pursuing growth 1n elderly
care provision through !
organic development and
making acquisitions In
attractive market segments,

- Growing the Company’s
market share In the
provision of dementia care
and in the self-pay market. |
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Business Review

Chief Executive’s
Statement
continued

Looking ahead,

we expect growth

in our network to
come principally
from the acquisition
of homes through
agreements to lease.

Notwithstanding the current focus on
consolidating the business and improwvng
our existing service guality standards, the
business has continued to grow, fata
deliberately more measured pace Dunng
the year, eight new developments were
completed {five own developments, three
externally developed), adding 531 beds and
providing accormmodation of exceptional
qualty both in terms of design and
specification

In March 2009, we acquired the leasehold
of six existing homes from Bntannia Leased
Homes Limited, adding a further 311 beds
As stated at the time of our Intenm Results,
these properties were acquired at zero cost
to the Group, the deal being structured to
provide appropnate investment and levels
of rent cover

Looking ahead, we expect growth in

our network to come principally from the
acquisition of homes through agreements
to lease We reman operalors of residential
care homes rather than property owners
Subsequent to the year end a further five
freehold properties, with a value of £177m,
have been sold and we continue to be in
discussions with potential purchasers in
respect of the remaining freehold homes
owned by the Group

Our Brands

Southern Cross

With 600 homes and 31,941 beds, Southem
Cross 15 the pnncipal brand within the Group
Its core proposition 1s to prowide a range

of residential services to customers whose
pnmary funding comes from Local Authonties
In the year under review, the brand generated
revenue of £758 4m (2008 £718 8m), an
increase of 5 6% It attracted average weekly
fees of £522 (2008 £500)

Ashbourne Semor Living

The Ashboume brand is positioned o
prowide residential services for customers
whose pnmary funding comes from ther
own resources The self-funded sector i1s
one which the Group beligves will expand
considerably over time and therelore
represents an mportant growth opportunity
[n the year under review, the brand generated
revenue of £134 9m (2008 £1259m), an
increase of 71% It attracted average weekly
{ees of £598 {2008 £572)

Number of available beds
Number

of homes Acquued  Developed Closad Total
At 29 September 2008 735 37,425
New developments opened 8 531 531
Acquisitions 6 311 31
Closed (5 (143} {143)
At 27 September 2009 744 531 (143} 38,124
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Active Care

Active Care 1s one of the country’s largest
independent mental health and learning
disability care prowders, operating 47
homes and 930 beds During the year,

the Group conducted a strategic review

of the business which concluded that, for
the majority of homes, shareholder interest
would be best served under ts continued
operatorship In the year under review, the
brand generated revenue of £43 8m (2008
£44 7m) a decrease of 2 0% It attracted
average weekly fees of £1,097 (2008 £952)

Operating Performance

This year, occupancy once agan followed the
normal seasonal pattem Together with other
predictable factors such as the timing of pay
and fee reviews this meant that the pattem

of trading was similar to previous years

Average weekly fees outstnpped inflation,
increasing by 4 6%, home payroll costs
increased by 6 6%, while home running

costs {excluding payroll costs) fell year on year
However results were negatively impacted

by falling occupancy Average occupancy in
rmature homes fell by 2 1% to 88 4%, afthough
the market generally also fell The net effect
was that margin was unchanged at 31 0%

UK bed capacity grew by arca 1 5% in the
year and elgibiiity cntena for local authonty
placement continued to become more
demanding Nevertheless the Group accepts
that lower service quality in certain homes
led to a reduction iIn market share together
with reputational erosion in parts of the
country We believe that the intiatives

being progressed under our New Honzons
Programme wall, in time, impact positively

on occupancy and on the Group's reputation

The operating performance 1s summansed
batow

H1 H2 Tatat
2009 2009 2009
£'m £'m £'m
Revenue 460.8 4763 &7t
Home EBITDAR
before central costs 1349 155.7 2908
Margin % 29.3% 32.7% 310%
Rent - charge for
amounts currently
payable 92.4 94.9 1673
Rent cover - tmes 148 1.64 155
Adjusted EBITBA 285 440 725
Adjusted EBITDA
profile 39.9% 60.7% 100%
Average mature
occupancy % B8.8% BT 9% B8.4%
Fee Rates

In the year under review, the Group actueved
an increase In average weekly fee rates of

4 6% to £546 (2008 £522) Fees charged

to private clients were reviewed and an
overall iIncrease of 8 0% was agreed, effective
from February 2009 Over the penod, Local
Authonty fee rate increases differed from
Authonty to Authonty In England, an average
increase of 3 0% was achieved, while in
Scotland and Northern Irefand it was 3 2%
The corresponding figure for Wales was 4 8%

A growing number of Local Authories now

pay Qualty Prermiums’ and the Group has
benefitted from these due to the continued
mprovement in the standards of care achweved
across our entire portfolio The effect of these
premums 15 reflected in the percentage fee rate
ncrease achieved
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Improving staff
retention is a key
priority for the Group
and depends on our
identifying the root
cause of the high
levels of staff turnover.




Chief Executive’s
Statement
continued

We are proud to be
investing in our people.
Such investment will
improve job satisfaction
levels and reduce staff
turnover rates, leading
directly to better quality
service delivery.

People

You can't deliver the highest levels of

care without having a fantastic team of
dedicated people As | go round the busmess,
| am constantly struck, and humbled, by the
professtonahsm and enthusiasm of colleagues
averywhere Qur people — horme managers,
carers, nurses, chefs, housekeepers,
admimstrators and maintenance staff - take
the lead in fostenng fong-term relations with
our residents, their families and the local
community They are vital to our success

That 13 why we are commitied to rapidly
increasing staff engagement through

the training and personal devetopment
programmes outined below 1 am dehighted
to express my thanks to them, in addition

to the regional and head office teams

Personal Development & Training

Improving staff retention is a key pnonty for
the Group and depends on our identifying the
root cause of the high levels of staff turnover,
currently in excess of 30% per year, which the
Group expenences We believe improving and
widening the range of training opportunities
open to staff 1s cmical to success in this

area To that end, we have further developed
our range of staff traiming and development
programmes with encouraging resutts For
example, the revised Vocational Training
course has seen its successful completion
rate nse 10 93% In addion, the number

of candidates dropping out of courses has
decreased significantly The Home Manager
and Care Staff induction programme has
been comprehensively revised to reflect the
changing demands placed on staff
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Resuttant feedback demonsirates that staff
have been able to integrate info therr working
envirgnments more quickly, allowing them

to carry out therr roles more effectively and
efficiently and boosting job satisfaction levels

We are committed to attracting young

peopla Inte the heatth and social care sector
Cur new Youth Development Scheme offers
16-18 year olds an opportunity to progress
Into a rewarding career within the health

care professions The Southemn Cross
Apprenticeship scheme 1s designed 10
combine vocational traiming with the Business
& Technology Education Council (BTEC)
certificate This prowdes young people with a
range of quakfications with which to progress
Into a career within health and social care

We have recently introduced the Southem
Cross Diploma course in conjunchen with a
leading traning consortium The diplorma s
open to all staff and consists of 12 specialist
modules, validated by the Northern Council
for Further Education (NCFE) The course
provides staff with a new level of personal
devetopment and 1s an ideal way for them

1o buitd on ther current S/NVQ gualifications

We are proud to be investing in our people
Such investment wall improve job satisfaction
levels and reduce staff turnover rates, leading
directly to better quality senvice delivery

Costs

This year, houry paid staff receved effective
pay Increases of 5 5% This was driven by
both the national rmnimum wage {NMW)
and worlang tme directive (WTD) legislation
The NMW increased in October 2008 by

3 8% while the addtional four days' hohday
entitlernent under the WTD increased staff
costs by 17% The Group works with the
GMB Union to agree on pay levels and

has continued to mantauin its pay rates
above NMW for all staff groups for the

sxih consecutive year We also continue to
reward staff achteving a Nahonal Vocational
Qualffication



Dunng the year, we continued to recruit

staff from overseas The percentage of

our workforce from non-EU countnes has
nsen to 9 7%, while the number of migrant
workers from the European Economic Area
has declined compared to previous years

Our expenence over many years is that
migrant workers are extremely dedicated and
industrious with good communication skills
The impact of the changes implemented by
the Border and Immigration Authonty (BIA),
which revised the qualifying critena, were not
as detnmental as previously expected, with the
majorty of staff hours lost due to the changes
offset by the planned increase in the number
of overseas students engaged i Vocational
Traning Programmes In ight of this, we have
adjusted our strategy from one of overseas
recrurtrent to one of overseas training Upon
commencement of a National Vocational
Qualfication, staff are able to stay in the UK for
a penod of up to two years Once completed,
they can apply for team leader positions which
attract the rates of pay required to meet the
BIA qualifying cntena

Outlook

Our market 1s continuing 1o mature This,
together with the anticipated pressures on
public sector funding, will ensure that things
will remain both dynamic and challenging

The burden of regulation 1s growing and the
case for consistent national assessment and
regulation has never been more compeling
As Locat Authorties and Pnmary Care Trusts
take a more active commissioning and
monitonng role, a major overlap has emerged
between their respensibiiies and those of the
four national Regulators [n addition, the Group
continues {o expenence sgnificant vanations
in the quality of commussioring exercised by,
and fee rates pad by, Local Authonties for
simiar services - this 1s what has become
known as the ‘postcode lottery’ of elderly care
provision Furthermore, many Local Authonty
taxpayers continue to subsidise the cperation
of Local Authonty-owned faciities, which are
typically operated at cost levels far in excess
of the pnces paid for equivalent services to
independent operators

The Group will continue to take & leading role
in constructively lobbying for higher standards
of commissioning and for the simination of
cost inefficiencies in the provision of services
by both Local Authonties and PCTs We
remain keen supporters of the mportant work
undertaken by natonal care commissioners
and recognise our cbligations to lead the
industry in the proviston of standards of care
which meet the expectations of society

Despite the anticipated headwinds from
uncertainty over public expenditure we
remain confident that we can improve
operating margins across our portfolio by
dmvng through our current programme

of improvements Indeed we believe that
spending pressures will open up opportunities
for low cost, tigh service quality operators
such as Southern Cross Equally, we bebeve
the opportunity exists to capture an increased
share of the growing, high value private pay
markat where the Group I1s currentty under-
represented We continue to build on our
position as the UK market ieader, while the
scale of our operations means we are already
well placed to respond in the years ahead

to the increasing demand for care services
predicted by demographic studies

We have clear plans in place 1o take the
business forward and earty benefits are
already becoming evident as we set about
creating a Group fit for purpose There are
undoubtedily challenges ahead but  do not
beleve any Group in the sector is better
placed than ours to meet them head on
We are looking ahead with confidence and
with a sense of determination which, | hope,
comes across clearty in thes report

Jamie Buchan
Chuef Executive

Southern Cross Healthcare Group PLC Annual Report and Accounts 2008 13

Despite the anticipated
headwinds from
uncertainty over

public expenditure

we remain confident
that we can improve
operating margins.




Business Review

ersonal

14 Southern Cross Healthcare Group PLC Annual Report and Accounts 2009




Caring for
Individuals

We never forget that, for our residents,

the accommodation we provide 1s, in fact,
therr home Our aim 15 to make it, to as great
a degree as posstble, a home from home
That 1s what our concept of personalised care
15 al] about — making sure that our restdents
can carry on normal rfe as far as possible
Just as if they were shil lnang in their own
homes. That means treating everyane for who
they are - indviduals — with nghts to privacy,
dignrty and choice in all aspects of their lives

The first thing that happens when one of

our residents arrives with us is that they

are assgned a dedicated, named carer who
works with them to draw up a comprehensve
‘personalised care plan’ which is then used

to guide staff on all aspects of how the
indwvidual wishes to lead their ife in the home
The wiention 1s to help new residents settle

in as quickly as possible by tatlonng our services
at all times towards their specific preferences
The plan includes detads on personal needs
as weli as setting out each person’s likes and
chishkes in terms of such things as food and
drmk, whether meals are to be taken in the
diming room or In the resident’s own room,
how they wish to be addressed, personal
interests and hobbies, how they would hke
their room arranged and 0 on An important
aspect of our way of domg things 1s our close
haison with famtly members We also consult
with medical and other professtonal colleagues
to ensure that all aspects of a resident’s needs
are catered for

More and more of our homes have a permanent
gnity Champion whose role IS to ensure

that the nghts of everyone ving 1n one of our
homes are respected at all times  This involves
lestening to people to gan an understanding

of ther needs and wants As far as possible
we tryto mantam our residenis’ independence
by allowing them to decide abotit aspects

of ther care and respecting their nght to
pnvacy We seek at all times to provide a safe
envirenment and maintam a zero tolerance

of any form of abuse Our commitment is to
offer a personalised service to each resident

Care
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Financial
Review

Richard Midmer
Group Finance Director

Revenue increased by £47.7m to £937.1m
(2008: £889.4m), an increase of 5.4%.
The key driver of revenue growth was
the increase in average weekly fee.

Revenue Statement

The Group's operating performance is
summansed in the following table

Growth/
2009 2008  {dechne)
m £m %
Revenus 9371 8394 54
Home EBITDAR 20086 2757 54
Home EBITDAR
margin (%) 30 30 -
Adusted EBITDA 725 781 (-]
Cperating loss zn 52 -
Loss befora taxaton {19.8) {22 9} -
Average number of
avatable beds 37,684 38626 28
Cash generated from
operating actvilies 87.5 714 225
Revenue

As at the year end, the Group had increased
the number of avalable beds by 699 (1 9%)
t0 38,124 (2008 37,425) The growth was
dnven by the acquistion of six leasehold
homes {311 beds) from Bntanma Leased
Homes Limited, the acquission of a further
three leasehold homes (192 beds) and the
completion of five In-house developments
(339 beds) The opening of cur Torrwood
home, n Wells, Somerset, allowed for the
planned dosure of two homes (79 beds),
with all residents being successtully relocated
to Torrwood Also, during the year the Group
continued to review its portfolio of homes
resufting in the closure of three homes (64
beds) that the Group did not consider fit

for purpose

The average number of avallable beds
increased by 1,038 (2 8%) dunng the year
from 36,626 1n 2008 to 37,664

Revenue mcreased by £47 7m to £8371m
(2008 £889 4m), an Increase of 5 4%

The key dnver of revenue growth was the
ncrease in average weekly fee across the
Group’s entire portfolio, the average weekly
fee mcreased by 4 8% from £522 to £546
which, along wath the full year impact of
acquisihons completed in the pnor year,
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equated to £420m Acqusitions completed
In the current year contnbuted a further £5 7m
of revenue

Home Operating Costs

Home payrol costs increased £33 1m (6 6%)
from £500 6m to £533 7m, of which £.4 0m

{0 8%) was due to acquistions A further 4 1%
was attnbutable to an increase in payroli costs
dnven by a 3 8% increase in the National
Mimmum Wage, which directly involved
approxarnately 50% of staff, and an increase
of 1 7% i annual leave enttlement set by the
Working Time Directive which affected the
majority of staff Staff not directly mpacted
by the National Mimimum Wage received pay
nses below 3 8% The additional increase

of 179 s aresult of the full year mpact of
acquisttions completed in the previous year
and reduced cccupancy

Home running costs for the current year were
12 0% of revenue (2008 12 7%}

Rent

The rent charge for the year amounied to
£239 1m {2008 £2216m} Exciudng the
non-cash charge of £51 8m (2008 £50 5my)
under |AS 17, for leases with fixed or mimimum
annual increases, the rental charge for the
year was £1873m (2008 £171 1m) Included
within the cument year rent charge is £8 6m

in respect of new leases entered nto by the
Group through erther freehold disposals or
leasehold acquisiions The Group's rent cover
defined as Home EBITDAR before central
costs dwvided by rent currently payable was
155 times (2008 1 61 times)

The cash rental charge per average avallable
bed for the year was £4,973 per annum (2008
£4,672), anincrease of 6 4% Dunng the year,
the Group was subject to a number of five
yearly rent increases, whereby rental increases
are applied inthe current year covenng the
prevous five years They will remain at the
increased level for the next five years The
rental charge per available bed also reflects
the mpact of gher rents being paid under
leases recently entered into Excluding the




5.4%

Increase infevenye

impact of five yearly Increases and new leases
entered into dunng the last two years, the
cash rental charge per avallable bed ncreased
by 2 8% on the prior year

Central Costs

Total central costs for the year amounted to
£30 8m, an increase of £4 3m (16 2%) over
2008 The increase from 2008 1s principally
due to payroll costs, including staff bonuses
and share options totaling £2 5m (2008 £NI}
As a percentage of revenue, central costs
equated to 3 3% (2008 3 0%)

Segmental Results

The Group continued to have two distinct
segments within 1ts operations, namely
Elderly Care {which incorporates the
Southern Cross Healthcare and Ashbourne
Senior Living brands) and Spectalist (being
the Active Care Partnership busmness)

Eiderly Care

Average avallable beds within the Elderly Care
portiolio increased by 1,147 to 36,734 {2008
35,587) and included 151 beds reclassified
from the Active Care Partnership business

to Elderly Care The total number of avallable
beds withun the Elderty Care portfolio at the
year end was 37,195 (2008 36,345}

Fee revenue in the Eldery Care segment
increased by £48 6m (5 8%} to £893 3m for
the year The key driver of revenue growth
was the Increase In average weekly fee across
the Elderly Care segment, the average weekly
fee ncreased by 4 5% from £510 to £5633
equating to £38 1m Acquisitions completed n
the current year contributed £5 7m of revenue,
whilst the 151 beds transferred from the Active
Care Partnerships portfolio added a further

£4 8m of revenue

Total Home EBITDAR before central costs
mcreased by £14 5m (5 5%) to £279 3m, the
impact of acquestions in the year being £1 5m
Excluding the impact of acquistaons in the
current year, total Home EBITDAR increased
by £130m, a 4 9% increase Home EBITDAR
margn before central costs for Bderly Care
remaned at 31 3% The comparable margin
for acquisitions in the year was lower at 26 3%

£72.5m

Adjusted EBITDA

Specialist Care

The Specialist segment recorded a decrease
In average avallable beds, from 1,039 in 2008
1o 930, due to the 151 beds transferred to the
Elderly Care segment

Dunng the year, revenues In the Specialist
segment decreased by £0 9m 2 0%) to

£43 8m (2008 £447m) This represented the
net iImpact of beds transferred to the Eldery
Care segment (£6 7m) and an Increase n
the average weekly fee of 15 2% {0 £1,097,
ncreasing ncome by £5 8m

Due to fee rate increases and lower home
running casts, on a per resident basis, Home
EBITDAR before central costs for the year
increased from £10 9m to £11 3m and Home
EBITDAR margin increased from 24 4% to
25 8%

EBITDA

Earmings before interest, tax, depreciation and
amorhisabon, loss on disposal of property, plant
and equipment and subsidiary undertakings
and impawment of freehold assets held for sale
(‘EBITDA) for the Group decreased by £6 9m
{25 0%} to £207m Excluding the impact of
future minimum rental Increases under 1AS 17,
adjusted EBITDA decreased by £5 6m {7 2%)
o £72 5m

Depreciation

Depreciation has increased from £176man
2008 to £21 6m in the current year, reflecting
the increased number of homes operated by
the Group and higher spend incurred durnng
the prior year

Disposal of Freehold Assets

Duning the year, the Group disposed of
freehold assets for net cash consideration
totaltng £16 7m The related assets had a

net book value of £16 Sm, resulting in a profit
on digpesal of £0 2m Professional costs in
respect of freehold asset disposals completed
in the previous year, and other provisions,
were £3 3m

During the year,

the Group disposed

of freehold assets for
net cash consideration
totalling £16.7m.
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Financial
Review
continued

The net financing costs
for the year amounted
to £7.1m (2008: £177m),
representing a decrease
of £10.6m.

On 3 September 2008, the Group completed
the transfer of the bustness and certain assets
of the Sunchoice dwision for consideration of
£3 7m, realising a loss on disposal of £1 0m

As previously disclosed, the Directors
reviewed the carmying value of the Group's
freehold properties Following this review,
a number of properties were found to have
farr values lower than therr carrying value
As aresult, the carrying value of the related
freeholds has been written down by £77m

Finance income and Costs

The net financing costs for the year amounted
to £71m (2008 £177m), representing a
decrease of £106m Excluding the impact

of loan arrangement fees and associated
costs incurred by the Group and wntten off in
the prevous year as a resuflt of renegotiating
its banking facilibes, net financing costs
decreased £3 7m

Included within net financing costs are nterest
charges ¢f £6 Om (2008 £10 0mj)in relation

to nterest payable on bank bormrowings and
amortisation of loan arrangement fees of 20 7m
{2008 £0 1m) The lower charge N respect of
interest payable on bank borrowings was due
o average levels of debt held by the Group
being 33% lower than in 2008 and lower rates
of Interest being charged Loan arrangemenit
fee amortisation increased as a resuit of the
costs assocated with the Group's refinancing
Interest recenabie dunng the year rose to

£0 8m {2008 £04m) pnncipally as a result of
Interest receved on the tax repayment received
in the year

Taxaton

As previously reported, dunng the year

the Group took the decsion to prepare

its subsidiary financial statements under
IFRS in line wath the Group acocounts Asa
consequence of this decrsion, the non-cash
charges, under tAS 17, for future mimimum
rental Increases that were previously
recogrised upon consoldation are now
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charged into the Indidual subsidiary financial
statements On this basis, tax computations for
financial years 2008 and 2007, incorparating
the future mnmum rertal charges, were
resubrmitted to HM Revenue & Customs
(HMRC)

The preparation of the subsidary financial
statements under IFRS has resulted in

£157 7m of addimonal tax deductions at entity
level This transition, along with normal prior
year adjustmenis, have resulted in a current
tax, prior year adjustment, of £24 3m (credi)
and a repayment of taxes totaling £17 6m

n respect of 2007 and 2008 The prior year
current tax credit of £24 3m includes the
realisation of tax losses totaling £21 4m

and other prior penod adjustments of £2 8m

Dunng the year the Group has been subject to
a pnor penod, deferred tax, charge of £30 5m
Included within this charge 1s £21 4m (being
equal in value to the current tax pnor penod
credit) in respect of the realisation of taxable
losses, a £97m deferred tax wnte off due fo
£34 6rn of taxable losses where the future
economic benefit cannot be measured readily
and a £0 6m credrt of other pnor penod items

The current year deferred tax credit of £3 Sm
represents the recognition of current year
losses wathun the Group

The overall tax charge on earnings before
taxation of £2 3m (2008 £4 9m cred)
represents a headime rate of 11 6% (negatve)
(2008 214% Both the current and deferred
tax charges are significantly impacted by pnor
penod items, relating pnmanly to the Group's
decrsion to prepare its subsidiary financial
staternents under IFRS  Furthermore, the
currerit year tax charge was also impacted

by the loss on disposal of property, plant and
equiprnent (£4 1m), impairment charges (£7 7m}
and deterred tax charges on share options
{£0 4m} The reconcifiaton below shows the
effectrve rate of tax after consideration of
these tems




31.0%

Home EBITDAR Margin
Taxaton
(charge)
cradit
£ e
Loss before taxaton 198 23
Future merumum rental
increases 518 {14 5}
Impawment 77 -
Loss on disposal of praperty
plant and equipment and
substdiary undertakings 41 04
Daferrad tax on sharg options - ©3
Impact of pnor pencd items 62
438 (113

After consideration of the above items, the
current tax charge of £11 3m represents an
effective tax rate of 25 8% (2008 25 8%}
before charges for future miimum rental
Increases, losses on disposal, iImpairment
charges and deferred tax on share options

The Group expects the effective future tax
rate to remain at or shghtly below the standard
rate of corporation tax in future penods

Dividends

Total dvidends paid dunng the year amounted
to ENIl (2008 £16 5m) and the Directors have
decided not to recommend a final dwidend for
the year ended 27 September 2009

Loss per Share

The loss per share for the year was 1175p
{2008 9 57p loss) Adusted eamings per
share for the year before future minimum rental
increase charges, loan arrangement fees
wiitten off and the taxation impact thereof,
was 8 08p (2008 12 10p), a decrease of 33%
Excluding the impact of losses recognised

in respect of freehold properties, impairment
charges and the wte off of deferred tax
assets assocated with the conversion of
subsidianes to IFRS, adjusted eamings per
share was 1765p {2008 1960p)

17.65p

Adjusted earmangs per share

Balance Sheet

Non-current Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment decreased from
£121 3m to £111 4m due to the net mpact of
addihons to property, plant and equipment of
£46 9m {including £19 4m Iin respect of assets
under construction), offset by depreciation
charges of £21 6m, £34 6m In respect of

the four developments under construction
and exght further freehold properties being
transferred to assets held for sale, and cther
assets disposed of £0 6m

Goodwill

Goodwill ncreased by £0 7m due to the
professional costs and associated fees in
respect of acquisitions completed in the
prevous financial year

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax assets have decreased by £26 5m
from £41 2mto £14 7m The movement 1s

due to the realisation of deferred tax losses

of £21 4m, a £9 7m wnite off relating to taxable
losses where the future economic benefit
cannot be measured readity (both directly as

a result of the Group's decision 1o prepare its
subsidiary financial statements under IFRS)
and credits of £4 Bm

Property Assets Held for Sale

At the start of the current year, the Group
held 11 freehold property assets for resale
with a value totalling £36 1m In respect of
these 11 freeholds, 2 were disposed of with
a value of £11 3m dunng the first half of the
year, with a further disposal totaling £5 2m
dwvested dunng the second half

Dunng the year, the Group's remaining four
n-house developmerits were completed and
transferred into property assets held for resale
at a value of £30 2m A further eight homes
were transferred from freehold property at
avalue of £4 4m Followmng a review by the
Owectors of the value of all freehold assets
held for sale, an impaiment charge of £77m
was made

During the year, the
Group’s remaining four
in-house developments
were completed

and transferred into
property assets held
for resale at a value

of £30.2m.
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Financial
Review
continued

During the year,

the Group’s net debt
reduced by £64.4m
to £33.1m.

The property assets held for sale at the year
end relate to 20 freehold properties amounting
to £486 5m The Group 1s actively seeking
landlords for all the freehold properties held
for resale

Subsequent to the year end, the Group has
sold five property assets held for sale

The sale of Taunton Care Centre completed on
10 Novemnber 2009 for a cash constderation

of £4 Bm, which 1s equal to the asset’s
carrying value

On 13 November 2009, the Group disposed of
Southern Cross (Paistey) Propco bimited and
its freehold interest for a cash constderation of
£4 6m, realising a profit on disposal of £0 1m

On 13 Novemnber 2009, the Group completed
the sale of Portishead Fundco Limited,
Portishead Newco Limited and freehold nterest
for £7 4m, which was equal to its book value

On 13 November 2009, the Group exchanged
contracts on Wookey Hole and Cathedral
View The sale of these homes completed

on 20 and 23 November 2009 respectively,
for cash consideration of £0 8m, whichis
equal io the book value of the assets

Cash Flow

2009 2008

£'m e'm
Cash fiows rom operabons 87.5 714
Net mterest and laxathon 33 218
Invesimng] activibes {25.6) 847
Financing actmbes 356 (270
Net ncrease/decrease) in cash 298 nz27n

Cash inflow from operations was £87 5m
(008 £714m), representing a cash
conversicn ratio compared to Adjusted
EBITDA of 120 7% (2008 91 4%}
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Finance charges paid dunng the year
amounted to £13 1m (2008 £11 5m) and
included £4 7m relating to loan arrangement
fees and costs in respect of the renegetiation
of the Group’s banking facilmes The remaming
payments relate to standard charges incurred
in accordance with the Group's banking
faclihes Taxreceipts dunng the year totalled
£15 6m {2008 £10 6m payment) and were
principally due to a tax repayment of £17 6m
receved from HMRC in February 2009

Net cash outfow from investing activities
amounted to £25 6m (2008 £64 7m inflow}
Included within net cash outflow from
Investing actmties are costs associated with
the purchase of subsidiary undertakings from
the prior year of £0 7m, purchase of property,
plant and equpment totaling £45 3m and
receipts from the sale of property, plant,
equiprnent and other assets of £20 4m

Purchase of property, plant and equipment
totalled £45 3m and included £18 1m

of development expenditure, £217m of
maintenance capex on the Group's mature
homes, £2 4m marnienance capex in respect
of iImmature homes, and other capiat
expenditure of £3 1m

The net cash used in financing actvities for the
year amounted to £35 6m (2008 £1270m) ard
inclucied net repayment of bank bormewings
totaling £34 8m

Net Debt and Financing

Dunngy the year, the Group's net debit reduced
by £64 4mte £33 1m, down from £97 5m, with
bank borrowings reducing by a net £34 4m

As at the year end, the Group had committed
bank faciites of £113 9m, aganst whuch it had
loans drawn of £64 9m and guarantees issued
of £11 5m, leavng £37 5m of undrawn faciies



£87.5m

Cash inflow [rom aperations

Included wathun net repayments of bank
borrowings is £20m n respect of term loans,
compnsing a scheduled £5m repayment on
30 March 2009, an acceleration of £10m in
refation to the 31 Juty 2009 and 31 January
2010 repayments made on 8 May 2009 and

a voluntary repayment of £5m, also made

on 8 May 2009 On the same date, £10m of
avallability under the term loan was transferred
to the revoiving credt facility n order 1o provide
more flexibidity and reduce borrowing costs
Following the above, the Group's syndicated
term loan was reduced from £70m to £40m
as at the year end Since the year end, the
Group has reduced the borrowings under

this facity to £33 5m using the proceeds from
three disposals totaling £5 4m and making

a voluntary repayment of £11m

Repayments made from disposals of freehold
properties and scheduled loan amorbsations
under the Group's acquisition faciity amounted
1o £17 5m, leaving an outstanding balance

of £19m at the year end The Group has
voluntarnly repaid this balance subsequent to
the year end

Durng the year borrowings under the Group's
development facility grew by £11 2mto £19 8m
{2008 £8 6m} The £11 2m of addmonal
borrowings were net of a £6 2m repaymant
followang the divestment of one of the Group's
in house freehold developments Since the year
end the Group has reduced the borrowings
under this facility 1o £6 2m following the
disposal of two of the developments for £12 1m
and a voluntary repayment of £1 5m

On 25 Novernber 2009, the Group agreed an
extenston to its development facility Under the
agreement, the development facility becormes
repayable on 30 June 2011, being the same
date as the Group’s two remairung faciliies
{the syndicated term loan and revoing credit
facility} The extension allows the Group
increased flexibility in raspect of its two
remaining development property freeholds

£64.4m

Reduction in net debt

At the year end the Group had no borrowings
outstanding under its revolng credil facifity
tut had utilised £11 5m of the £460m
avallable to it under this facility o 1ssue
guarantees relating to landlord rent deposits

A further review of the Group's warking capital
requirements will be undertaken in January,
followng whuch a further voluntary repayment
of the Group's Term A loan will be considerad

As part of the Group's debt refinancing at the
heginning of the year the Group antered into
agreements to kmit its exposure to interest
rate movements At the year end the Group
had £21 Om of interest rate caps outstanding
at 4 62%, and £21 Om of interest rate collars
outstanding wath cap rates of 4 50% and floors
of 2 57% The notional amount hedged under
these agreements reduces over ther term and
both expire on 30 June 2011

International Financial Reporting
Standards (‘IFRSs”)

As a listed company, the financial statements
continue to be prepared in accordance with
applicable IFRSs There have not been any
changes to IFRSs which have had a significant
effect upon the financial statements for the 52
week penod ended 27 September 2009

Richard Midmer
Group Finance Director

Cash inflow from
operations was

£875m (2008: £71.4m),
representing a cash
conversion ratio
compared to Adjusted
EBITDA of 120.7%
(2008: 91.4%).
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Business Review

Holistic
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(are

Just because somebody has moved into
residential care doesn't mean they have to
gve up their interests and hobbies Far from
it! Enabling our residents to be as physically
and mentally active as they wanttobe s a
cornerstone of our holistic approach to care
Mesting residents’ social needs 1s just one
part of our approach In each of our homes

a wide range of activities 1s availabie which
are tattored to indnadual restdents and their
abilities Most of our care homes have access
to special min-buses which are used for
outings to places of interest, including beauty
spots, local shops, the theatre and even,

on occasion, foothall matches

Outdoor actvities include bemng involved

in mairtaimng and mproving the gardens,
though many just take time out to enjoy

the fresh air, shrubs and flowers — weather
permithing! Indoors, popular activities include
carpet bowls, armncharr yoga, painting and
flower aranging

We tryto make our homes as much a home-
from-home as possible That’s why family and
fnends are welcome to drop in at any time to
visit residents, often taking them out or joimng
10 on some activity or other or simply catching
up on allthe news over a cup of tea_ In other
words, doing exactly what they would if

ther relative or friend was still iving in thetr
own homg
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Business Review

Corporate Social
Responsibility

The Group's CSR objective 1s to deliver
sustainable iImprovements in our activities

In a way that economically aligns, as far as

15 posstble, our core business needs with
the wider interests and concems of our
stakeholders The Group seeks to contribute
to economic actvity while improving the lves
of our residents, therr families, our staff and
the wider local community

Dunng the year, there was a focus ona
senes of niatives which made a significant
contribution to the Group's CSR agenda,
as the following report detalls

The progress the Group has made has
been recognised with our inclusion in the
FTSEAGood Index

Dunng the next vear, we intend to build
on the framework already created while
placing additional emphasis on reducing
our environmental Impact

Organisation

A Community Links Commuttee, which has
been charred by Kamma Foulkes, Chief
Operating Officer, 1s responsible for developing
and leading the CSR Strategy

This Committee includes cross-functional
representatives from wathin the business who
seek to embed the CSR strategies into the
day-to-day running of Southem Cross homes
and offices This 1s an approach that is fully
endorsed by the Board

In 2009, an Emvironmental Policy Group, a
sub-group of Cormnmunity Links was set up to
further build on the progress already made on
our environmental practices and procedures

Marketplace

Care Standards and Quality of Care
Southern Cross 1s committed to prowding

a hugh standard of care for our residents
Recogrised measures of qualty are the
ratings that the extemal inspection agencies
in England, Wales, Scotland and Northem
Ireland award our homes

Southern Cross takes its responsibility to the
residents in its care very seriously. We have
a zero tolerance to any form of abuse.

In 2009 the Group's focus has been to reduce
the number of our homes classified as 'red’

2007/ 2008/

inspaction rating 2008 2009~
Excedent (blue) 11 3% 14 6%
Good (green) 58 0% 62 2%
Adequate {amber) 26 7% 21 0%
Poor (red) 4 0% 22%

* 2007/2008 figures based on 584 homes in England
~ 2008/2000 figures based on 588 homes in England

The figures above, for both years, are based

on the external Inspection scores of our homes
in England, which represent 79% of our total
estate Homes in Scotland, Wales and Northem
treland are graded on a different basis by their
respective Inspecton agencies and therefore
direct companson i1s not possible However,
based on our internal Inspections, we would
expect our homes In the remamder of the UK
to achieve scores similar to our English homes

The Group is aware that homes can expenence
problems from tme to tme  To counter this, all
homes are inspected regularly to ensure that
they are delivenng the best posaible outcome
for our residents The Giroup's success In
reducing the number of red homes 1s dus, in
part, to the nfroduction of a new, more robust
internal Inspection regime which has now been
rolled out to all homes These new Inspechon
arrangements, which are applied bi-monthly,
gve a more accurate and complete picture of
the services that the home 1s delvenng and
allow the Group to take any required actions

in bath a tmely and efficient manner The focus
dunng the year ahead s to further reduce the
number of both red and amber homes

The Board will continue to review the status
of nspechen quality scores at each of its
meetngs
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The Group also continues to progress with
the ISO 9001 accredrtation of the homes with
a further 25 homes achieving this status by
31 December 2009

Target Targst
31/12/08 3111208 311210

Number of homes with
150 9001 accredtation 197 222 247

Customers

Obtaining feedback from residents, families
and professionals associated with the Group's
homes 1s very mportant to us

Each of the homes has in place measures
to gather and act upon this feedback This
includes resident and family meetings, open
days and surveys

In addition, the Group has a ‘stand alone’
customer satisfaction unit which sits outside
the operational siructure and conducts
satisfaction surveys amongst residents and
ther famiies Durnng 200872009, the urit
surveyed 162 homes

Actual %  Target % Actual%  Terget %
bt

safisfaction faction faction ton

2007/ 2008/ 2008/ 2009/

2008+ 2009 2008 2010

Residents a7% 0% 83% 0%
Relatves 0% 91% 86% BO%

+ Based on a survey of 48 homes with 837 residents and
413 retatives conducted between 10/05/08 and 28/03/08
Based on asurvey of 141 homes with 1 778 ressdents and
1105 refatrves concductad between 29/0a/408 and 27,0909

We also seek the views of professionals about
our interaction with them and therr views of
our homes By its nature the sample size 1s
small and therefore not considered stahistically
reliable for reporting purposes We do, of
course, act on any feedback receved

The Group has a thorough complants
procedure through which we actively monitor
the nature of any complamnt, and the time it
takes to resolve it




Complaints, as a percentage of total beds,
have ncreased shghtly from 3% the previous
year to 3 5% this year We beleve that this

15 due, In part, to the increased transparency
N our complaints process and the promotion
of both our Dignity and Abuse Prevention
strategies We will continue to monitor both
the number and nature of complants closely
This year, both the Customer Satisfaction
process and the Complants procedure have
been ntarnally audited to ensure they continue
to operate under best practice principles

Southern Cross takes its responsibiity to the
residents in its care very sencusly We have a
zero tolerance to any form of abuse In 2009
the Group launched a ground breaking intiative
with Action on Elder Abuse (Registered Charity
Number 1048397} to establish a confidental
whistie blowing helpiine This helpline is
manned by the chanty and 1s avallable to
anyone associated with a Southern Cross
home who suspects any form of abuse or
nappropnateness n the delivery of a service
Calls to this helpline are assessed by the charity
and, if necessary, appropnate acton s taken
by themn to resolve the situation

'n the provision of care Southem Cross 1s
also determined to preserve the dignity of the
restdents Invng in our homes We fully support
the govemment's 'Dignity In Care Campaign'’
and have appointed our own 'Digrity | ead’
within the orgarisabon The Group now has
753 registered ‘Dignity Champions’ whose
role 1s to ensure that the nghts of indwiduals
n our homes are respected at all times. It 1s
the Group’s intention to embed the pnnciples
of dignity and respect into the cutture of the
organsation and our Champions will help us
achieve this

Workplace

People are the Group’s most valuable asset
They are central to the quality of service
prowided so ther performance is crtical to
the tuture of Southem Cross

This year the Group has made considerable
progress in oitaning feedback and engaging
wath staff to build a better understanding of the

expertise, tools and processes that they need

to do their job The challenge now 1s to unlock
the patential of our people so that they can
consistently provide the quality of serice that the
Group's residents and ther familes wish This, in
turn, will bnng greater success to the Group

Stasf Engagement

Dunng the year the Group instigated a number
of measures to improve staff feedback and
angagement

Formal focus groups and interviews took
place at all levels of the orgarvsation with the
cbjectve of gaining a better understanding of
the relationship the staff have with Southem
Cross Particular emphasis Is being placed
on the role of the Home Manager, which is
pivotal to the Group's future success All
Home Managers were asked 10 take part n
a survey, managed by an external agency, to
dentify areas where there were opporturuties
1o make changes that would have a sigrificant,
postive impact on the care provided

The information gained through this two-way
communication process will be used to inform
our HR strategy in the ysar ahead

Key Staff Infermation

2006/ 2002/ 2008/
Measure 2007 2008 2009
$taff numbers 41 344 42845 44711
% of workforce female 83 8% 83 §% 82 5%
% of seruor management
female 66 0% 68 0% 67 0%
% of worktorce from
non EU countries 82% 85% 97%
Averaga age of amployees 38 40 40
Staff Recognition and Reward
It 1s important that staff feel recogmsed and
rewarded for the work that they do

The Southern Cross Care Awards are held
every two years, where excellence across
the country 1s celebrated These awards are
about recognising the work that people do,
day in, day out, in the Group’s homes
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People are the Group’s
most valuable asset.
They are central to

the quality of service
provided so their
performance is

critical to the future

of Southern Cross.




Business Review

Comorate Social
Responsibility
continued

By their very nature,
the Group’s homes
are an integral part of
the communities they
serve. They bring, and
keep, people of all
generations together
and are a focus for
activity within their
local community.

External awards are also an smportant source
of recognition for our staff The Group 1s proud
of the fact that our staff are often honoured in
the local, regional ang national Care Awards

We ensure our staff are appropnately
remunerated for the work that they do

Wa benchrmark our salanes against our key
competitors and the local market We estmate
that 25% of our staff are members of a trade
union or similar type of organisation The
Recogrution Agreement between Southern
Cross and the GMB Union remains in place
and both parties continue their commitment to
working in partnership We continue to consult
with employee representatives on major Issuas
and developments within the organisation
affecting remuneration, benefits and traning

Staff Training
Managers
Carers with
with Registered
NVQ  Manager
iovel 2 Award
2006/2007 55% 52%
200772008 74% 82%
Target
20082009 75% 70%
Actual
20082009 73% 9%
Target
200972010 75% 93%

Dunng the year we continued our emphasis
on developing our skilled canng staff (see
above table) Qurin-house traming staff
delivered courses 1n core subjects covering
everything from infechon control to custorner
care More specialist trarung such as the
Alzheimer's Society’s “Yesterday, Today,
Tomomow' training was defivered in our homes
specialising in dementa care

Dunng 2008/2009, 369 staff went through the
Group's Apprenticeship Scheme This year a
further 80 staft wall take part in the scheme
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Staff training will continue to be a strategic
focus in the year ahead with the launch of the
Southern Cross in-house Diploma programme
which has been accredited by external training
consuttants and 1s supported by NVQ UK

Southern Cross 1s committed to supporting
and developing our staff and encouraging
people to use company resources such as the
'Diploma’ to further develop their career with
Southern Cross The Group re-confirmed its
membership of the ‘Skills Pledge’ — making
public its commitment to supporting staff in
developing basic Iiteracy and numeracy skills

Health and Safety

The Group's am 13 to prowvide an injury-free

worleng environment for our staff, residents

and their guests This year the Group's Health

and Safety function was reviewed The Board

continues to lead and 1s committed to the ‘
Health and Safety agenda !

The Chief Executive has overall responsibility
for Health and Safety and has apponted a "Link
Board Dreclor’ to lead policy development and
ensure that it remains on the agenda at each
Board meeting

The Exscutve Committee, which includes
amongst others the Regional Directors and the
Human Resources Director, has responsibity
for ensunng policy is implemented and
measures performance through the integrated
Risk Management arangements and Key
Performance Indicators

The Group Health and Safety Committee
meeis at least quarterly The minutes are
cascaded down through the operational
structure to each home These minutes

form part of each home's Health and

Safety Group agenda Any Issues ansing

for the attenton of the Group Healkth and
Satety Committee are passed back up the
operationa structure This enables a full circle
of clear commurication withun the Group




Further communication channels include
‘The Weekly Brefing’ which includes Hazard
Alerts, gudance on areas of best practice
and changes fo policy Hazard Alerts are also
emalled directly to the homes A quartedy
newsletler summanses recent iniatives to
ensure staff are well nformed

Thrs year, 670 Home Managers completed

the Level 3, Health and Safety Training
programme This programme 15 based upon the
Southern Cross Heatth and Safety policies and
procedures and is validated by the Chartered
Instriute of Emaronmental Health Al members of
the Executve Committee have attended training
in Health and Safety as part of the requirements
of the Institute of Dwrectors Programme

Southern Cross values the well-being of its
staff Analysis shows that approximately exght
days per employee were lost due to absence
this year Qur focus next year will be to identify
ways In which we can support our staff to
reduce this figure

Community

By therr very nature, the Group’s homes are

an mntegral part of the communities they serve
They bnng, and keep, pecple of all generations
together and are a focus for actty within thetr
local community

Thisimportant role has gained external
recognition For example, this year Crossgate
Care Centre in Kimamock won an award as
part of the ‘Determined to Succeed’ imbative
N East Ayrshre The home was nominated

by the local pnmary school In recognition of
the contnbution it made in helping the school
create an eco garden Similarty, Arden Court in
Manchester has been involved in an innovative
jont project with Age Concern Iin Salford and
New Park High School, a school for children
with special needs, to support the school's
developrment programme  These types of
inthiatives demonstrate the extended role the
Group’s homes have in ther communities

The Group has a number of programmes in
place to help the homes cement this position
The kit sponsorship programme helps homes
to support local youth teams, providing kit for
a vanety of sports In exchange, the teams are
encouraged to work closely with the home
The children make regular visits and spend
time n the Group’s homes This has enormous
benedits In terms of greater understanding and
learming between the generations In those
communittes

The Group also has a fund matching
programme whereby the homes are
encouraged to raise funds for the benefit
of therr restdents, which the Gompany wall
then match

No of teams/homas supported

2007/ 2008/ 2008/
2008 2009 2009
Programme Actual Target Actual
Kit sponsorshy 21 84 78
Fund Matching 103 300 280

* Thesae figuras reprasant a five-month penod from 1/5/08
1o 28/09/08

Our homes also raise money for local chanties
and as a Group we match funds raised for key
chanties The total spent by Southemn Cross
on kit sponsorship and matching funds in this
area was £132,000

The Group continued to support a scheme to
prowide coaching for disadvantaged children
in the UK In March of this year, the Group also
supported a team of ten who took part in the
Alzheimer’s Society China Trek Through a
combination of Southern Cross sponsorship
and efforts by the teamn, a total of £27,135

was raised
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A priority for the Group
will be to put in place
a full Carbon Reduction
Plan, seeking external
support and validation
where necessary. This
plan will be important
in helping us meet

our obligations under
the Carbon Reduction
Scheme which is due
to come into force in
April 2010.




Business Review

Corporate Social
Responsibility
continued

Reducing the Group’s
energy consumption,
while maintaining a
consistent service for
our residents, continues
to be a major focus

for environmental
Initiatives.

We are committed strongly to our partnership
with Action on Elder Abusse, the pnnciple chanty
we supported in 2008/2009 Ths year, through
vanous local and national events, staff raised
£24,300 This amount was matched by the
Group so that a total of £48,600 was presented

to the chanty

Environment

Dunng 2009, the Group continued to make
progress with environmental intiatives As
reported previously, measures have been
put in place to accurately reflect the Group’s
impact on the environment

The Environmenital Policy Group, reporting to
the man Community Links Comimuittes, will
develop new inatives dunng 2009/2010

A pnority for the Group will be to put in ptace
a full Carbon Reduction Plan, seeking external
support and vakdaticn where necessary

Thus plan will be important in helping us meet
our obligatons under the Carbon Reduction
Scheme which 1s due to come into force In
Apnl 2010

2008/2009 as a direct result of installing
these boiler controls (based on the difference
in energy usage between 2007/2008 and
2008/2009 n a sample of 70 homes)

We expect that the roll-out of the botler
management controls to all of our homes
wil be complete by January 2010

Bunng the year, the Group continued to

install motion detector fans in our homes,

with the twin cbjectives of reducing energy
consumption while improving safety A total

of 4,281 fans were installed in 285 homes
These fans are expected to reduce our
electnical energy usage by approximately 10%
a year oncerolled out across the entire estate

We are also working on a project to replace
ndmdual peces of office equipment in

each of the offices in our homes wath one
mutifunchonal device which will perform a
number of tasks This will encourage the use
of pnnting inblack and white, as opposed to
colour, and double-sided pnnting saving both
energy and reducing paper usage

Waste Management

Energy Consumption
Waste Management 1s important for the Group
CO, tonnes and we are making progress in our gfforts to
produced Targetfor | Ma@nage our waste more effectvely
Source of Enargy 2008/2009 200972010
Bectncty 76720 7a002 | Absolute Figures
Natural Gas 82 345 80 787 Target
oi 5610 5470 2006/  200W 2008/ 2009/
LPG 119 1166 | Type 2007 2008 2009 2010
Towal 145871 142225 | ofWaste Tonnas Tonnes Tonnas Tonnes
Per bed equivatent figure 3584 374 | Lanol 13313 10543 5079 4750
Racyding - - 1,579 2300
Reducing the Group's energy consumption, Chrucal 12562 13677 11384 11000
while maintaining a consistert service for our
residents, continues to be a major focus for Per Bed Equwvalent Figures
emaronmental miatives
Target
Cunng 2008/2009, the Group installed 1,000 2006/ 2007 2008/ 2009/
boller management controls m 480 of our ;Wv‘:as‘e T Tﬁ Tmz?g o9
homes These controls ensure a movre efficient Condii 013
usage of energy without impacting output 039 028 014
Overall, the Group estmates that we have Recyeling N - 004 100
Chracal 047 0a7 029 025

reduced our energy usage by 7 2% dunng
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Chinical waste s a particutar challenge and
the Group ensures all sites are managed

In ine with statutory requirements We are
keen to idenbfy an economically viable
means to reduce our chimical waste without
compromising the quality of service we ofter
In 2009/2010, the Group will assess a new
disposal system for clinical pads to decide

If this 18 a viable opportunity for the Group
as a whole

The Group continues to recycle used cooking
oll and to recycle waste from our offices We
have also been working with our suppliers to
reduce and manage the disposal of packaging
associated with delivenes

Water

Dunng 2008/2008, the Group wnitiated several
projects to improve our water management
We have centralised all of cur water billing

to allow an overall review of our usage and
ensure, In the deregulating market, that we
are paying the correct tanfis

A pilot study of water usage In seven of
our homes in Scotland was commussioned
In three of these sites the Group identified
potental savings

In 2009/2010, the Group will undertake further
analysis of our water usage in the South of
England This will cover such factors as tanffs,
consumption, associated energy costs and
water conservation The information gained
from these projects wall inform the basis of the
Groups water management polcy in the future

New Builds

This year we have continued our development
programme Most of the ighly energy efficient
properties we have built are now registerad
and trading We will continue to monstor energy
usage at these homes and once they are at
mature occupancy levels we will be able to
confirmn ther energy performance against our
wider portfolio We will use this information to
inform future upgrades of the estate

Suppliers

Southern Cross works closely with supphiers
to ensure we obtan products and services
at a competibve pnce, balanced with good
service The Group asks that its supphers
share our commitment to envircnmental
best practice and take measures to improve
therr environmental impact We review the
environmental polcies of our key supphers
annually Inretumn, Southemn Cross commits
to honour our agreed terms of business
with them

We continue to implement our eProcurernent
system (e-HIPO) with our high volume suppliers
and will begin implementation of 8-HIPO with
our food suppliers in January 2010

We are also working with our key suppliers

io reduce our impact on our local neighbours
by minimising the number of delivenes to our
homes Where practical the Group uses local
suppliers for the prowsion of milk, fresh meat
and vegetables This not only supports the
local communities in which we operate, but
ensures the highest standard of fresh produce
1s always avallable to our residents

Priorities for the Year Ahead

Finally, our commutment for 2009/10 1s to
target those 1ssues and projects that will add
value, particularty those that can prowide clear
benefits to our stakeholders

The Group asks that
its suppliers share
our commitment to
environmental best
practice and take
measures to improve
their environmental
impact.
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1. Ray Miles (65)

Non-Executive Director and Chairman

Ray Miles became a Non-Executve Director
of the Company in June 2006 and served

as the Senior Independent Director unbl he
was appointed Chairman on 1 January 2008
Mr Miles has spent most of his career in the
shipping industry From 1988 until December
2005, he was Chief Executive Officer of

CP Ships Lmited He was alse the Senior
Independent Oirector of Steimar Shipping
Lirnited from 2004 to 2005 Mr Miles 1s Deputy
Charman of International Personal Finance
PLC wtuch, in Juty 2007, demerged from
Prowdent Financial PLC and he joined the
advisory board of Stena ABin 2006 Heisa
Trustee of Country Holidays for Inner City Kids

2. Jamile Buchan (50)

Chief Executive

Jame Buchan was appointed as an Executive
Cirector of the Company on 1 January 2009
Between 2002 and May 2008, Mr Buchan,
backed by a Malaysian private fund, led the
successful turnarcund and subsequent sale of
the ExCel. Exhibition and Conference Centre in
London Pnor to that, Mr Buchan held leading
roles in hospitality at Whitbread, in customer
semvice and brand development at Centnca,

In logistics at Ocean Group, and, for 14 years,
retal service station operations In Esso, which
he joned as a graduate tranee in 1981

3. Richard Midmer (55)

Group Fiance Director

Richard Midmer joined the Comparny as Group
Finance Director on 1 July 2008 He previousty
worked in the oll and gas sector as Finance
Director of British-Bormeo Ol & Gas Ple He
jomed NHP plc, a quoted care home company,
as Group Finance Director in Novernber 2000,
where he worked until its acquisiion by private
equtty in February 2005 He 1s a Non-Executive
Director of Rugby Estates nvestment Trust plc

4. Xamma Foulkes (59)

Group Operations Director

Kamma Foulkes was appointed as an
Executive Drrector of the Company on

3 July 2008 A registered nurse, Kamma

has worked within the residential and nursing
care sector since the early 1990s She was
an Operations Director for Southern Cross
Heatthcare from 1998-2003 in October
2003, she joined Highfield Care Lirmted in the
postion of Managing Director She returmed
to Southern Cross in that role in March 2005,
when the Highfield Group was acquired by
Southern Cross Ms Foulkes became Group
Operations Director in early 2007

5. Christopher Fisher (56)

Senior Independent Non-Executive Director
Chnstopher Fisher joined the Board in June
2006 and became the Sentor Independent
Non-Executive Director n January 2008

He 15 a partner in Penfida, a firm providing
independent financial adwvice to pension fund
trustees, and 1s also President of the Council
of Reading University and a Trustee of the
Impenal War Museum He spent most of his
career at Lazard, the investment bank, where
he was a Managing Director, and has also
served as Vice Charman, Corporate Finance,
at KPMG, and as a Non-Executive Director
of Kelda/Yorkshire Water

6. Baroness Morgan of Huyten (50)

Non-Executive Director

Baroness Morgan of Huyton became a Non-
Executive Director of the Company in June
2006 A former teacher, Baroness Morgan
worked as a senior aide to the Briish Pnme
Miruster from 1997 to 2005 In 2001, she was
made a peer and served as a Minister in the
Cabinet Office From 2001 to 2005, she was
Dwrector of Government Relations, Downing
Street, worlkong closely with the Pnme Minister
Baroness Morgan is now working as an
adwiser {0 a children's chanty, serang on

the board of the Olympic Delivery Authority,
a member of the adwisory board of Lioyds
Pharmacy Limited and 1s a Non-Executive
Director of Carphone Warehouse PLC

7. Nancy Hollendoner (54)

Non-Executve Director

Nancy Hollendoner joined the Board in
January 2008 Ms Hollendoner 1s a sentor
adwiser on the healthcare market to Hawkpoint
Partrers Limited She previously worked

as an equities analyst speciaksing in the
healthcare market and was employed by UBS
Investment Bank between 1996 and 2002

Ms Hollendoner served as a Non-Executive
Director of NHP plc between 2003 and 2005

Company Secretary

Willam MclLeish was appointed as Company
Secretary on 25 May 2006 and 1S a chartered
accountant On 1 August 2007, he was
elected an associate of the Institute of
Chartered Secretanes and Administrators

Gommittees

Audit Committes

Nancy Hollendoner {Chairman}
Baroness Morgan of Huyton
Chnstopher Fisher

Nomination Committee

Ray Miles {Chairman}
Chnistopher Fisher

Nancy Hellendoner
Baroness Morgan of Huyton
Jamie Buchan

Remunerahon Committee
Christopher Fisher (Chasrman}
Baroness Morgan of Huyton
Nancy Hollendoner

Ray Miles

Quality Assurance Committee
Baroness Morgan of Huyton
{Chaiman)

Nancy Hollendoner

Karnma Foulkes

Notes
Phifip Scoit resigned as an Exacutive Director on ‘
31 Decermber 2007

Graharm Sizer resigned as an Executive Director on
29 Febiuary 2008

Jason Lock was appointed as an Executive Director on
1 March 2008 and resigned on 29 June 2008

John Murphy resigned as an Executive Director on
30 September 2008

Wilharm Coban resigned as an Executive Director on
8 October 2008
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1. Mark Cash (50)

Regtonal Director — South

Mark Cash joned the Group in September
2009 From 2004 to 2009 he was UK
Operations Director for Sunnse Senior Living
Ltd, overseeing its organic growth in the
premium private pay assisted Imng and care
home sector Pnor to that, he held a vanety
of management rofes within ExxonMobil,
which he joined as a graduate tranee in 1981
Until 2004 he led Exxon's company owned
UK and Ireland service station network

2. Pam Finnis (40)

Regronal Director - Central

Pam Finris was appointed as a Regional
Director in September 2009 She has 26 years
expenence within the independent care sector
having cormmenced work as a part-time care
assistant She s a qualfied nurse, and worked
previously with Ashbourne Healthcare and
Highfisld Care before joining Southern Cross
In 2004

3. Michael Macintosh (35)

Regqional Director -

Scotland and Northern Ireland

Michaet MacIntosh joined the Group In
March 2009 as Managing Director of the
Scottish Division, and subsequently joined the
Executive Committee Mr Macintosh joined
from Four Seasons Heaith Care as Director
of Public Private Partnerships  Previously,
he has worked for Barchester Healthcare,
Westminster Heatth Care, the NHS and
Highlands and Islands Enterpnse

4, Janette Malham (47)

Director, New Honzons Programme

A registered nurse, Janette Malham has
worked within the residentia and nursing
care sector since the earty 1980's She was
previously a Regienal Manager with Quality
Care Homes Ltd, then Operations Director
with Tamans Plc In March 2003 she joined
Highfield Care Limited as Managing Director
and continued in that role until Highfield was
acquired by Southem Cross Ms Malham
was appointed Group Operations Director
{North} In March 2007 On 1 October 2009
she became Director of our New Honzons
‘change’ programme

5. David Smith (35)

Group Financial Controller

Dawvid Srrith joined the Group as Group
Finance Manager in March 2006 and was
appointed Group Financial Controller n
March 2008 He previousty spent 10 years
at PwC worlang in vanous roles inciuding
secondments to Riyadh, Saud) Arabia and
the United States

6. Phil Whitaker (47)

Regional Director — North

Pnor to his appomntment to the Executive
Committee Phil Whitaker was responsible for
Southern Crass’ North Eastern dnasion having

joned the Group in June 2007 Mr Whitaker has

over 15 years expenence in the independert
heafth and social care sector and has
premously held senior positions within BUPA
and Takare PLC Pror to this he was a service
manager at the Department of Employment

7. Patricia Williamson (56)

Group Human Resources Director

Patncia Willamson was appointed as Group
HR Director on 1 July 2009 Patncia previously
worked at Trader Media Group, part of the
Guardian Media Group, as Group HR Director

Ms Willamson has considerable expenence in

leading and delivenng business transformation
gained across banking and services industries
She has held many senior positions including
Chief Operating Officer for Barclays Asset &
Sales Finance
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Directors’ Report

The Direclors present thewr report and the audited financial statermenis for the 52-week penod ended 27 September 2009

Activities of the Group
The Group's prncipal actvity is the operation of care homes for the elderty It Is also involved In the development of new homes and the prowision of
specialist services for people with physical and/or leaming disabilites The principal actmty of the Company is a holding company

A detailed review of the Group’s actmiies, development of its business and future plans is prowided in the Chief Executive’s report and in the financral
review

Results and Dividends
The consolidated income statoment, showing the results for the penod, 1s set out on page 50 A detaled review of the Group's results 15 provided in
the linancial review

The Directors recommend that no final dwvidend {2008 £Mil) be paid The Company did not pay an intenm dividend dunng the year {2008 3 75p per
share totaling €7 tm) The Directors anticipate working towards a dvdend cover of 3x adiusted EPS, commencing in 2010

Directors
The names of the Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of signing of the financial statements together with the brographical

details of the current Directors are gven on page 31

The heneficial interests of Directors in the shares of the Company, details of service contracts and remuneration are shown in the report of the
Remuneration Committee on pages 42 to 48

Employment

The Group seeks to recrurt, develop and employ throughout the organisation suitably qualified, capable and expenenced peaple, rraspective of
age, race, religion or sexual orientation Employee involvement in the business is encouraged The Group communicates with its employees through
the use of the Group’s intranet and its regular newsletter and obtams employee feedback through employee surveys and formal focus groups Full
and fair consideration is given to applications for employment from disabled persons, having regard to ther particular apttudes and abiities Efforts
are made to continue the employment of those who become disabled during their employment Retraning of newly disabled employess is provided
where appropriate and fair consideration 1s given to ail employees in terms of their career development and promotion prospects

Supplier Payment Policy

It 1s Group pelicy to pay supplers in accordance with agreed terms and conditions, provided that suppliers also comply with all reevant terms and
conditions At 27 September 2009 the Group's supplier payment penod was 42 days (2008 46 days) The Company 1s a holding company and does
not have trade suppliers

Financial instruments
Information on the Group's financial nsk management obyactives, pokcies and on the exposure of the Group to relevant nisks in respect of financial
instruments is set out In note 22 to the consolidated hnancial statements

Key Performance Indicators
The key periormance indicators (KPIs) that are regularly used by the Group to momtor progress against its strategy are shown below and discussed
in the Highlights sectton and the finance review on page 16 of the report

KPI Dascription

Qualty Outcome The number of homes Judged to be etther good or excellent expressed as a percentage of total homes
Average occupancy The average occupancy of avalable beds expressed as a percentage

Average weekly fee The average weelly fee achieved per occupled bed

Home EBITDAR before central costs Home EBITDAR (Earmings before interest, tax, depreciation, amortisation, rent and loss on disposal

of property, plant and equpment and subsidiary undertakings and impasment of property assets
held for resale) before central costs

Adjusted EBITDA EBITDA (Eamings before interest, tax, depreciation, amortisation, loss on disposal of property. plant
and equipment and substdiary undertakings and mparment of freehold assets held for resale) after
adding back the charge for future minimum rental increases

EBITDAR margin Home EBITDAR before central costs expressed as a percentage of revenue
Rent cover Home EBITDAR before ceniral costs dwded by the cash rent cost

Principal Risks and Uncertainties
Southern Cross, like all businesses, faces a number of operating nsks and uncertamnties

There are a number of nsks that could impact the Group's long-term performance and steps are taken to understand and evaluate these in order to
achiave our objective of creating long-term, sustainable returns for shareholders
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The Group has a nsk management process in place which s designed to identify, manage and mitigate business nsk Regutar reporting
of these nsks and the monitonng of actions and controls 1s conducted by the Audit Commuttee, which reports its findings to the Board
This process Is descnbad in the corporate governance section

The most fundamental nsks faced by the Group are

falure to comply with regulation, possibly leading in extreme casas to the revocation of a care home's regstration,

generating severe negative publicity were a senous incident to occur at one of the Group's care homes,

budgeted occupancy levels are not achieved with negative etfects on profit,

average weekly fees do not nsa, al least n ine with costs, putting profit margins under pressure,

faillure to meet bank covenants,

falure to attract and retain nursing and other qualified statf, adversely impacting admissions, and,

falure to attract suttable finance could impact on growth and profitability If curient conditiens in the banking market continue for a prolonged
penod of years, a reduction in avaltable finance at sensible margins could restrict capital expenditure and vvestment in acquisiions

Takeover Directive

The Company has one class of share capital, ordinary shares There are no spectal control nghts in relation to the Company's shares The rules
governing the appointment and replacement of Board members and changes to the Articles of Association accord with usual English company
Jaw provisions The Board has power to purchase its own shares and 15 seeking renewal of that power at the forthcoming AGM within the lirmits
set out In the notice of that mesting Thare are no significant agresments to which the Company 1s party, which take effact, alter or terminate in the
event of change of control of the Company Thare are no agreements providing for compensation for Directors or employees on change of controt

Events After the Balance Sheet Date
Events which happened after the balance sheat date are set out (in note 33 to the financial statements

Substantial Shareholdings
At 16 November 2009, the Company had been notified of the following interests which exceed 3% of the Gompany’s 1ssued share capital

%
Legal & General Group PLC 26,289,790 140
Deutsche Bank AG 17,454,198 93
Artermis Investment Management 9,623,299 51
Lloyds Banking Group PLC 9,325,487 49
J P Morgan Assset Management 8,840,518 47
Fortis Investment Managemant SA 7.019,998 37 |
ING Bank NV 6,310,483 34
Standard Life Investments Ltd 6,289,756 33
Cradit Suisse Sec (Europe} Lid 6,221,178 33

Chantable and Political Donations
Dunng the period the Group made donations to chanties totaling £156,300 {2008 £45,522) Ne political donations were made Further information
on the Group's chantable donations i1s disciosed in the corporate social responsibility report on page 27

Directors’ Indemnities

The Company maintans kability insurance for its Directors and Officers Following shareholder approval of its Articles of Associabion (as amended
on 16 February 2009) the Company has also provided an indemnity for its Directors and the Secretary, which is a qualfying third party indemnity
provision for the purposes of the Companies Act 2006

Annual General Meeting .
The notice convening the Annual General Meeting of the Company together wath explanatory resolutions 1s included in a separate document sent
to shareholders

Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities in Respect of the Annual Report, the Directors’ Remuneration Report and the

Frnancial Statements

The Drrectors are responsible for prepanng the Annual Report, the Directors' Remuneration Report and the financial statements in accordance with
apphcable law and regulations

Comparny law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that taw the Drrectors have elecied to prepare

the group and parent company financial statements in accordance with Inlernational Financial Reporting Standards {IFRSs) as adopted by the

European Union Under company law the Drectors must not approve the financial statements unless thay are satisfied that they give a true and

farr view of the state of affaws of the Group and the Company and of the profit or toss of the Group for that pened In preparing these financial

statements the Directors are required to

= gelect suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,

* make judgements and accounting estmates that are reasonable and prudent,

» state whether applicabls IFRSs as adopted by the European Union have been followed, subject to any matenal departures disclosed and
explained in the financial statements, and

« prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropnate to presume that the Company will continue in business
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Directors’ Report continued

The Drectors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and exptan the Company’s transactions and
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and the Group and enable them to ensure that the financial
statements and the Directors’ Remuneration Report comply with the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the group financral statements, Article 4
of the IAS Regulation They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps
for the prevention and detection of fraud and other iregularities

The Directors are responsible for the mantenance and integnty of the Company’s website Legislation in the United Kingdom goveming the
preparation and dissermnation of financial statements may differ from legistation in other junsdictions

Each of the Directors, whose names and functions are listed in the Directors and Gificers section confirm that, to the best of ther knowledge

» 1ihe group financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU, gwve a true and fair view of the assets,
labihties, financial position and loss of the Group, and

+ the Directors Report together with the Chief Executive's Report and Financial Review mclude a farr review of the development and performance
of the business and the position of the Group, together with a descnption of the principal nsks and uncertainties that 1t faces

Disclosure of information to Auditors

Each person who 15 a Director at the date of approval of this report confirms that

+ 50 far as the Diractor 1s aware, there 1s no relevant audit information of which the Company's auditors are unaware, and

» he has taken all the steps that he ought to have taken as a Director In order to make himself aware of any relevant audit information and to
establish that the Company's auditors are aware of that information

This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance with the prowisions of 418 of the Companies Act 2006

By order of th
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Corporate Governance

Southern Cross 1s committed to achweving the highest standards of corporate governance possible The Board's Code of Ethics, which s subscnbed
to by all Directors, sets the tone for corporate behaviour The principles of corporate governance set out in the Combined Code on Comporate
Governance 1ssued by the Financial Reporting Standards Council in Jung 2008 {'the Combined Code’) are fully supported by the Board

This statement descnbes how the prnciples of the Combined Code have been applied to the Group in the current financial year

The Board

The Board currently compnses three Non-Executive and three Executive Directors, in addition to the Non-Executive Chaimman Dunng the pencd
8 October until 31 December 2008, the Charman assumed executive responsibility pending the appointment of a Chief Executive on 1 January
2009 Biographical detalls of the current Directors are given on page 31

The roles of the Chawrman and Chief Executive are clearly defined, approved by the Board and separate The Charman's primary respensibility 1s
for leading the Board and ensunng #is effectiveness The Chief Executive is respansible for the exectitive management of the Group's operations
and day-to-day busimess actvities

Tha Board of Southern Cross Healthcare Group PLC 1s collectively responsible for the success of the Group

Its role 1s to

* provide entrepreneunal leadership of the Group within a framework of prudent and effective controls which enables nisk to be assessed and
managed,

« set the Group's strategic aims, and to ensure that the necessary financial and human resources are in place for the Group to meet 4s objectves,

= rgview annually the processes in place for monitoring and evatuating nsk and the effectiveness of the Group's system of internat control, nsk
management and operational effectiveness, keeping in mind the importance of the Group's reputation and public Image,

* ensure that appropnate operating budgsts and longer term plans are in place and monitor managernent’s parformance against these,

* set the Group's values and standards and ensure that its obligations to its shareholders and cther stakeholders are understood and met,
including reporting to sharehclders on the Board's stewardship,

« @stablish a culture, based on Integnty, openness, trust and robust and constructive challenge, which motivates managsment to be successiul,
and

+ ensure that the Group meets its objectives and consequently Increases shareholder value

Specific responsibilities are reserved to the Board, certain of which may be delegated in the first instance to Board Committees The policies
and procedures adopted by the Board are documented in a manual which sets out the roles and delegated authorties apphying to the Board
This manual is updatad whenever necessary

To assist the Board in the stewardship of the Group, a comprehensive set of documents, which detail financial and operational performance,
together with reports on personnel, developments, acquistions and comphance matters, are provided to the Board The Boeard has a formal
schedule of matters reserved for its approval, these matters include approval of

the annual strategic plan and budgsts,

the Group's nisk management and treasury pohcies,

major operating and caprtat expenditure proposals,

substantial contracts,

changes to the structure, size and composition of the Board, and

Group poictes including the health and safety policy

The Company Secretary I1s responsible for ensunng Board procedures are complied with The removal from office of the Company Secretary 1s
a matter reserved for the whole Board

The Board meets, formally, bi-monthly, and addional meetings are arranged as necessary to consider urgent business The Chawman also meets
with the Non-Executive Directors when no Executive Directors are present The table below summanses the total number of formal Board, Audit
Committee, Nominaton Commuttee, Remuneration Cornmittee and Quaity Assurance Committee meetings held dunng the year and the attendance
by each Director at those mestings

Board Audit  Nomunaton Remuneration Qualty
Total number of meetings 6 4 4 6 2
Attendance at meetings
Ray Miles 6 - 4 5] -
Jamie Buchan (apponted 1 January 2009) 5 - 1 s -
Richard Midmer 6 4 - 1* -
Kamma Foulkes 8 3 - 1" 2
Baroness Morgan of Huyton 6 4 4 6 2
Chnstopher Fisher 6 4 4 6 -
Naney Hollendoner 6 4 4 6 2

John Murphy (resigned 30 September 2008}
Wilkam Colvin {resigned 8 October 2008)

By rmvitation
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Corporate Governance continued

In addition to the above meetings, a number of meetings were held by telephone to deal with urgen? business which arose between the formal
meetng dates

On 30 September 2008, John Murphy resigned as Chief Operating Officer

On 8 Oclober 2008, Willam Colvin resigned as Chief Executive At that time Ray Miles temporanly became Executve Chairman until the appomtment
of the new Chief Executive, on 1 January 2008, when he reverted to his role as Non-Executve Chaiman

On 2 Cctober 2009, the Company announced that Kamma Foutkes planned to retire from the Company with effect from 31 December 2009

The induction process for new Directors 1s the responsibiity of the Charrman The process includes industry specific prasentations from third parties
and management presentatons as well as wisits to the Group's opserattons The process Is supported with a Board inducton pack which 1s designed
to provide new Directors with background documentation about the Group It contamns information on s history, operations, polictes and procedures
and detatls therr duties under the Compantes Act as well as explaining the addiional dealing and disclosure obligatons ansing from the Company's
stock exchange listing Directors can take independent adwvice on matters relating to their duties, at the expense of the Company, and have access
to the adwvice and services of the Company Secretary

The Board considers Baroness Morgan of Huyton, Chnstopher Fisher and Nancy Hollendoner to be tndependent Non-Executive Diractors In the
view of the Board they are independent of management and free from any relationship, business or otherwise, which could materally interfere with
the exercise of their ndependent judgement

One third of the Directors are subject to retirement from the Beard at the Company’s Annuat General Meeting Detalls of the retinng Directors and
of those individuals nominated for office are set out In tha Notrce calling that Meeting

Each year, the Board carnes out a formal evaluation of its own performance and of indmidual Directors The evaluation covers all aspects of

Board behaviours and processes mcluding its composition, the performance of ts committees Drirectors and Secretary and its interaction with s
stakeholders External advisers on corporate governance, Linstock Limited, facilitate the evaluations This year's evaluation process 1S underway
The resudts of the last evaluation were considered by the Board at its meeting in February The issues identified included

s defining medium-term strategy,

* bulding the management team, and

* 1mproving reporting from management to the Board

The Board considers that it has made significant progress n all these areas in the course of the year

The Non-Executiva Directors, led by tha Senior Independent Non-Executive Director, are respansibte for evaluating the perfermance of the Chatrrman
and the Executive Directors Resources are available to support Directors in addressing any identsfied training needs that anse out of perfarmance
evaluations

Conflicts of Interest

Under the Companies Act 2006, a Director must avoid a situation whare he has, or can have, a direct or inclirect interest that conflicts, or possibly
may conflict, with the Company’s interests The requirement is very broad and could apply, for example, if a Director becomes a diwector of another
company or a trustee of another organisation The Companies Act 2006 allows Directars of public companies to authonise conflicts and potential
conflicts where appropriate The Company's Articles contasn provisions which allow the Board to authonse Duectors' conflicts of interest At each
Board meeting, Directors are inwvited to

« daclare the nature and extent of ther interests {direct or indirect) N any proposed or existing transaction or arrangement with the Company; and
» update any declaration of interests which has become inaccurate or iIncomplete

Board minutes evidence any conflicts that are authorised

Committees of the Board
The Board has constituted a number of commutiees, specifically Audit, Remuneration, Nomination and Quahity Assurance Commuttees In addiion
it has recently formed an Executive Commuttee The roles and terms of reference of each committee are summansed below

Audit Committee

The Audit Committes is compnsead of the three independent Non-Executive Dwectors Nancy Hollendoner, the committee’s chairman, was previcusly
an equity analyst specilising in the healthcare market with the investment bank UBS and 15 currently @ senior adviser on the healthcare market to
Hawkpoint Partners Limited The other members of the Committee are Chnstopher Fisher and Baroness Morgan of Huyton In the view of the Board
both Nancy Hollendoner and Chnstopher Fisher bning recent and relevant financial expertise to the committes

The Committee mests formally at least four tmes a year and othermise as required The External Audrtors, Group Finance Director, Group Financial
Controller and Head of Intemal Audit are Invited to attend Audit Committes meetings At each meeting, an opportunity ts given for the Non-Executive
Directors and the External Auditors to meet in private

The Committes has clearly defined terms of reference, these are set out on the Group's website Its responsibiliies nclude assisting the Board in the
effective discharge of its duties in respect of corporate governancs, financtal reporting, nsk management, and intemal control
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The Committee is responsible for making recommendations to the Board in relation to the appoiniment, reappontment and any matters relating

to the resignation or dismissal of the External Auditors as well as the approval of fees for Externa! Auditors Consiferation i1s gven to the desirability
of rotating both the audit firm and partner A new audit partner, rom a different office of the External Auditors, was appointed last year and therefore
the Commuttee did not consider further change to be appropnate

The independence and cbiectmty of the External Audrtors 1s reviewed by the Audit Commitiee, wath specific consideration given to the level of
non-audit fees Information on non-audit fees 1s given In note 5 1o the consolidated financial statements In general, non-audit fees pad to the
External Auditors are not allowed to exceed the audit fee The Committee approves each appointment and does not consider the non-audit fees
pad to the External Auditors to have affected therr ndependence or objectivity

The Commities receves an annual independence confirmation from the External Auditors

The Board, through its Audit Committee, recerved regular reports from the Internal Audit department Deloitie LLP prowided support to the Internal
Audtt Department The work of the department was summansed in its annual report to the Committee  The Audit Committes also recerves regular
reports from the Group Risk Management Committee on the policies and processes In place to control and mtigate nsks These nisks are continually
reassessed The findings of the Internal Aucit department and the Committee’s assessment of the nsks facing the Group were used to create the
Group's 2010 internal audit plan which has been agreed by the Audit Committee The Committee will monitor progress against the plan

Qther work of the Committee included evaluating the performance and effectiveness of both the external and internal audit functons Thus year,
Lintstock Limited, a corporate advisory firm, assisted with the review of the internal audit function

The Committee also has responsibility for reviewing the Group's procedures by which emplayees may, in confidence, raise concerns about
impropnates in matters of financial reporting, matters affecting the day-to-day care of residents, or other matters, and for ensunng thesa
arrangements allow for independent investigation and appropriate follow up In particular, the Committee approved arrangements with two
axtarnal agencies for talephone 'hotlines’ that staff can use to report concerns

During the ysar the work undertaken by the Committee included the review of

« the appropriateness of accounting policies, estimates and judgements used In the financial statements,
+ the annual and half year financial reports and guarterly management statements pnor to recommending same for Board approval,
» Intarnal Audit reports and significant findings,

+ financial nsks and internal controls,

+ Director and Officar expenses and related party transactons,

+ external and internal auditor performance,

+ external and internal audit plans and the scope of audit work,

+ whistle-blowing arrangements,

* business continuty plans,

* treasury functions, and

+ the approval of audit fees and terms of angagement

Remuneration Committee
The composition and role of the Remuneration Commitiee 1s described in the remuneration report an pages 42 to 48 Full details of Directors’
remuneration and shareholdings are also given in that report

Nommation Committee

The Nomation Committee compnses Ray Miles, Chnstopher Fisher, Baroness Morgan of Huyton, Nancy Hollendoner and Jamie Buchan
{with effect from the date of lus appointment) The chairman of the Commuittee 1s Ray Milas The Committee meets formally at least twice a
year and otherwise as required

The Committee assists the Board in discharging its responsibihies relating to the composition and make up of the Board It s responsible for evaluating
the balance of skills, knowledge and expenence on the Board, identitying potential candidates to be appointed as Directors, as the need may anse, and
determining succession planning for the Chaiman and Chuef Executve Dunng the year the committee met formally, four times

External advisers were engaged by the committee to assist in the successtul selection of the new Chief Executive, who was appointed after

an exhaustive search and a ngorous process which matched aptitudes and experence to the parson specification for the role, prepared by

the Committee with assistance from its adwsers

At its meeting in Decernber 2009 the Committee recommended the reappointment, for a further three-year term, of Ray Miles, Chnstopher
Fisher and Baroness Morgan of Huyton All three were first appointed immediately pnior to the Company’s histing on the London Stock Exchange
The Commuttee’s recommendation was made after it had satisfied nself as to each Director's wiltngness to serve and ther past performance

The Committee’s terms of reference are set out on the Group's website

Southern Cross Healthcare Group PLC Annuzl Report and Accounts 2009 39




Management and Governance

Corporate Governance continued

Quality Assurance Committee

The Quality Assurance Committee assists the Board in its desire to deliver the highest possible quality of care to s residents The Quality Assurance
Commuttes’s responsibiliies include monitonng the Group's complance in relation to the gbligations imposed on 1t by statute and by the vanous
regutatory authonties, assessing the effectrveness of interna! quality reporting and of applicable intermal controls, identifying any patterns or trends
evident from its review of inspection reports recerved from regulators, monttoring staff turnover, rewewng feedback obtained from internal surveys

of residents, regulators and staff and identifying appropnate corrective actions when required

The Committee compnses Baroness Morgan of Huyton, Nancy Hollendoner and Kamma Foulkes as well as senior management and 1s chaired by
Baroness Morgan The Commities met twice this year

The Committee’s terms of reference are set out on the Group’s website

Executive Committee

The Board has recently established an Executive Committee As well as the Executive Directors, the Committes compnses Janette Matham, charged
with delivering the Group's New Honzon programme (which ts descnbed elsewhere), David Smith, Group Financial Controller, Patnicia Willamson,
Group Human Resources Director, and the four Regional Directors, namely, Phi Whitaker, Pam Finnis, Michael Macintosh and Mark Cash A new
Care Director will join the committee when appomnted

Terms of refarence for the Committee have been agreed and these are set out on the Group’s wabsite The duties of the Committee include
monitoring Group performance in all areas and directing improvements in efficiency, gquality, and profitabdity Tha Committee will alse monitor and
influence Group strategy and be responsible for business planning processes In summary, iis intended role 1s to support the strategy of the Board
and direct the day-to-day business of the Group

it 1s intended that meetings are held monthly

Internal Control and Risk Management

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group's system of internal control and risk management The system includes an ongoing process for
identfying, evaluating and managing significant nsks faced by the Group The process 1s designed to manage rather than eliminate the nsk of falure
to achieve business objectives As with any system of internal control it can only provide reasonable, but not abselute, assurance against matenal
misstatement or loss

The Board has reviewed the key nsks faced by the Group and the effectrveness of the Group's internal contrel system for the year under review and
up to the date of approval of the Annual Report and Accounts

The Group's Risk Management system 1s descnbed below

Risk Management

The Board has put in place a documented organisational structure with cleary defined and understocd roles and responsibiites Documentaed
policies and procedures, at both home and head office level, have been establshed The Board remans responsible for the Company's systern
of mternal control and for reviewing its effectiveness However, it has delegated day-to-day responsibility for nsk management to its Group Risk
Management Committee ('GRMC') The GRMC mests every three months or maore frequently if circumstances dictate

The GRMC 15 charred by the Group Finance Director and compnses representatives of the major functions of the Group, namely Finance, Treasury,
Legal, Operations, Human Resources, Estates, Health and Safety, Information Technology and Planring Each representative is known as a Risk
Champion for their own business function

The GRMC is responsible for setting Group policy and strategy for nsk management, idantifying, assessing and managing nsks facing the Group
and communicating, educating and traning employees on the nsks facing the Group

The Risk Management Policy provides the framework for managing nsk and aims to meet the requirements of good corporate governance
The management of the nsks identified in our business, in an appropnate way, Is fundamental to our approach

The following definitions are included within the policy

Risk Events that may prevent the achievernent of the strategic objectives of the Group,

Risk management The process of dentification and treatment of nsks facing the Group so that strategic objectives may be met, and
Risk assessment The systematic process of analysing nsk

Policy Objectives

Southern Cross 15 committed to effective nsk management, the objectives in respect of sk management are as folows
* to set Group policy and strategy for nsk management,

to identify threats to the achievement of the Group’s business objectives,

to assess, manage and control the Group's exposure to nsk,

to educate and train Risk Champions in nsk management,

to ensure rsk management culture is embedded within the orgamisation, and

to ansure timely commanication of nsks to both internal and external sources
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Reporting

it 1s the responsibility of the Risk Champions 1o report nisk to the Chaimian of the GRMC at each meeting of the Committee  Reports will include
findings from the self-audit tools, 1Issues wentified by Internal Audit and nsks identified as a result of specific ncidents that occur unexpectedly in
the normal course of business The GRMC will filter these as appropnate and report to the mam Board through the Audit Committee A Group Risk
Register s maintained n respect of all major risks

Internal Audit

Throughout the year, the Internal Audit Department carried out audits at the homes and also of head office functions Deloitte LLP were also
engaged to carry out audtts of head office functions The results of these audits were reported to the Audit Committee, which communicated
any significant concerns to the Board Operational Management also performed regular audits at home level which considered comphance with
regulattons and Group policies, health and safety legislation and other operational matters To help ensure compliance, the Group has a Quahty
Assurance Department that assists in training operational management on internal compliance techniques and ensures that a uniform approach

15 adopted across the Group

Management Information Systems

The Group has a comprehensive management information system for regular and timely reporting into the Board Every four weeks the financial
reporting system produces reports on the results for the year and the period to date, together with key performance indicators (companng them
against budgeted performance), working capital movements, and detailed cash flow information The rmanagement reparting system also includes
information on internal, external, regulatory and compliance audits, health and safety and other operational matters The Board reviews this
information at each of its meetings

Effectiveness of Internal Controls

An assessment 1s made of the financial, operational, comphance and nsk management controls Internal Audit assisted the Board in its review

In addition 10 its other work, Internal Audit tested the mitrgating controls identified by the GRMC in relation to the Group's key risks in order to give
assurance as to therr effectivenass Thae Committee also required Risk Champions to certify the effectiveness of the controls identified as mitigating
the nisks they are responsible for

There were no significant control faillures dunng the year

The Board confirms that & has reviewed the effectiveness of the system of iInternal controls, in accordance with the guidance ‘internal Control
Revised Guidance for Directors on the Combined Code', and 1s satisfied that the Group complies with that gudance

Investor Relations

The Board supports the view that effective commumcations with its shareholders, the 'sell side’ research anaysts and the wider investment
community 1s a cntical element of corporate governance The Chairman has overall responsibility for ensunng effectve commumcation with the
Group s shareholders and to ensure the Board develops an understanding of the views of major shareholders

The Group’s Annual and Intenm Reports are the primary method by which information 1s communicated to our shareholders In addtion there 1s

also regular dialogue with individual institutional sharsholders In accordance with the EU Transparency Directive the Group issues quarterly Interim
Management Statements, and prasentations for analysts and institutional shareholders are held after the anncuncement of intenim and preliminary
results These presentations are recorded and can be accessed via the Group's website All Non-Executive Directors are given the opportunity to
attend these meetings and receve copies of any briefings on the Group produced by analysts or brokers The Chairman and the Senior Independent
Director are avaltable 1o meet with major sharsholders at any time and a number of such meetings took place dunng the year

The Group's Annual General Meeting 1s used as an opportunity to communicate with private investors and to give all ordinary Shareholders the
opportunity to ask questions of the Directors

In an effort to communicate more readily with its Shareholders, the Group's website has been developed to ncorporate an investor relations section
A profile of the Group, statutory financial statements, all announcements and the corporate calendar are included

Going Concern
After making enquiries, the Directors have a reascnable expectation that the Group and Company have adequate resources to continue operations
for the foreseeable future For this reason the financial statements continue 1o be prepared on the going concern basis

Comphance Statement
The Board confirms that for the year under review the Company has been in complance with the provisions set out in Section 1 of the 2008
Combined Code, except that dunng the perod 29 September 2008 to B Octobar 2008, half the Board was not made up of Non-Executive Directors

By order of the Board

Wilham McLeish
Company Secretary
8 December 2009
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Remuneration Report

Introduction
The Remuneration Committee presents its annual report which 1s unaudited except for those parts which are stated as being audrted

The following principles were applied by the Committee in setting remuneration policy
Our remuneration packages should be

Competitive The Remuneration packages should be sufficiently competitive to recrunt and retain the comrect calibre of indvidual while endeavounng
to balance total reward towards performance-hnked elemeamts

Linked to Performance A significant proportion of senior management rewards are determined by the Group’s success over the medium to
long-term

Algned to Shareholders A large part of the total reward package Is to be paid in shares and 1s related 1o share price performance

Key Elements of Remuneration (Executive Directors)

Element Objactive How Much Conditions
Base salary To reflect status and responsibilites  Benchmarked to peer group None
Benefits To suppont Executives” well-being Car Allowance and insurance None
benefits
Arnnual bonus To align Executives with Up to a maximum of 100% 70% based on Group profit
business objeciives of salary performance, 30% based on
personal objectives
Pension {DC) To prowde for retirement 15% of salary None
Long-term incentives
Share options To align total reward with Current awards ara disclosed Varous, as disclosed below Pnmary
shareholder objectives below Futurg awards upto a condtion {where applicable) Is 5%
maximurn of 100% of salary will compound growth in Adjusted
be made under the approved EBITDA over vesting penod
PSP/CSOP scheme

Assessing what 1s ‘Competitive’

In order to understand the marketplace for senior executives, the Group asked its remuneration advisers to benchmark Directors’ remuneration
packages aganst those of a peer group As the peer group Is small, packages were atso benchmarked against FTSE 250 and FTSE 350 constituent
companies In ¢onsidenng the appropnate cohort for campanson purposes the Committee considered both the size and complexity of the business

Balance of Remuneration
In setting remuneration policy the Committee also considered the need to balance reward for short term performance with the objective of delivenng
shareholder value over the medium term and the Board’s desire to see sustainable improvements in results over the medwm to long-term

Other Senior Executives

The Committes also recognises that the top executives below Board level have an important influence in the Group's abibity to achieve its objectives
Accordingly the Commitiee also reviews the remuneration packages for these senicr employees to ensure that they remain competitive and that,

n relative terms, the correct balance is struck between the Board and the rest of the employees

The Committee belioves that appropnate rewards are avallable to those below board level to recognise and retan our best employees

Linking Reward to Group Performance

The Group's strategy 1s described by the Charman and by the Chief Executive in their reports on pages 2 to 13 The Board measures its progress
towards achievement of its business objectives by identifying key performance indicators (KPIs), which are detalled on page 34, setting targets for
these and monitoring therr achievement The Executive Directors bonuses are designed to reflect therr personal accountability for achievernent of

objectives withuin their area of responsibiity

Long Term Incentives

At its AGM in February 2009, shareholders approved share optton agreements for Jamie Buchan and Richard Midmer These, one-ofi, agreements
were proposad to addrass the particular circumstances faced by the Group following its refinancing in 2008 Histoncally, awards have been made
to Executive Directors under the Group's approved PSP plan

Earker this year the Group sought approval {from HMRC) for a Company Share Option Plan (CSOP) The rules of the PSP were amended to
ncarporate the approved CSOP, thereby improving the tax efficiency of the plan It 1s intended that future awards to Executive Directors will be
made under the combined approved Performance Share Plan/CSOP
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Environmental, Social and Governance issues

The Committea Is able to consider environmental, social and governance 1ssues in setting performance targsts for Executive Directors although no
direct ink between these 1ssues and Directors' remuneration has been mada to date Notwithstanding this the Commettee believes that the current
ncentive structure does not present any nsk in these areas

Share Ownership

The Group believes that the awards granted to Executive Directors help ensure considerable alignment of interest between the Directors and
Shareholders In addition 1o this, the Group Introduced a new policy duning the year under which Executive Drectors should acquire {and hold)
shares in the Company equal in value to one and a half trmes their basic salary (two times in the case of the Chief Executive} — this shareholding
to be built up over a pencd of ime not longer than five years Other Executive Committee members should acquire shares in the Company equal
n value to one times ther basic salary

The Remuneration Committes and its Rote
During the year, the Remuneration Committee compnsed four Non-Executive Crrectors {namely, Chnstopher Fisher, Baroness Morgan of Huyton,

Nancy Hollendoner and Ray Mites)

The Committee has clearly defined terms of reference, these are set out on the Group's webstite lts responsibiites include

* making recommendatiens 1o the Board on the Group's framework of remuneration for executive management,

« reviewing the ongoing appropnateness and relevance of the remuneration policy, and

« determining, on behalf of the Board, specific remuneration packages for each of the Executive Directors and the Chairman of the Board

The Committee meets formally at least twice a year and otherwise as required Dunng the year the Commitiee's work included the following items

» reviewing the competitiveness of Executive Director reward structures The Committee takes advice from Hewitt New Bridge Street (HNBS)
In particular advice was sought in relation to the share option pians for the Executive Directors,

* reviewing Executive Directors’ and Serior Executives’ salanes In this regard, the Committee received benchmarking data from HNBS The
Committes afso considered management’s ptans for pay elsewhere in the Group,

¢ determining awards under Share Option plans,

* determining awards under the Performance Share Plan,

« reviewing and amending the styte and content of the remuneration report t¢ shareholders,

* setting targets for the exacutive bonus plan and determining outcomes, and

¢ determining and agree:ng the Group’s executive shareholding policy

Remuneration Policy
The Group's overall policy on remuneration is to attract, develop, motivate and retain indwiduals at all levels, pay competitive salares and algn
ramuneration arrangements with the Group's strategy and objectives

Basic Satary and Benefits

The Committee reviews basic salary and benefits each year, taking into consideration Group financial performance, individual responsibiities, skills
and expenence Consideration is also given to the salanes and benefits paid to executives by other companies of similar size and standing The last
such review took place durng 2002 Drrectors” salares for the 2010 financral year are unchanged from this year's level

Annual Performance-related Bonus

Subject to attainment of certain performance targets {based on Adjusted EBITDA), Executive Directors are entitled to receive a bonus of up to 70%
of basic salary The Directors are also eligible to receve a further bonus equal to 30% of basic salary, subject to achievement of agreed personal
objectives

In respect of the 2009 financtal year, the committee determined that a banus of £215,000 should be paud te the Chief Executive while the bonuses
to be paid to Richard Midmer and Kamma Foulkes were £184,800 and £132,000 respectively As a percentage of salary these bonus payments
were 50%, 48% and 44% respectively

A bonus plan for the 2010 financial year has been agreed on the same basis as the 2009 plan and personal ohiectives have been set and agreed
with the Executive Directors

Performance Share Plan

The Southern Cross Healthcare Group 2006 Performance Share Plan (‘the PSP} was adopted by the Company in June 2006 Awards under
the ptan are, generally, made annually, on the basis of an allocation of notional ordinary shares — equivalent invalue to a maximum of 100% of
annual basic salary as at the award date However, If the Remuneration Committee decides that exceptional crcumstances exist in relation to
the recrutment or retention of an employee, then the maximum award will be equivalent to 200% of annual basic salary On 24 March 2009, the
Committee approved an amendment to the plan which had the effect of adding an HMRC approved section ip the plan The approved {CSOP)
section allows parallet awards to be made which can benefit from beneficial tax treatment to the extent that the Group’s share pnce at the tme
of exercise has increased by companson to the price at the date of award The gross value of awards under the amended plan i1s the same as it
would have been under the onginal plan
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Remuneration Report continued

Performance Share Plan continued

2008 Awards {(under original PSP plan)

On 17 January 2008, 3,719,808 awards were granted with an exercise pnce of £Nil A further grant of 370,970 awards with an exercise pnce of TNil
was made on 14 May 2008 The vesting conditions for these awards i1s summansed below

Vesting of awards made under the PSP takes place at the expiry of the three-year penod following the date of the grant and 1s subject to attanment
of agreed performance targets which, for the outstanding awards, will be tested at the end of the 2010 financia! year

70% of the award will vast on attzinment of a performance target based on EPS For the purposes of calculating the EPS condition, net income
15 defined as profit after taxation before deduction of future minimum rental increases, goodwill imparment, annual bonuses paid to partcipants
in the PSP, and the cost of share options charged to the Income statement under the PSP The remaining 30% will vest on attainment of the Total
Shareholder Return (TSR) performance target

In respect of the EPS performance target, 100% of relevant awards will vest if the PSP EPS for the 2010 financial year exceeds 38 28p per share
and ng awards wili vest if PSP EPS 1s below 32 97p per share, with straight-line vesting betwaen these two points

TSR 1s measured against the constituents of the FTSE 250 Index, excluding wvestment trusts  100% of this wall vest if the Company's TSR growth
1S In the upper quartie and 33% will vest If growth s at the median, with straight-ine vesting between the two ponts if the Company’s TSR growth
1s below the median, then the awards that are subject to the TSR performance target will not vest

The calculation below shows how the Group has performed against the PSP EPS measure during the year

52 weeks ended

27 Sept 2009
Per share
Earnings amount

£'m P
Loss attributable to ordinary Shareholders (22 1} (11 75)
Charge for future minimum rental increases 518 2754
Annual bonuses paid to Indviduals within the PSP 18 095
Charge 1n respect of share options {net of deferred tax of £0 1m) 02 011
Taxation smpact of the above {151) (803)
Profit for the purposes of calculating earnings per share under the PSP 166 882

2009 Awards (under new combined PSP/CSOP plan)

On 29 May 2009, options over 2,365,000 shares were granted with an exercise price of ENIl Further options over 150,000 and 130,000 shares
both with an exercise price of ENiIl were made on 1 July 2009 and 5 October 2008 respectively On like dates, parallel awards were made under
the approved section of the plan (being respectively, 732,282, 21,897 and 23,622) The exercise price for these CSOP options 13 127p, 137p and
127p respectively

A summary of the vesting conditions for these options follows

Options can be exercised under the plan at the expiry of the three-year penod following the date of the grant and are subject to attanment of agreed
performance targets which, for these awards, will be tested at the end of the 2011 financra! year

100% of the options can be exercised on attanment of a performance target based on Adjusted EBITDA Specifically the condition i1s that Adjusted
EBITDA {as defined on page 34) for the 2011 financial year requires to be £90 4m for full vesting to occur At Adjusted EBITDA of £81 4m, 10% of the
award will vest There 1s straight-line vesting between these points In terms of the approved option, the option can be exercised to the extent that
the share price on the exercise date exceeds the option pnce At the time of vesting, to the extent that there 1s a gan on the option granted under
the Approved Section, PSP options wili be forferted to the same value, thus maintaining the gross value of the award at the same lavel as it would
have been had no CSOP award been made

General

In the event of a takeover, the normal pesition s that shares would vest on a pro-rata basis, subject to application of the performance conditrons
However, the rules aflow the Remuneration Committee to increase the number of shares to such higher number as it decides, provided that such
number does not exceed the number of shares determined by reference to the performance condiions

The Remuneraton Committee considered the targsts for each award to be appropniate Targets for future awards will be considered in the context
of the Group's performance at the time of the award

The Committee intends to consider a further award under the PSP in January 2010
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Share Option Plans
At the AGM on 16 February shareholders approved Share Option Plans for both the Chief Executive and the Group Finance Director The options

were granted on 17 February 2009

The plans are simiar in design but difier in specific clauses relating to the exercise date, number of shares under option, exarcise pncaes and
performance conditions, reflecting the different tming and circumstances of each Director's appontment No payment is required for the grant
of the options  The options are not transfarable, except on death, and they are not pensionable

The Commitiee can decide to satisfy the options by the payment of a cash amount or the transfer of shares equat In value to the gan made on
the exercise of the option The Chiaf Executive's opttans will iapse on 1 January 2019 while the Group Finance Director’s options will lapse on
1 July 2018, both to the extent that they have not been exercised

In both cases the options are exercisable threa years aftar the date of appointment, other than Option 4 of the Group Finance Director's plan,
which I1s not exercisable until atter 1 January 2012

The Chief Executive's share options are subject to the following performance condrtions The options will only be exercisable prowded the share prce
I In excess of 130p at the time of axercise and adjusted EPS has grown by 5% compound between the 2008 financial year (adjusted EPS 18 60p) and
the financial year ending on 30 September 2011 This EPS performance condition also applies to Option 4 of the Finance Director's share option award
It the EPS performance condition s not satisfied, the Committee may allow up to one third of the options affected to be exercised in the period up to
31 March 2012 if it 1s their opirwon, acting fairty and reasonably, that the underlying firancial performance of the Group sausfies allowing such exercise

In the event of a takeover, to the extent that the Parformance Conditions are satisfied, the Options may be exercised within one month {or such
longer penod as the Committee may permit}

SAYE
At 1its last AGM, Shareholders approved an all employee Sharesave plan No inwvitations to participate in the plan were issued in the year under review

Amendment of Share Plans
No share plan can be amended unless shareholder approval 13 obtained, except for minor alterations to benefit the administraton of the Plan to take

account of a change In legislation or to obtan or maintain favourable tax, exchange control or regulatory treatment for Participants or any Group
Member

Pension Benefits
All current Executive Directars are entitled to money purchase bensfits equal to 15% of annual salary Bonuses and awards made under any share

plans are not pensionable

Sarvice Contracts

The Executive Directors'’ service agreements provide that the notice required to terminate theirr employment is 12 months given esther by the Director
or the Company Inthe event of termination, Directors are expected to seek to mihigate their loss and the Committes looks to apply this principle as
rigorously as possible

The Company aiso has the nght to terminate the employment of an Executive Drrector without notice or with less than 12 months' notice by making
a payment In lieu of notice equal to the base salary and contractual benefits the Executive Director would be entitled to receive dunng any un-expired
part of the notice penod

Under the current terms of the Executve Directors' service agreements, Jarmie Buchan is entitled 1o receive a basic salary of £430,000 per annum,
whilst Richard Midmer is entitled to receve a basic salary of £385,000 per annum and Kamma Foulkes 1S entitled 10 receive a basic salary of
£300,000 per annum Richard Midmer and Kamma Foulkes are also entitled to a car allowance All Executive Drectors are entitfed to ife and
healthcare insurance

John Murphy left the Group on 30 Septamber 2008 and Bill Colvin left on B October 2008 Bill Colvin did not recerve any compensation payment
in respect of the unexpired portion of his service agreement Under the terms of the compromise agreement signed with John Murphy he receved
a cash payment of £128,330 (equivalent to four months’ salary plus full car allowance}, a payment o his pension plan of £52,500, and a year's
entitfernent to health cover

On 2 October 2009, the Company announced that Kamma Foulkes was to step down from her position with the Company with effect from

31 December 2009 At that tme she will resign from the Board In compensation for the unexpired portion of her service agreement she will receve a
cash payment of £393,000 under the terms of her compromise agresment The Committee also agreed, within the rules of the PSP plan, to consider
her a ‘good leaver’ in respect of her 2008 PSP award
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Remuneration Report continued

Service Contracts contnued
A summary of the specific terms of the Executive Directors’ service agreements is included in the table below

Effective  Un-axpired Notice
Director date term penod
J Buchan 1 January 2009 Indefinte 12 months
R Midmer 1July 2008  Indefinte 12 months
K Foulkes 3July 2008  Indefinte 12 months

Outside Appointments

Executive Directors are permitted to accept or retain {pre-existing) a non-executive appointment outside the Group, subject to permission from
the Cormmittee and provided there are no conflicts of mterest Such appontments can enhance Directors’ expenence and add value to the
Group Fees for such appointments are normally retained by the indimdual Director In the 52 weeks until 27 September 2009, Jamie Buchan and
Richard Midmer retaned £22,500 and £40,000 respectively in respect of non-executive appontments Kamma Foulkes did not receive any tees
for non-executive appointments

Non-Executives

The Non-Executive Directors have letters of appointment wath the Company The terms of the letters of appomntment for the Non-Executive Directors
are subject to the provisions of the Articles  All such appointments are for an wihal term of three years from the date of the first AGM following
appointment In respect of Ray Miles, Chnistopher Fisher and Baroness Morgan of Huyton, this inmal term will expire on 30 January 2010 Following
recommendations frormn the Nomination Committee the Board resclved to re-appoint all three directors Furthermore, having retired by rotation,

Ray Miles and Nancy Hollendoner will stand for re-election at the forthcoming AGM

The Remuneration Committee makes recommendations on the level of fees payable to the Non-Executive Directors which are set by the Board as
a whole Under hus letter of appontment, the Chairman receves an annual fee of £125,000 In December 2008, the Committee approved a one-off
payment to the Chairman of £90,000 to reflect tvs addiional termporary responsibiiies in the six maonths prior to the appointment of the new Chief
Executive on 1 January 2009, apportioned between FY2008 and FY2009 The other Non-Executive Directors receve an annual fee of £45,000

In addiion, the charmen of the Audit, Remuneration and Quality Commrttees receve an annual fee of £7,500 All Non-Executve Diractors raceive
reimbursement of business expenses incurred In the proper performance of therr duties Fees for the Chairman and other Non-Executive Directors
remain at the level set at the time of the flotation in 2008

The appointment of each of the Non-Executive Directors Is terminable on one month’s notice, 1S subject to the retrement by rotation provisions in
the Articles and does not give nise to any entitlement to compensation in respect of thewr termination

Directors’ Remuneration (audited)

Compensation Total Pansgion

Salary Annual Benefits for loss emoluments contributions

or fees bonus n kind of office 2009 2008 2009 2008

£ 000 £000 £ 000 £ 000 £'000 £ 000 £'600 £000
Executive
J Buchan™ 323 215 1 - 539 - 48 -
R Midmer 385 185 15 - 585 485 58 14
K Foulkes™ 303 132 13 - 448 78 41 11
Non-Executive
R Miles™™* 170 - - - 170 152 - -
C Fisher 53 - - - 53 56 - -
Baroness Morgan of Huyton 53 - - - 53 45 - -
N Hollendoner 53 - - - 53 36 - -
Previous Directors
W Cohn**** 22 - - - 22 429 - -
J Murphy - - - 128 128 366 52 52
J Lock - - - - - 180 - 10
G Sizer - - - - - 169 - 22
P Scott - - - - ~ Q9 - -

1,362 532 29 128 2,051 2,095 199 109

Appowited 1 January 2009

The salary of K Foulkes compnses £300 000 in salary and £3 000 of pansion contnbutions taken as additional salary

The salary of R Miles compnses £125 000 i salary and £45 000 in respect of the bonus referred to above apportioned to the current financial year
* Tha salary of W Cohin compnses £9 300 in salary £12 000 n respect of holiday pay and £1 000 of pension contnbutions taken as addtional salary
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Directors’ Interests

The Directors of the Company had the following sharehcldings in the Company at each of the balance sheet dates

20089 2008
Number of Nurnber of
ordinary ordinary
shares of shares of
1p each 1p each
J Buchan* 135,579 -
R Midmer 59,173 59,173
K Foulkes 32,751 32,751
R Mies 163,837 163,837
C Fisher 70,000 50,000
Baroness Morgan of Huyton 2,202 2,222
N Hollendoner 15,919 15,819
Comparative figures are stated as at date of appointment
Share Plans (audited)
As at 27 September 2009 the nterasts of Directors In share plans are
Earest
Exercisa vasting Expary
Vested Granted Closing Pnce date date
PSP
K Foulkes - - 39,130 NIl 17/01/11 17/07/11
Share Options
R Midmer - 1,000,000 1,000,000 £084 1/07/11 1/07/18
R Midmer - 500,000 500,000 £126 1/07/11 1/07/18
R Midmer - 500,000 500,000 £168 1/07/11 1/07/18
R Midmer - 500,000 500,000 £250 1/0112 1/01/19
J Buchan - 1,800,000 1,800,000 £100 1/01/12 1/01/19
J Buchan - 600,000 600,000 £150 1/0112 1/01/19
J Buchan - B00,000 600,000 £2 00 1/0t12 1/01/19

The Company's closing share pnce on 27 September 2009 was 131p, whilst the highest and lowest, dunng the period, was 150p and 55p,

respectively

Dilution

The current intention 1s to use newty iIssued shares to satisfy the exercise of all employea awards and executive options

In accordance with ABI guidelines, the Company can issue a maximum of 10% of iis issued share capital in arolling 10 year penod to employees
under share plans An additional guideline of 5% applies to discretionary or executive plans As the major awards to Exacutive Directors wara
specifically approved by sharehalders, the Committee may not observe this guideline i future The table below shows the potential dilution if

shares were Issued to satisly all current commitments

Addiignal

Currant total dilution

Share Dilution dilution  dunng year
All share plans (maximum 10%j) 6 44% 4 26%
Discrettonary share plans {rmaximum 5%) 4 26% 4 26%
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Remuneration Report continued

TSR Chart of Southern Cross Healthcare Group PLC {% Basis)

The above chart shows the Group's relative TSR performance compared against the TSR performance of the FTSE 250 index constituents,
excluding Investment Trusts This was considered the most appropriate comparator group at the date of the awards based on the Company’s
market capitalisation

Christopher Fisher
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
: 8 December 2009
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Consolidated Finanaal Statements and Notes

Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members
of Southem Cross Healthcare Group PLC

We have audiied the Group financtal statements of Southern Cross Healthcare Group PLC lor the 52 week period ended 27 September 2009 which
compnse the consolidated income statement, the consolidaled balance sheet, the consolidated cash flow statement, the consolidated statement of
changes in shareholders' equity and the related notes The financial reporting framework that has been applied n their preparation s applicable law
and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union

Respective Responsibilities of Directors and Auditers

As explaned mare fully in the Directors' Responsibiliies Staterment set out on pages 35 to 36, the directors are responsible for the preparation of
the Group financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and farr view Our responsibility 15 to audit the Group financial statements
n accordance with apphicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and lreland) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing
Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Audrtors

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company's membars as a body in accordance with Sections 495 and 496
of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose We do not, in gving these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any other purposs or
to any other parson to whom this report 18 shown or into whose hands it may come save where exprassly agreed by our priar consent In writing

Scope of the Audit of the Financial Statements

An audit involves obtaning ewidence aboui the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to gve reasonable assurance that the
financial statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error This Includes an assessment of whether the accounting
policies are appropriate to the Group's circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosad, the reascnableness of
significant accounting esbmates made by the directors, and the overall presentation of the financial statements

Opinion on Financial Statements

In our opion the group financial statements

* give a true and farr view of the state of the Group's affars as at 27 September 2009 and of its loss and cash flows for the year then ended,
* have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, and

* have been preparad in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation

Opinion on Other Matters Prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opiron

* theinformation given in the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the Group financial statements are prepared (s consistent with the
Group financial statements, and

+ the information given in the statemant on Corporate Governance with respect to Rules 7 2 5 and 7 2 € of the Disclosure and Transparency Rules
1ssued by the Financial Services Authority 1s consistent with the financial staterments

Matters on Which we are Required to Report by Exception
Wa have nothing to report in respect of the following

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you i, 1n gur opinion

» certain disclosures of Directors' remuneration specified by law are not made, or

= we have not recewved all the information and explanations we require for our audit, or
* acorporate govarnance statemeant has not been preparad by the parent company

Under the Listing Rules we are requirad to raview

« the Directors’ statement, set out on pages 34 to 36, in relation toe going concarn and

= the part of the Corporate Governance Statement relating to the Company's complance wath the nine provisions of the June 2008 Gombined
Code specified for our review .

Other Matter
We have reported separately on the parent company financial statements of Southern Cross Healthcare Group PLC for the year ended
27 Saptemiber 2009 and on tha information in the Directors’ Remuneration Report that 1s descnbed as having been audited

L Cotio.

Randal Casson {Semor Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PrnicewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartsred Accountants and Statutory Auditors
Newcastle upon Tyne

8 Becember 2009
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Consohdated Financial Staterments and Notes

Consolidated Income Statement

For the 52 weeks ended 27 September 2009

52 woaks 52 weoks
snded andeod
27 Sept 28 Sept
2000 2008
Note £'m £m
Revenue 3 9371 8894
Home payroll costs 3 {533 7) {500 B)
Home running costs 3 112.8) {1131}
Home EBITDAR' before centrat costs 3 290.6 2757
Rent
Charge for rental amounts currently payable (187.3) (171 1)
Charge for future rimmum rental increases (51.8) (50 5)
Total rent 3 (239.1) (221 6)
Home EBITDA? before central costs 515 541
Central costs (30 8) (26 5)
Adjusted EBITDA? before charge for future minmum rental increases 725 781
Charge for future muinimum rental ncreases 21 {51 8) (50 5}
EBITDA 20.7 276
Loss on disposal of property, plant and egupment and subsidiary undertakings 4 41 9 6}
Imparrment of freehold assets held for sale 4 .0 {4 5}
Depreciation 10 (21 6} {17 6)
Amortisation 12 - (11)
Operating loss 35 (2.7 52)
Finance costs 6 79 (112
Exceptional finance costs 6 - 69
Total finance costs 6 {7 9) (18 1)
Finance income 6 o8 04
Loss before taxation {19 8) (22 9}
Taxation ({charge)/credit 7 {2.3) 49
Loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the company (22.1) (18 G}
Pence Pence
Note per share per share
Loss per share attributable to equity shareholders of the company
Basic 9 {11.75) Q57
Diluted 9 {11 75) 9 57)

All of the above actwities relate to continuing operations

1 EBITDAR represents samings before interest tax depreciation amortisation loss on disposal of property ptant and equipment and subsichary undertakings smparment of

freehold assets held for sale and rent

2 EBITDA represents sarnings before nterast 1ax depreciaton amartisation loss on disposal of property plant and equipment and subsidiary undartakings and smparmant of

freehold assets held for sale

3 Adusted EBITDA raprasants EBITDA after adding back the charge for future munsmum rentat increases
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Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes

Consolidated Balance Sheet

As at 27 September 2009
27 Sapt 28 Sept
2009 2008
Nate £'m £m
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 10 1114 1213
Goodwill 1 219.2 2185
Deferred tax assets 23 147 412
Other non-current assets 14 34 33
Total non-current assets 3487 3843
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 15 318 22
Trade recewables 16 ar7 446
Inventories 17 11 24
Property assets held for sale 13 465 361
Qther current assets 16 89 a7
Total current assets 1260 950
Total assets 3 4747 4783
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Short-term financial labilities 19 {21 5) (97 4)
Corporation tax payable (04) 88
Trade and other payables 18 {97 5) 91 2)
Total current iabilities (119 4) (197 4)
Non-current labihities
Long-term financial hablities 19 M 13)
Provisions and sumiar obligatons 20 {129) 9 4)
Deferred government grants (29) (3 4}
Future minimum rental increase accrual 21 {209 5) (187 7)
Total non-current habilities {267 0) {171 8)
Total habilities 3 (3686 4) {369 2)
Net assets 883 1101
Equity
Crdinary shares 24 19 19
Share pramium 16156 1615
Accumulated deficit {75 1) {53 3)
Total equity 883 1101
The finangeal statements on pages 50 to, re approved by the Board of Directors on 8 December 2009
23 \OW o
R Midmer
Ghief Executive Finance Director
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

For the 52 weeks ended 27 September 2009

52 woeks 52 woeks
ended ended
27 Sept 28 Sept
2009 2008
Note £'m £'m
Cash flows from operations
Cash generated from operations 25 87.5 714
Interest recenved 08 03
Interest and bank loan arrangement fees pad {131) {11 5)
Tax received/{paid) 156 {10 6}
Net cash generated from operations 90.8 4986
Cash flows from investing actvities
Purchase of subsidiary undertakings net of cash acquired 07 (55 2)
Sales of subsidiary undertakings - 1303
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (45.3) {62 0}
Receipts from the sale of property, plant, equipment and other assets 4 204 516
Net cash {used in})/generated from investing activities {25 6) 647
Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of borrowings (75 9) {250 6)
New borrowings 411 1407
Capital elernent of finance leases 27 {0.8) [(0F3)]
Didends paid 8 - {16 5)
Net cash used in financing actwities (35.6) (127 O)
Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 296 (127)
Opening cash and cash equivalents 22 14 9
Closing cash and cash equivalents 15 318 22

Note Included within the purchase of property plant and equipmant is development expanditure on new propertres totaling £18 1m (2008 £25 Om)
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity

For the 52 weeks ended 27 September 2009

Share

Shars premium  Accumutated Total

capdal account deficit equity

£m £m £'m £'m

Balance at 1 October 2007 18 1615 {18 6) 144 8
Share-based paymenis - - 02 02)
Ordinary dmvidends paid - - (16 5) {16 5)
Loss attnbutable to ordinary shareholders - - (18 0) {18 0)

Balance at 28 September 2008 19 1615 (53 3) 1101
Share-based payments (including deferred tax of £0 1m) {note 31) - - 03 03
Loss attributabie to ordinary shareholders - - 22 1} 22 1)
Balance at 27 September 2009 19 161.5 (75.1) 833
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the 52 weeks ended 27 Septernber 2009

1 General Information
Southem Cross Healthcara Group PLC (‘the Company’) and ts subsidaries {together ‘the Group') are engaged in the development and operation
of care homes for the elderly and the provision of specialist serviices for paople with physical and/or learning disabities

The Company ts a pubhic imited company incorporated and domiciled in the United Kingdom The address of its registered office 1s Southgate
House, Archer Street, Darlington, County Durham DL3 6AH

The Group prepares its financial information for the financial year ending on the nearest Sunday to 30 September of a given calendar year
The consoclidated financial staterments of the Group represents the fallowing

52 weeks ended 27 September 2009

The consohdated financial information of Southern Cross Healthcare Group PLC including

+ the consolidated financial information of Southern Cross Heatthcare Group PLC and its subsichanes for the penod from 29 September 2008
to 27 September 2009

52 weeks ended 28 September 2008

The consolidated financial information of Southern Cross Healthcare Group PLC, including

* tha consolidated financial nformation of Southern Cross Healthcare Group PLC and its subsidianes for the pened from 1 October 2007 to
28 September 2008

Tha principal subsidianes within the Group are disclosed in note 34

2 Accounting Policies
The pnncipal accounting pohcies appled in the preparation of these consclidated financial statements are set out below These policies have been
consistently applied to all the penods presented, untess otherwise stated

2 1 Basis of Preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRSs) as adopted by
the European Usnion, IFRIC interpretations and the Companes Act 2006 applicabla to Companies reporting under IFRS The consohdated financial
statements have been prepared under the histancal cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of financial mstruments at fair value

From 29 September 2008 the following standards, amendments and interpretations became effectrve and were adopted by the Group

* |AS27 Amendment - Consolidated and separate financial statements

« |AS39and IFRS7  Amendment — Reclassification of financial assets

« |FRIC13 Customer loyalty programmes

+ IFRIC14 The limit on a defined benefit asset, mmmum funding requirements and ther mteraction

The adoption of these amendments and interpretations has not had a sigruficant impact on the Group's loss for the year or equity

The following standards, amendmants and interpretations are not yet effective and have not been adopted early by the Group

*« FRS1 Rewised — First time adoption of international financial reporting standards

+ IFRS2 Amendment - Share-based payments Vesting conditions and cancellations

+ [FRS2 Amendment — Share-based payments Group cash-settied share-based payment transaction
* [FRS3 Revised — Business combmations

* |FRS8 Operating segments

* |IFRS9 Financial nstruments

s JAS1 Rewvised — Presentation of financial statemenis

« JAST Amendment — Presentation of financial statements Puttable Financial Instruments and Obligations Ansing on Ligudation
s IAS23 Amendment — Borrowing costs

o 1AS24 Amendment — Related party disclosures

¢ 1AS2Y Rewvised — Consolidation and separate financial statements

¢ 1AS32 Amendment - Presentation on classification or nghts issues

¢ IAS39 Amendment — Ehgible hedged itermns

s [FRIC9 Amendment — Embedded dervatives

* |FRIC15 Agresments for construction of real estates

* |FRIC16 Hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation

Amandments to the foliowing standards ansing from the Apnl 2009 Annual Improvermnents process IFRS2, IFRSS, IFRSS, IAS1, IAS7, IAS17, IAS18,
IAS36, IAS38, IAS39, IFRICY and IFRIC16

1AS24 Amendment is effective for the Group from 1 October 2011 IFRS1 Amendment, IFRS2 Amendment, 1AS27 and IAS32 Amendment are effective
for the Group from 1 October 2010 The other standards, amendments and revisions are effective for the Group from 28 September 2008 The adoption
of these standards, amendments and interpretations 1s not expected to have a material mpact on the Group’s profits or equity The adophions may
affect the disclosures in the Group's financial statements
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2 Accounting Policies continued

2.2 Significant Accounting Judgements, Estimates and Assumptions

In order to prepare thesa conschdated financial statements in accordance with the accounting policies below, management has used estimates
and judgements to establish the amounts at which cerlain tems are recorded Cntical accounting estimateés and judgements are those which have
the greatest impact on the consolidated financial statemeants and require the most difficult, subjective and complex judgements about matters that
are inherently uncertain and are set out below

a) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the far value of the Group's share of the net dsntifiable assets of the acquired
subsidiary at the date of acquistion Goodwill represents the goodwill for a portfolio of homes, which have been allocated to a group of cash
generating units which are spht on a segmental basis

Goodwill 1s tested annually for impatrment and carned at cost less accumulated impairment charges Testing for iImparrment requires an estimation
of the value In use of the segment to which the goodwill 1s allocated Estimating the value in use amount requrres management to make an estimate
of the expected future cash flows from the segment and to select a suitable discount rate 1o calculate the present value of those cash flows Further
details are given in note 11 Impairment losses on goodwill are not reversed

b) Property Assets Held for Sale

Property assets are freehold properties acquired through acquisiions or developed by the Group that are expscted to be sold within one year
All property assets held for resale are measured at the lower of carrying value and farr value, less costs to sel Determining the fair value of the
property assets requires valuation and estimation techniques to be used When assessing the farr value of each property, management consider
a number of factors including estimated sale price, Internal valuations and future expected yields Any imparment charges are recognised in the
Inccme stateament

c) Onercus Leases and Contracts

Provisions are made for future operating lease payments of vacant care homes for the full remaimng lease term or up to the point at which the lsase
15 expected 10 ba sublet and for amounts in respect of an onerous confract In calculating provisions for future lease payments of vacant care homes,
the Group has estimated future lease payments and other associated costs over the remaining period of the lease, and the best estimate of amounts
required to settle the contract Furthermore, a suitable discount rate {o calculate the present value of the future cash flows has been selected

d) Leases

Judgement 1s required in the intiat classiication of leases as either operating leases or finance leases Assets held under finance leases, which
transfer 1o the Group substantially all the nsks and benefits Incidental 1o ownership of the leased tem, are capitalised at inception of the lease,
with a corresponding liability being recognised for the value of the leased asset or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments
Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful economic life or the lease term

All other leases are considered to be operating leases The land and buldings elements of a lease of land and buildings are considered separately

for the purpase of lease classification, with the lease of tand classified as an operating lease Operating leases and rentals payable are charged in the
INcome statemant on a straight-line basis over the lease term Where property lease contracts contain guaranteed mimimum incremental increases

In rental payments, the total committad cost 1s deterrmined and amortised on a straight-ine basis over the lease term The charge for rentals currently
payable s the actual amount payable, in the penod by the Group for its operating leases The charge for future mimimum rental mcreases reflects the
impact of recogrising future fixed commitied rental Increases on a straight-ine basis over the lease term

Sale and leaseback transactions
When a sale and leaseback results in a finance lease, any gain on the sale 1s deferred and recognised as income over the lease term Any loss on the
sale 1s iImmedtately recognised as an mpairment loss when the sale occurs

If the leaseback 1s classified as an operating lease, any gain 1s recogrused immadiately «f the sals and leaseback terms are demonstrably at tar value

Otherwise, the sale and leaseback are accounted for as follows

= |f the sale price 1s below fair value, any profit or loss 1s recogrused immediately except that, if the loss s compensated for by futuwre lease
payments at below market price, it 13 deferred and amortised in proportion to the lease payments over the penod for which the assel 1s expected
to be used,

+ if the sale price ts above far value, the excess over far value 1s deferred and amortised over the useful Iife of the asset,

+ fthe far value of the asset 1s less than the carrying amount of the asset at the date of the transaction, the difference 1s recogmised immediately
as a loss on the sale
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

2 Accounting Policies continued

2 3 Consolidation

The consohidated financial statements incarporate the financial statements of the Company and entiies controlled by the Company (its subsidianes)
made up to 28 September 2008 and 27 September 2008 Control 1s achieved where the Company has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity sc as to obtain banafits from its acinvities The existence and effect of potential voting nghts that are currently
exarcisable or convertible are considered when assessing whether the Group controls another entity

The purchase method of accounting 1s used to account for the acquisition of subsidianes by the Group On acquisition, the assets and liabilities
and contingent habilities of a subsidiary are measured at their far values at the date of acquisiion Where the farr values of net assets acquired are
based on provisional assessments pending final determination of certam assets and labilites, provisional goodwill s recorded Intangible assels in
acguired comparies which concem resident contracts are recognised and amortised over penods of up to three years Any excess of the cost of
acquisition over the far values of the identifiable net assets acquired i1s capitalised as goodwill Goodwilis not amorlised, instead impairment tests
are undertaken annually, and any impairment 1s charged to the income statement Any deficiency of the cost of acquisiion below the fair values of
the identifiable net assets acquired (1e discount on acquisition) s credited to the mcome statement in the penod of acquisition

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of dunng ths penod are included in the consolidated income statement from the effective date of
acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropnate

2 4 Revenue Recognition
Revenue compnses the fair valus of fee ncome relating to the provision of care services, net of pnce reductions directly related to sales Fee mcome

compnises care home fees which are recognised when delivery of service 1s completed

The Group recognises revenue whan the amount of revenue can be reliably measured and 1t is probable that future ecanomic benefits will flow to
the Group

2 5 Home Payroll Costs
Home payroll costs represent payroll costs directly incurred at home level, including costs incurred in respect of the use of agency labour

2 6 Home Running Costs
Home runmng costs represent costs of items directly incurred at home level, including food and kitchen supplies, medical supplies, utlities,
maintenance and other running costs of the home

2.7 Home EBITDAR Before Central Costs
Home EBITDAR before central costs represents profitability at @ home level after taking account of home payroll and home running costs, but before
rantal charges on operating leases, central costs and depreciation on home assets

2.8 Central Costs
Central costs represent costs of head office support funchions, ncluding central payroll costs, other costs not diectly atinbutable to a home level

and certain other payroll costs

2 9 EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA

EBITDA represents earnings before interest, tax, depreciation, amortisation, loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment and subsichary
urdlertakings and impawment of freehold assets held for sale Adjusted EBITDA represents EBITDA after adding back the charge for future minimum
rental increases

The Group believes that EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA {and measures dernved theretrom including Home EBITDAR before central costs and Home
EBITDA betore central costs) facilitate operating performance compansons from penod to period and company to company by eiminating potential
differences caused by vanations in capital structures (affecting finance income and costs), tax positions, the age and book depreciation of property,
plant and equipment (atfecting relative depreciation expense) and intangible assets idenbfied (affecting amorusation expense)

2 10 Segmental Reporting

A business segment is a group of assets and operations engaged in providing products or services that are subject to nsks and retumns that are
difterent from those of other business segments A geographical segment is sengaged in providing products or services wathin a particular economic
environment that are subject to nsks and retumns that are different from those of segments operating in other economic environments

2 11 Share-based Compensation

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees 1s measured by reference to the far vaiue at the date at which they are granted and 1s
recognised as an expense over the vesting period, which ends on the date on which the relevant empioyees bacome fuily entitled to the award
Far value is determined by an external vatuer using an appropnate pncing model {n valuing equity settled transactions, no account 1S taken of
any vesung conditions, other than conditions linkad to the pnce of the shares of the Company {market conditions)

No expense 1s recognised for awards that do not ulumately vest, except for awards where vesting s conditional upon a markst condition, which are
treated as vesting respectve of whether or not the market condition 1s sausfied, prowided that all other performance conditions are satisfied

At each balance sheet date before vesting, the cumulative expense 1S calculated, representing the extent to which the vesting penod has expired and
management's best estimate of the achievement or otherwise of non-market condtions, number of equity instruments that will utimately vest or in
the case of an instrument subject to a market condition, be treated as vesting as descrnbed above The movement In cumulative expense since the
previous balance sheet date is recognised in the income statement, with a corresponding entry 1n equity
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2 Accountmg Polictes continued

2 12 Dervative Financial Instruments

The Group uses dernvative financial instruments such as interest rate caps and collars to hedge its nsks associated with intarest rate fluctuations
Such denwvative financial instruments are inthially recogrused at far value on the date on which a denvative contract s entered nto and are
subseguently measured at far value

Denvatives are carned as assets when the farr value 1s positive and as labilties when the fair value s negative Fair value movements are recognised
in the mcome statement

2 13 Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment 1s stated at histonical cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated imparment losses Cost includes the
onginal purchase price of the asset and costs attnbutable to bnnging the asset to its working condition for its intended use Borrowing costs
attnbutable to assets under construction are recognised as an expense as incurred No depreciation 1s charged on assets under construction

Depreciation i1s provided on all property, plant and equipment at rates calculated to write off the cost, less estmated residual value based on prices
prevailing at the balance sheet date, of sach asset on a straight-line basts over #s estimated useful ife as follows

* Freehold buldings — 2% per annum

+ Short leasehold property - over life of lease

+  Motor vehicles — 25% per annum

*  Fixtures and fittings — 14% per annurm

*  Computer equipment — 33%% per annum

The assets’ residual! values and useful Ives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropnate, at each balance sheet date Imparment reviews are carned out
at a cash generating unit level, except where management become aware of a specific asset that is impaired within a cash generating unit

An asset's carrying amount 1s written down immediately to its recoverable amount If the asset’s carrying amount 1s greater than its estimated
recoverable amount Gamns and losses on disposals are recogrused in the Income statement

2 14 Intangibles
Other Intangibles
Intangible assets are carned at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment charges

Anintangible asset acquired as part of a business combination 1s recognised outside of goodwill if the asset 1s separable or anses from contractuat
or other legal nghts and its farr value can be measured reliably Intangible assets have been fully amortised

2 15 Employee Benefit Costs

Stati costs comprise salaries, wages and pensians for the Group's staff as well as other staff costs The Group operates defined contribution
pension plans, which are plans under which the Group pays fixed contnbutions into a separate entity The Group has no legal or constructive
obligations o pay further contnbutions il the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service
in the current and prior periods  Contnbutions are recognised as employse benefit expenses as they fall dus

2 16 Inventories
Inventones are stated at the lower of cost and net reahsable value Cost 1s determuned using the first-in first-out (FIFO) method Where necessary,
impairment is made for obsolete, slow moving and defective stocks

2 17 Taxation Including Deferred Tax

The tax expense represents the sum of the 1ax currently payable and deferred tax The tax currently payable s based on taxable profit for the

year Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the Incoma statement because it excludes items of Income or expensa that are taxable or
deductible in other years and ¢t further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible The Group's ltability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been in force during the penod

Deferred tax 1s the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and labilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and 1s accounted for using the balance sheet bability method
Deferred tax labiities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary ditferences and deferred tax assets ara recognised to the extent that it

is probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductble temporary differences can be ulibsed Such assets and kabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference anses from goodwill or from the iniial recognition {other than in a busness combmation) of other assets and
habilities i a transaction that affects neither the tax profit nor the accounting profit

Deforred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences ansing on nvestments in subsidiangs, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the termporary difference and 1t 1s probable that the temporary difference will not reverse In the foreseeable future

The carrying amount of deterred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it 1s no tonger probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be avallable aganst which the temporary differences can be utihsed Deferred tax s calculated at the average tax rates
that are expectad to apply in the penod when the hability i1s settled or the asset 1s realised

Deferred tax I1s charged or credited in the income statement, except when it relates to tems charged or credited directly to reserves, in which
case the deferred tax s also dealt with in reserves
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

2 Accounting Policies continued
2 18 Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash and balances in accounts at no or short nohce

2.19 Finance Coats
Finance costs include interast and amortisation of loan arrangement fees Loan arrangement fees are amortised avenly using the effectve
rate method

2 20 Finance Income
Finance income 1s accrued on a time basis by reference to the pnncipal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable

2 21 Recervables

Trade recervables defined in accordance with IAS 39 are recorded initally at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
etfective interest method less provision for impaiment fer any doubtful amounts A provision for impairment of trade recevables 1s established
when there 1s enidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the onginal terms of the receivables The amount of
the provision 1s the difference between the assets’ carrying amount and the present value of future cash flows discounted at the effective interest
rate The movement in the provision 1s recognised 1n the income statement

Any other recevables are recognised at their ongmal amount iess an allowance for any doubtfut amounts An allowance 1s made when collection
of the full amount 1s no longer considerad probable

2 22 Other Payables
Other payables pnmanly comprise holday pay labilities, other taxes and interest payable, which are measured at the best estimats of the
expenditure required to settle the obligation

2 23 Government Grants

Grants from the government are racognised at their far value where there 15 a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the
Group will comply with all attached conditions Government grants relating 1o property, plant and equipment are included n non-current labilities
as deferred government grants and are credited to the Income statement on a straight-line basis over the expected ves of the related assets

2 24 Trade Payables
Trade payables are recognised initially at far value and subsequently measured at amartised cost using the effective Interest method

2 25 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at far value, net of transaction costs incurred Bormrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost,

any difference batween the proceeds {net of transaction costs) and the redemption value 15 recognised In the income staterment over the period
of the borrowings using the effective interest method

2 26 Share Capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity incremental costs directly attributable to the ssue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds

2 27 Dividend Distribution

Finat dmidend distrnibution to the Company’s Shareholders 1s recognised as a hability in the Group’s financial statements in the period in which the
dvidends are approved by the Company’s Shareholders Intenm dmdends are recogrised when paid

Financial Risk Management

2 28 Fmancial Risk Factors

The Group's actmties expose it to a vanety of financial nsks markat nsk {including cash flow interest rate nsk), lqudty nsk, and credsit nsk

The Group’s overall nsk management strategy focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potenhal adverse effects
on the Group's financial performance

Risk management 1s camed out by the Group Risk Management Commuttee under policies approved by the Board of Directors
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2 Accounting Policies continued

2 29 Market Risk

Gash Flow Interest Rate Risk

The Group’s Interest rate nsk anses from long-term borrowings which are 1ssued at vanable rates that expose the Group to cash flow interest rate nsk

The interest exposure of the Group 1s managed within the constrants of the Group's business plan and the financial covenants under its faciliies
The Group aims to reduce exposure o the effect of interest rate movements by hedging an appropriate amount of interest rate exposure The impact
of movements In interest rates 1s managed, where considered approprate, through the use of floating rate debt and interest rate caps and collars

The Group has performed calculabions to analyse its interest rate exposure taking into consideration refinancing, renewal of existing positions and
afternative financing Based on these scenanos, the Group calculates the impact on profit and loss of a defined interest rate shift The scenanos are
run only for iabilities that represent the major interest-beanng positions

The mpact an post tax profit of a 1% shift woulkd be a maximum mcrease of £0 6m (2008 £0 8m) or decrease of £0 6m (2008 £0 8m), respectively

2 30 Liquidity Risk
The policy of the Group has throughout the year been to mantain a mix of short and long-term borrowings with short-term flexibilty achieved
through overdratt and revolving credi faciities

2 31 Credit Risk

Credit nsk 1s managed on a Group basis Craedit nsk anses from cash and deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures
to residents, including outstanding recevables For banks and financtal institutions, only Institutions with a short-term credit rating, as determined by
Moody's, of P-1 are accepted

2.32 Capital Risk Management

The Group's objectives when managing caprtal are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order o provide returns for
Shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to mamntain an opttmal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital In order to maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dwidends paid to Shareholders, return capital to Shareholders, 1ssue new shares
or sell assets to reduce debt

The Group's short-term objective Is to reduce its dabt During the year the Group has continusd to pursue its policy of reducing debt by disposing
of freehold assets, making repayments of bank loans and not propasing to pay a final dividend Further information regarding the Group's financial
habities and undrawn facilites are set out in note 22 and the movement 10 net debt position 1s shown in note 27

2 33 Fair Value Estimation
Interest rate cap and collar contracts have been marked to market to produce fair value hgures

The carrying value less imparrment prowision of trade receivables and payables are assumed to approximate their fair values The fair value of long-
term borrowings approximate to tha carrying vatue reported in the batance sheet, as the majonty are vanabie rate borrowings

2 34 Operating Lease Rental Increases

The majonty of the Group's homes are subject to operating rental lease agreemeants which incorporate future increases to rental amounts currently
payable The Group's longer-term cash posiion depends upon t cantinuing to increase Adjusted EBITDA ahead of future increases to rental
amounts currently payable
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

3 Segmental Analysis

At 27 September 2009, the Group has two identifiable business segments Elderly Care and Specialist All operations of the Group are carried out
in the United Kingdom and therefore no geegraphical segmentation s disclosed Consequently, the Group has considered business segmentation

as the pnmary segmentation, with two reportable segments, Elderty Care and Specialist

Revenue, loss before taxation and total equity of the Group are wholly attnbutable to the operation of care homes and anse solely within the United

Kingdom Included below 1s segmental analysis of average occupancy and avalable beds

52-week period ended 27 September 2009

Elderly Gare  Specialist Total
Numb Numb Numb
Available beds - average
Acquisitions 370 - 370
Continuing operations 36,364 930 37,204
Segment avalable beds 36,734 930 37,664
Occupied beds
Acquisitions 178 - 178
Continuing operations 32,080 768 32,848
Segment occupled beds 32,258 768 33,026
Elderty Carea  Specialist Total
% % %
Occupancy - average
Acquisttions 481 - 481
Continuing operations ag2 826 881
Segment occupancy 878 826 877
£ £ £
Average weekly fee
Acquisitions 616 - 616
Continuing operations 532 1,097 545
Segment average weekly foe 533 1,097 546
Average occupancy for the Group's mature homes (excluding new developments, or refurbished homes that have been trading for less than
12 months) was 88 4% (2008 90 5%)
52-week period ended 28 September 2008
Eiderty Care Specialst Total
Nurnbar Number Number
Available beds - average
Acquisitions 2271 52 2,323
Continuing operations 33,316 987 34,303
Segment available beds 35,587 1,039 36,626
Occupied beds
Acquisitions 2,004 45 2,049
Continuing operations 29,877 858 30,735
Segment occupled beds 31,881 03 32,784
Elderty Care Spectalist Total
% % %
Occupancy - average
Acguisitions 882 865 882
Continuing operations 897 869 896
Segment occupancy 896 869 895
£ £ £
Average weekly fee
Acquisitions 471 1,111 485
Continuing operations 512 844 524
Segment average weekly fes 510 g52 522
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3 Segmental Analysis continued
Primary Reporting Format - Business Segments
The segment results for the 52-week penod ended 27 September 2009 are as follows

52-week period ended 27 September 2009

Elderty Care  Specialist Total
£'m £'m £'m

Revenue
Acquisitions 57 - 57
Continuing operattons 887.6 438 9314
Segment revenue B893.3 43.8 8371
Home payroll costs
Acquisitions (4.0) - (40}
Continuing operations {501.8) (27 9) (5297
Segment Home payroll costs {505 B) {279) 5337
Home running cosis
Acquisitions {0.2) - 02)
Continuing operations {108.0) (4.6) {112.6)
Segment Home running costs {108.2) {4 6) (112.8)
Home EBITDAR before central costs
Acquisitions 15 - 15
Continuing operations 2778 113 289 1
Segment Home EBITDAR before central costs 279.3 13 290 6
Home EBITDAR hefore central costs (%)
Acquisibons 263 - 263
Continuing operations 313 258 310
Segment Home EBITDAR before central caosts (%) N3 258 Nno
Total rent
Acquisitions (2.4) - (2.9)
Continuing operations (227 8) 89) (236 7)
Segment rent {230 2) 89 {239 1)
Home EBITDA before central costs
Acquisitions (09) - (09)
Continuing operations 500 24 524
Segment Home EBITDA before central costs 491 24 515
Qther expenses
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment and subsidiary undertakings {3.5) {06) {41)
Impairment of freehold assets held for sale {51) {2.6) 77
Depreciation (20 4) 12 (21 6)
Central payroll costs (21 8) (08) (22.6)
Unallocated expenses
Central costs 82
Operating loss 2.7

Durning the pencd ended 27 September 2009, the Group purchased property, plant and equipment totalling £30 2m, of which £26 6m was in respect
of the Elderly Care segment, £1 7m was in relation to the Specralist Care segment and £1 9m was unallocated Development expenditure for the
penod ended 27 Saptember 2009 was £16 7m, which was in respect of the Elderty Care segment

The analysis above includes the charge in the penod for future mirumum rental increases Excluding the impact of this charge, Home EBITDA before
central costs 1s as follows below

Elderly Care Specialist Total
£'m £'m £'m
Home EBITDA before the charge for future miimum rental increases and central costs
Acguisitions o1 - {o1)
Continuing operations 990 4.4 1034
Segment Home EBITDA before the charge for future minimum rental increases and central costs 989 4.4 103.3

Southern Cross Healthcare Group PLC Annual Report and Accounts 2009 61




Consohdated Finanaal Statements and Notes

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

3 Segmental Analysis continued
The segment results for the 52-week penod ended 28 September 2008 are as follows

52-week period ended 28 September 2008

Elderty Care Speciahst Total
£m £'m 'm

Revenue
Acquisitions 491 26 517
Continuing operations 7956 421 8377
Segment revenue B4a 7 447 8894
Home payroll costs
Acquisitions {27 5) (18 (29 3}
Continuing cperations {444 9) (26 4) {471 3
Segment Home payroll costs 472 4) {282) (500 B6)
Home running costs
Acquistions B89 0 4} (88}
Continuing operations {99 1) 52 (104 3}
Segment Home running costs {107 5) 56) (113 1}
Home EBITDAR before ceniral costs
Acquistions 132 04 136
Continuing operations 2516 105 2621
Segment Home EBITDAR before central costs 2648 109 2757
Home EBITDAR before central costs {%)
Acquisitions 269 154 263
Continuing operations 316 249 313
Segment Home EBITDAR before central costs (%) 313 24 4 310
Total rent
Acquisthons (129) 01 {1230
Continuing operations (199 4) 92 {208 6)
Segment rent (212 3) 93 (221 6)
Home EBITDA before central costs
Acquisitions 03 03 06
Continuing operations 522 13 535
Segment Home EBITDA before central costs 525 16 541
Qther expenses
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment and subsidiary undertakings {9 6) - {9 6)
Impairment of freehold assets held for sale {4 3) 02 (45)
Depreciation (16 5) (4 (178
Amortisation (n - {11
Central payroll costs (i89) ©on (186
Unallocated expenses
Central costs (69)
Operating loss 52

Duning the penod ended 28 September 2008, the Group purchased property, plant and equipment totaling £36 5m, of which £32 8m was in respect
of the Elderty Care segment, £1 5m was in relation to the Specialist Care segment and £2 2m was unallocated

Development expenditure for the penod ended 28 September 2008 was £16 1m, which was in respect of the Elderty Care segment

The analysis above includes the charge in the perrod for future mimimum rental ncreases Excluding the mpact of this charge, Home EBITDA before
central costs 15 as follows

Blderty Care Speciaist Total
£m £m £m

Home EBITDA before the charge for future murwmum rental increases and central costs.
Acquisitions 30 03 33
Continuing operations 980 33 1013
Segment Home EBITDA before the charge for future minimum rental mcreases and central costs 1010 38 1046
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3 Segmental Analysis continued
The segment assets and liabilties at 27 September 2009 are as follows

As at 27 September 2009
Elderty Care  Spaclallst Total Unallocated Total
£'m £'m £'m £'m £'m
Assets 4380 367 4747 - 4747
Liablites (331.0) (13.0) (344 0) {42.4) {386.4)

Segment assets and kabilities are reconciled to entity assets and habilities as follows

Assets  Liabilities

£'m £'m
Segment assets/habilities 4747 {344 0)
Unallocated
Current tax - (04)
Current borrowings - 0 6)
Non-current borrowings - 410)
Denvatives - {0 4)
Total 4747 (388 49)
The segment assets and labibties at 28 Septernber 2008 are as follows
As at 28 September 2008
Elderly Care Speciaist Total Unallocated Total
tm £m £'m £m £'m
Assatls 4421 a7 4792 a1 4793
Liabiities (296 7) (137) {310 4} (58 8) {369 2)

Segment assets and labikties are reconciled to entity assets and lrabilities as follows

Assels Liabdities

tm tm
Segment assetsAabilities 4792 (310 4)
Unallocated
Current tax - 8 8)
Current borrowings - 48 7
Non-current borowings - (13)
Derwatives 01 -
Tatal 4793 (369 2)

4 Sale of Subsidiary Undertakings, Property, Plant and Equipment, Other Assets and Impairment of Freehold Assets Held for Sale
Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment

Dunng the year the Group disposed of freehold assets for net cash consideration totalling £16 7m The related assets had a net book value of £16 5m,
resulting i a proftt on disposal of £0 2m Professional costs in respect of freehold asset disposals completed inthe previous year, and other provisions,
were £3 3m

On 3 September 2009, the Group completed the disposal of the business and certain assets of the Sunchoice division, for consideration of £3 7m,
and realsed a loss on disposal of £1 0m

Impairment of Freehold Assets Held for Sale

The Group has reviewed the carrying values of its freehold properties Following this review, a number of properties were found to have a far value
lower than therr carrying value As a result the carrying value of the related freeholds has been wntten down by £7 7m
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

5 Operating Loss

52 woaks 52 wooks

ended ended
27 Sept 28 Sept
2009 2008
£'m Em

The following tems have been included in arrving at operating loss
Staff costs (note 28) 548.2 5109
Operating lease rentals 2391 2216
Depreciation of property, ptant and equipment — owned assets (note 10) 21.0 171
Depreciation on assets held under finance leases (note 10} 06 05
Consumables expensed through home running costs 1.8 102
Amortisation of intangibles (note 12) - 08
Reversal of negative goodwill {(note 12) - 03

Depracration of property, plant and equpment includes £0 Smn relation to amortisation of government grants (2008 £0 4m)

Auditors’ Remuneration
Duning the year, the Group obtained the following services from therr Auditors at costs detaled below

52 waeks 52 wooks

ended ended
27 Sept 28 Sept
2000 2008
£'m Em

Feas payable to the Group's Auditor for the audst of the Group's annual financial statements
{(including the consobdated financial statements) 02 02

Faes payable to the Group's Audrtor for other services

- the auditing of financial statements of undertakings of the Group pursuant to legislation 01 01
- all other services 0t -

Other services related to fees in respect of advice an the Group's share option plan and other adwice

6 Finance Costs and Finance Income

52 weeks 52 weeks

anded ended

27 Sept 28 Sept

2009 2008

£'m £m

Interest payable on bank borrowings 60 100
Interest payable on loan notes = 02
Amortisation of loan arrangement fees 07 01
Movement on far value of financial instruments 05 02
Other finance costs 07 o7
Finance costs 79 112
Loan arrangement fees and assoctated costs - 69
Exceptional finance costs - g9
Interest recerved on tax repayment {0.6) -

Bank interest recevable (0.2) {0 4)

Finance income {0.8) (0 4)
Finance costs - net 71 177
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7 Taxation
52 weoks 52 weeks
endad endad
27 Sept 28 Sept
2000 2068
£'m £'m

Current tax
- Current penod - 106
— Pnor penod {realisation of taxable losses) (21 4) -
— Prior penod {other) (2.8) 05

Deferred tax (note 23)

— Current penod @9 (124)
- Prior penod {realisation of taxable losses} 214 B6)
-~ Pnor penod {reversal of deferred tax asset) 97 -
- Prior period (other) 07 -
Taxation charge/{credit} 23 49

The current tax prior period credst of £21 4m relates to the reahsation of losses in respect of the 52 weeks ended 28 September 2008 and
30 Septemnber 2007 as a result of prepanng subsidiary financial statements under IFRS

The deterred tax prior period charge relates to the realisation of losses, as referred to above, totaling £21 4m, and a further charge of £8 7m
in respect of losses arising as a result of prepanng subsidiary financial statements under IFRS, where the future economic benefit cannot be
measured reliably

The tax charge for the perrod 1s higher than the average standard rate of corporation tax in the United Kingdom {28%}) {2008 29%), due to the
reversal of some of the deferred tax asset

Tha tax for the peniod differs from the standard rate of corporation tax in the Unrted Kingdom as follows

52 woeks 52 woeeaks

ended ended

27 Sept 28 Sept

2008 2008

£'m tm

Loss before taxation {19 8) {22 9)

Loss before taxation multiphed by the standard rate of corporation tax in the Unsted Kingdom of 28% (2008 29%) 58) 66)
Effects of

Amounts In respect of pnor penods 6.2 -

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 0.2 03

Impairment 22 -

Loss on disposal 08 -

Rate differences - 05

Utihsation of tax fosses {04) -

Other 12) 09

Tax charge/{credit) for the period 23 @49

The tax charge 1s expected to be lower than the standard rate in future penods, as the mpact of non-deductble Intangibles and depreciation 1s
expected 1o be cutweighed by benefits

8 Dividends Paid and Proposed
The Directors declared an intenm dividend of £Nil 2008 3 75p) per ordinary share, totaling £Nil (2008 £7 imand this was paid on 20 June 2008)

The Drrectors have decwded not to recommend a final dwvidend for the year ended 27 September 2009
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

9 Loss per Ordinary Share
Loss per share I1s calculated by dwiding the loss for the penod attnbutable to ordinary equity holders of the parent, by the weighted average number
of ordinary shares outstanding dunng the penod

Diluted loss per share 1s calculated by dvding the Joss for the period attnibutable to ordinary equity holders of the parent, by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding durng the penod plus the weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be tssued on the
conversion of all the dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares

The following reilects Ihe share data used in the basic and diluted earmings per share calculations

52 wooks 52 weaks

anded ended

27 Sept 28 Sapt

2009 2008

£'m £'m

Basic weighted average number of shares {excluding treasury shares) 188,067,377 188,067,377
Dilutive potential ordinary shares

Employee share options Nil Nl

Diluted weighted average number of shares 188,067,377 188,067,377

The Group prasents exceptional tems and future mmimum rental increases on the face of the iIncome statement ltems that are constdered
exceptional, by virtue of ther size or Incidence, are disclosed in order to improve a reader’s understanding of the financial information To this
and, additionat basic and diluted earnings per share information, including loan arrangement fees written off, 15 also presented on this basis
Reconcillations of earnings and the weghted average number of ordinary shares used are set out below

52 waeks ended 52 weeks ended
27 Sept 2009 28 Sept 2008

Baslc Diluted Basic Diluted

pershara  pershare par share per share

Earnings amount amount Earnings amount amount

£'m 4 p £m P P

Loss attributable to ordinary Shareholders {22 1) {11 75) {11 75) {18 0} 9 57) Q57

Charge for future mimmum rental increases 518 27 54 27 54 505 26 85 26 85

Loan arrangement fees written off - - - 69 367 367

Taxation iImpact of above (14 5) 771 771 {16 6) (885) (8 85)
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders before charges for future

minimum rental Increases and loan arrangement fees written off
and taxation impact thereof 15.2 808 808 228 1210 1210
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10 Property, Plant and Equipment

Fixtures Short Assots
Freshold  fithngs and leasehold Motor under
properiies  equipment property vahicles constriction Total
£'m £'m £m £'m £m £m

Cost
At 1 Gctober 2007 134 684 209 35 145 1207
Addtions - 293 54 18 161 526
Acquisitions 05 03 24 01 - 33
Transfers 23 08 05 - 36) -
Disposals 72) - - {01 52 (12 5)
At 28 September 2008 90 988 292 53 218 164 1
Additions - 252 18 05 194 469
Transfers (4 4) 20 26 - (34 8) (34 6}
Disposals - 03 03 - 02) {0 B}
At 27 September 2009 46 1267 B3 5.8 6.2 175.6
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 October 2007 o2 218 16 16 - 252
Charge for the penod - 158 10 08 - 176
At 28 September 2008 02 376 28 24 - 428
Charge for the perod - 195 11 10 - 216
Disposals - 01) ()] - — {02)
At 27 September 2009 0.2 570 36 34 - 642
Net book amount
At 27 September 2009 44 687 297 24 62 1114
At 28 September 2008 ag 612 266 29 218 1213

The net book value of assets held under finance leases totalled £1 6m at 27 September 2009 (2008 £2 0m) The assets related to motor vehicles
and other fixtures and fittings

Transfers of assets under construction of £34 8m relates to development properties that have been completed during the year and transferred to
assets held for sale of £30 2m, their associated fit-out costs of £2 Om, and improvements 1o leasehold properties of £2 6m

11 Goodwill

Group £m
Cost

At 1 October 2007 2088
Acquisition of Bondcare Group 26
Acgursition of Portland Group 52
Other acquisitions 19
At 28 Septermnber 2008 2185
Other acquistions 07
At 27 September 2009 219.2

Other acquisiions represent professional costs and associated fees in respect of acquisitions completed in the previous financial year

Impairment Test for Goodwill
Goodwill 1s allocated to the Group's two business segments as shown below

27 Sept 28 Sept

2009 2008

£'m £'m

Elderty care 2040 2034
Specralist 152 151
Services relating to corporate finance and acquisitions 2192 2185
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

11 Goodwill continued

The Group conducts an annual impaimment test on the carnyng value of goodwill, based on the recoverable amount of cash gengrating units ({CGUS’)
to which goodwill has been allocated The recoverable amounts of CGUs are determined from in-house calculations The key assumptions in the
value-in-use calculations are the discount rate applied, the long-term operating margin and the long-term growth rate of net operating cash flows

In all cases, the Group preparss cash flow foracasts derved from the approved budgets and extrapolates cash flows on an estimated growth rate

of 3%, excluding inflation

The pre-tax rate used 1o discount the forecast cash flows for all CGUs 1s 9% This rate represents a pre-tax rale that reflects the market value of
money at the balance shest date and the nisks specific to the CGU The growth rate apphed does not exceed the growth rate for the industry and
country in which the Group operates

The long-term operating margin assumed for a CGU's operations is pnmanly based on past performance at home level except where management
have a strong beltef that a different profit margin can be achieved

Ag at 27 September 2009 and 28 September 2008, no imparment charge to goodwill has been raguired

It 1s believad that any reasonably foreseeable movement on assumptions will not lead to an impairment and therefore sensitivity analysis has not
been prasented

12 Other Intangible Assets
Ameortisation In the year charged to the income statement was ENii (2008 £11m)

Resident
cantracts
'm
Cost
At 1 October 2007, 28 September 2008 and 27 September 2009 49
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 Gctober 2007 41
Charge for the pencd ©8
Al 28 September 2008 and 27 September 2009 {49)
Net book amount
At 27 September 2009 -
At 28 September 2008 -
At 30 September 2007 o8

Resident contracts relate to intangible assets acquired through business combinations and represent the value of resident contracts, in place, at the
time of acquisition Other Intangible assets have bean fully amortised

13 Property Assets Held for Sale

No of

homas £m
Cost
At 1 October 2007 22 1410
Additions 16 828
Disposals 27 (183 2)
impairment - 4 5)
At 28 Saptember 2008 11 361
Transfer from assets under construction 4 302
Transfer from freehoid assets 8 44
Disposals 3 (16 §)
Impairment - 77
At 27 September 2009 20 465

Property assets held for sale consists of 20 freehold properties with a carrying value of £46 5m winch the Group expects to sell in the near future
Four of these properties have been developed by the Group, with the remaining properties being acquired through share deals Ten of the homes
are included within the Blderly Care segment and ten homes within the Specialist segment

The Group has reviewed the carmying value of properties held for sale on an indvidual property basis Followang this review, a number of properties
were found to have a far value lower than therr carrying value As a result the carmying value of the properties has been impared by £7 7m
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14 Other Non-Current Assets

27 Sept 28 Sept

2009 2008

£'m tm

Other non-current assets 34 33
Other non-current assets relate to landlord rental secunty deposits

15 Cash and Cash Equivalents

27 Sapt 28 Sept

2009 2008

£'m £m

Cash at bank and in hand s 22

As at 27 September 2009, the Group had £23 1m of cash held on short-term deposits The Group's credit nsk on cash and cash equivalents 1s
imited because the counterparties are well established banks, whose current short-term credit ratings, as dstermined by Moody's, are all P-1

16 Trade Receivables and Other Current Assets

27 Sept 28 Sept

2009 2008

£'m &m

Trade recevables 458 50 6
Less provision for impairment of recevables (8.1) 6 0)
Trade receivables - net 377 448
QOther recevables 17 32
Prepayments and accrued income 7.2 65
Other current assets 89 97

The camying value of trade recevables and other current assets is stated after a provision for impairment of recevables has been made The provision
for impaiment for trade recevables 1s calculated on an indwdual account by account assessment based on past and current credit history There 1s no
concern over the credit quality of amounts past due not impared smce the nsk 1s spread over a number of unvelated counterparties which include locat
Government The Directors consider that the carrying valug of trade recevables and other current assets approxmates to thewr tar value

Movement on the Group provision for impaiment of trade recevables is as {ollows

27 Sept 28 Sept

2008 2008

£'m £m

Opening 60 68
Prowision for receivables impairment 3.6 09
Recaivables written off duning the year as uncollectible {1 5) a7
Closing 8.1 60

Tha other classaes within trade and other recewvables do not contam impared assets

The maximum exposura to credit nsk at the reporting date s the carmying value of each class of recevable mentioned above The Group does not
hold any coliaieral as securty

Ageimng of Trade Receivables
The ageing analysis of trade racewables and the associated provision for impairment is shown below

27 Sept 2008 28 Sept 2008
Provision Prowision
Gross for Gross tor
valus impairment value  mparment
£m €'m £m £'m
Not yet dus 159 - 152 -
Past due 0-60 days 177 (02) 209 04
Past due 61-119 days 46 (035 61 (L))
Past due 120 days 76 (7 4) g4 {4 5)
458 (8 1) 506 {6 0}
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

17 Inventories

27 Sept 28 Sept

2009 2008

£'m £m

Consumables 1.1 24

The replacement cost of inventory does not differ matenally from the costs stated above There were no wrte-downs of inventory in the 52 weeks
ended 27 September 2009 or the 52 weeks ended 28 September 2008

18 Trade and Other Payables — Gurrent

27 Sept 28 Sept
2009 2008
£'m £'m
Trade payables 16 6 134
Other tax and social security payable 14.8 112
Other payables 304 305
Accruals 357 361
975 912
19 Financial Liabiiies - Borrowings

a) Short-term Borrowings
27 Sept 28 Sapt
2009 2008
£'m £m
Bank loans (secured) — net of arrangement fees totalling £0 9m (2008 £10m}) 209 96 7
Cbligations under finance leases 06 07
215 97 4

b) Long-term Borrowings
27 Sept 28 Sept
2008 2008
£'m e'm
Bank loans {secured) — net of arrangement fees totalling £0 8m {2008 £Ni) 407 -
Obligations under finance leases 10 13
a7 13

Bank Loans
The bank loans are secured by a fixed and floating charge over the assets of the Group Interest on the bank loans was charged at margins between

085% and 3 25% above LIBOR

Of the total bank loans falling due within one year, ENIl {2008 £48 0m) refates to term loans, £2 0m (2008 £35 1m) relates to short-term faciites drawn
to fund acquistions and which have been repaid since the year end, £19 8m {2008 £8 6m) relates to loans drawn fo fund ongoing developments

and £NIl (2008 £6 Om) was drawn on the revolving credit facility Since the year end the expiry date of the faciity which funds £19 8m of ongoing
developments has been extended until 30 June 2011

At 27 September 2009, the Group had the following interest rate instruments in place

a) interest rate caps which cap the interest paid on £21 0m of the Group's vanable rate debt at 4 62% plus margin and which expire in June 2011

b) Interest rate collars which mean that the Group will pay a maximum of 4 5% plus margin and minimum of 2 57% plus margin on £210m of the
Group's vanable debt and which expire m June 2011

Finance Leases

As at 27 September 2009, the Group had finance leases due in less than one year of £0 6m (2008 £0 7m), due inone to two years of £0 5m
(2008 €0 5m) and due In three to five years of £0 5m (2008 £0 8m}
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20 Provisions and Similar Obligations

Provisions

£m

At 1 October 2007 na
Utilised in the pencd (19)
At 28 September 2008 94
Additions 40
Utilsed in the penod {05)
At 27 September 2009 129

Provisions relate to amounts provided in respect of vacant properties and onercus contracts The provision relating to an onerous contract (s
expected to be settled after more than one year

Prowisions for vacant properties relatas to rents payable on leased properties acquired as part of the acquisitons of Southem Cross Bideo Lirmited
and Cannon Capital Ventures Limited and ther respective subsidiary undertakings The longest lease expiry 1s Apnl 2018 and in the opinion of the
Directors the re-letting of these properties 1s unlikety

Utiisatior in the year represents amounts paid under operating leases on related properties

21 Future Minimum Rental Increase Accrual

27 Sept 28 Sapt

2009 2008

£'m £m

Future mimimum rental increase accrual 2095 1577

The future mirimum rental increase accrual represents the cumulative difference between operating lease charges under IFRS and the amounts
actually payable up to the penod end

An analysis of the movermnent dunng the perod is given below

27 Sept 28 Sept

2009 2008

£'m £m

Opening balance 157.7 107 2
Charged 10 income statement 51.8 505
Closing balance 209.5 1577

22 Financial Instruments
Numerical financial instruments disclosures are set out below Additional disclosures are set out in the accounting policies relating to sk rmanagement

In accardance with IAS 39, ‘Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurement’, management has reviewed contracts for embedded denvatives
that are required to be separately accounted for if they do not meet certain requirements set out in the standard No such embedded denvatives
were found

Financial Instruments

The Group's financial instrumants, other than dernvatives, compnse borrowings, cash and liquid sesources and vanous items such as trade
recenvables and trade payables, that anse directly from its operations The main purpose of these financial insiruments 1s to manage the financing
of the Group's operations The Group also enters Into dernvative transactions The purpose of such transactions 1s to manage the intarast rate nsks
ansing from the Group's operations and its sources of finance

It 15, and has been throughout the penod under review, the Group's policy that no trading in financial nstruments shall be undertaken The main
nsks ansing trom the Group's financial mstruments are terest rate nsk and kquidity sk The Board reviews and agrees pokcies for managmng each
of these nsks and they are summansed below These policies remamned unchanged throughout the penods presented

Currency Risks

The Group 15 based in the Urited Kingdom, with its operations entiraly within the United Kingdom It does not hold any investment in overseas
aperations and consequenily the balance sheet 15 not exposed to movaments in currency exchange rates The Group does not have sales or
purchase transactions in currencies other than the unit’s functional currency and consequently dees not have transactional currency exposures
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

22 Financial Instruments continued
Numerical Disclosures
Interest Rate Risk

The Group has both mterest beanng assets and habdites Interest bearnng assets comprise only cash balances, which earn interest at a floating rate
of interest linked to UK Bank base rate The Group's policy and processss for managing interest rate nsk are explaned i the accounting policies

{note 2 29)

After taking into account interest rate caps and collars entered into by the Group, the interest rate profile of the Group's financial habities 1s

27 Sopt 28 Sept
2009 2008
Starling £'m £'m
Floating rate borrowings
Bank borrowings 63.3 67 7
Fixed rate liabilities
Bank barrowings - 300
Finance leases 16 20
16 320
Total borrowings 849 897
Fixed rate weighted average interest rate, excluding no mnterest-paid items (%) 814% 509%
Fixed rate weighted average interest period, excluding no interest-paid items {years) 30 o8
The floating rate financial habiites have comprnsed
* Sterling denominated bank borrowings and overdrafts that bear interest at rates between 0 85% and 3 25% above UK bank base rates
Maturity of Financial Liabilities and Undrawn Commitments
The matunty profile of the Groug's financial labiliies 1s as follows
27 Sept 28 Sapt
2008 2008
£'m ¢'m
Within one year 1234 1950
In more than one year, but less than two years 436 11
In more than two years, but less than five years 121 68
More than five years 41 61
1832 2090
Included within the above 1s £5 Om of interest (2008 £5 3m)
The Group's undrawn commitmants expiry date profile 1s as follows
27 Sept 28 Sept
2009 2008
£'m £m
Within one year - 436
In more than one year, but less than two years 345 -
345 436
Financial instruments by category
The accounting policies for financial instruments have been apphed to the line items below
2000
Deaignated
as at falr
value
through
Loans and profit
receivables and loss Total
£'m £'m £'m
Assets as per balance sheet
Cash and cash eguwvalents 31.8 - Nns
Trade recevables 377 - 77
Other current assets 17 - 17
Other non-current assets 34 - 34
746 - 746
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22 Financial Instruments continued

2009
Liabilities at
fair value
through Other
profit financial
and loss liabilities Total
£'m £'m £'m
Liabihties as per balance sheet
Short-term financial habilities — borrowings - 224 224
Long-term financial habilites ~ borrowings - 425 425
Trade and other payables - 694 694
Dervatve financial nstruments — interest rate cap and collar 04 - 04

04 1343 1347

2008
Designated
as at far
value
through
Loans and profit
recavables andloss — Toial
£m £m £m
Assets as per balance sheet
Cash and cash equivalents 22 - 22
Trade recevables 446 - 448
Other current assets 32 - 32
Other non-current assets 33 - 33
Derwative financial Instruments — interest rate cap and collar - 01 01
533 01 534
2008
Liabiities at
fair value
through Other
profit financial
and loss labiities Total
£m £m £'m
Liabihities as per balance sheet
Short-term financial labilities — borrowings - g8 4 984
Long-term financtal habthties — borrowings - 13 i3
Trade and other payables - 665 665

- 1662 1662

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of financial assets and financial habilites recorded at amortised cost in the financial statements
approximate therr far values

The interest rate cap and collar is included within accruals (note 18}

interest rate cap and collar contracts have been marked to market to produce farr value figures All other far values shown above have been
calculated by discounting cash flows at prevaling interest rates For floating rate bank loans, far values closely approximate to book values

The farr value of short-term loans and overdrafts approximate to the fair carrying value because of the short matunty of these instruments
The farr value of long-term borrowings approximate to the carnyng value reported in the balance sheet as the majonty are floating rate

Southern Cross Heatthcare Group PLG Annual Report and Accounts 2009 73




74 Southern Cross Healthcare Group PLG Annual Report and Accounts 2009

Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

23 Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is calculated in full on temporary differences under the iability method using a tax rate of 28% (2008 28%}

The movemnent on the deferred tax account 1s as shown below

27 Sept 28 Sept

2000 2008

£'m £'m

Opening balance 41.2) 25 1)
Income and expense charge/{credit) {note 7) 266 (16 0)
Tax charged directly to equity 1) -
On acquisition - 1)
Closing balance (14 7) {41 2)

Deferred tax asssts have been recognised in raspect of all tax losses and other temporary differences giving rise to deferred tax assets where it 1s
probable that these assets will be recovered Deferred tax assets of £33 3m (2008 £23 6m) were not recognised

The movements In deferred tax assets and habilities {prior to the offsetting of balances within the same junsdiction as permitted by IAS12) dunng the

period are shown below

Deferred tax assets and liabuities are only offset where there is a legally enforceable nght of offset and there 1s an intention to settle the balances net

Deferred Tax Assets

Accelerated
Cpearating tax
leases depreciation Other Total
£m £'m £m £'m
At 29 September 2008 {44 1) 20 49 {412}
income and expense credit - 59 20 {39
Tax charged directly 1o equity - - 01} 01}
Prior period adjustments 441 82 (5 4) 305
At 27 September 2009 - {16 1) 14 (147)
24 Called Up Share Capital
27 Sapt 28 Sept
2009 2008
Number Numbser
Authorised
Ordinary shares of 1p each 300,000,000 300,000,000
£'m £m
Ordinary shares of 1p each 3 3
Number Numbaer
Altotted, called up and fully paic
Ordinary shares of 1p each 188,067,377 188,067,377
£'m £m
Ordinary shares of 1p each 19 19
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25 Cash Flows from Operations
Reconcihation of operating loss before taxation to net cash flow from operating activties

27 Sept 28 Sept
2000 2008
£'m £'m
Operating loss 12.7) (52}
Adustments for
Loss on disposal of property, plant and eguipment and subsidiary undertakings 41 96
Impairment of freehold assets held for sale 77 45
Depreciation 216 176
Amortisation - 11
Share-based payments 02 02)
Changes in working capital {excluding effects of acquisitions and sale of subsidianes and other businesses)
Decrease/{increase) in inventories 0.2 {0 3)
Decrease/{increass) in trade and other recevables 60 {36)
Increase/{decrease} in payables 21 {32)
Increase in future minimum rental accrual 518 505
Government grants - 25
Decrease In provisions {05) (19)
Cash generated from operations 875 714
26 Reconciliation of Net Cash Flow to Movement in Net Debt
27 Sept 28 Sept
2009 2008
£'m £m
Net increase/({decrease) in cash for the peried 296 (13 4)
On acquistion - (21 2)
Cash outflow from decrease in debt 356 1105
65.2 759
Non-cash items
New finance leases {04) {1 5)
Rolled-up interest {04) -
Movement in net debt 64.4 744
Opening net debt (97 5) (171 9)
Closing net debt {331) 97 5}
27 Analysis of Net Debt
At 29 Sept Cash Non cash At 27 Sept
2008 flow tams 2009
£m £m £m £'m
Cash 22 296 - 38
Bank loans due within one year 97 7} 348 411 {21.8)
Finance leases due within one year on o1 - {0 6)
Bank loans due after more than one year - - 41 5) (41 5)
Finance leases due after more than ong yaar (13} 07 {04) {1.0)
997 356 {08} 64 9)
Net debt (97 5) 652 {0 8) 331)

Non-cash tems represent inception of finance leases, rolled-up interest and reclassification of loans further to the renegonation of the Group's
banking facilittes on 30 October 2009
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28 Staff Costs
52 weoks 52 weeks
ended ended
27 Sept 28 Sapt
2009 2008
£'m £m
Staff costs for the Group duning the penod
Wages and salanes 508.5 4735
Social security costs 38.9 368
Qther pension costs 0.8 06
548.2 5109
Staff costs for the Group by function
Home payroll costs - excluding agency and other staff-related costs 925.7 4911
Central payroll costs 25 198
5482 5108

Home payroll costs, as disclosed on the face of the income statement include agency and cther staff-related costs Agency and other staff related

costs totalled £8 Om and £9 5m for the penods ended 27 September 2009 and 28 September 2008 respectively

Average monthly number of people {including Executive Directors) employed

52 weeks 52 weeks
ended ended
27 Sept 28 Sept
2008 2008
Number Number

By actwty
Care and ancillary 35,222 33,818
Management and administration 1,477 1,403
36,699 35,221

Directors’ Remuneration

A detalled analysis of Directors' remuneration, including salanes, performance-related bonuses and share option schemnes 1s provided in the

remuneration report on pages 42 to 48 under the heading Dwectors’ remuneraton, which torm part of these financal statements

The total remuneration of the Directors compnses

52 weeks 52 weaks

ended endad

27 Sept 238 Sept

2009 2008

€'m £m

Aggregats emoluments 19 20
Compensation for loss of office o1 o1
Company contributions to money purchase pension schames 0.2 o1
2.2 22

Details of the highest paid Director are given in the remuneration report under the heading Directors’ remuneration (audited)

The key management of the Group are deemed 1o be the Board of Directors, who have authonty and responsibiity for planming and controlling all

significant actmities of the Group

29 Contingent Liabilities

The Group has provided guarantees to certain of the Group's landlords and holders of loan notes As at 27 September 2009, these guarantees

totalled £11 5m (2008 £10im})
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30 Financial Cemmitments
At 27 September 2009, and 28 September 2008 the Group had total commitments under non-cancellable operating leases as follows

27 Sept 28 Sent

2009 2008

£'m tm

Within one year 246.6 2394
Withan one to five years 986.4 9576
Qver five years 4,694.2 47487

59272 59457

The mayority of operating leasas provide for fixed annual increases at 2 5% or 2 75%, or annual rent increases based on the retad price index (‘RPI’},
subject to negotiated caps and floors

Financial commitments, due within one year, under non-cancellable operaling leases and analysed by nature of lease terms are included below

27 Sept 28 Sept

2009 2008

£'m £m

Annual rental Increases based on RPI subject to cap and floor arrangement 61.1 589
Fixed annual rentat increases 1428 1401
Five-yearly, fixed, rental increases 339 333
Annual rental increases based on RPI 8.8 71

246 6 2364

31 Share-based Payments
The total charge for share-based payments was £0 2m (2008 credit £0 2m), all of which relates to equity-settied transactions

2006 Performance Share Plan

The Southern Cross Healthcare Group 2006 Performance Share Plan (the ‘PSP'} was amended on 24 March 2009 by adding an HMRC-approved
section to the plan The PSP 1s available to Executive Directors and approximatety 1,000 members of management Annual grants are made under
the PSP with a value of up to 100% of an indwidual’s salary Vesting of shares I1s subject to performance conditions based on earnings per share and,
n respect of the 2008 awards, total shareholder return Further detalls of the vesting conditions are given in the remuneration report on page 44

A reconeiltaton of option movements dunng the period 1s given below

52 weoks ended 52 weaks ended
27 Sapt 2009 28 Sept 2008
Waighted Wanghted
average average
exercise exercise
Number price Number price
‘000 p 000 p
Qutstanding
Beginning of penod 5,010 Nl 1,972 NIl
Granted 2515 NIl 4,001 Nk
Lapsed (2,388) £Nil {1,053} NI
End of penod 5,139 Nl 5,010 NIl
The fair value per option granted and the assumptions used in the calculation are as follows
July May May January
Grant date 2000 2009 2008 2008
Share pnce at grant date £148 £1 30 £383 £455
Exercise price £N £Nel £Mil Nl
Number granted 150,000 2,365,000 370,970 3,719,808
Vesting penod (years) 3 3 3 3
Expected volatility n/a n/a 29 00% 29 00%
Contracted life (years) 3 3 3 3
Risk free rate n/a n/a 4 26% 4 26%
Dradend yeld n/a n/a 2 16% 2 16%
Farr value per option £1.48 £1.30 £6 986 £6 96
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31 Share-based Payments continued
January and May 2008 Awards
Options were valued using the Monte Carlo option-pncing model

Expected volatility 1s based on historical volatiity of shares in the same sector over the past four years The nsk-fres rate of return is the yield on
zero-coupon UK government bonds of a term consistant wath assumed option life

The weighted average remaining contractual Iife of options outstanding at the end of the penod was 16 0 months

No aptions were exercisable at 27 September 2009

May and July 2009 Awards

The options will become exercisable on attainment of a performance target based on Adjusted EBITDA As such, the expected volatility 1s not
applicable and the far value per option i1s the share pnce at the grant date

The weighted average remaining contractual iife of options outstanding at the end of the penod was 320 months

No options were exercisable at 27 September 2009

Share Option Plans

Share Option Plans are available to the Chief Executive and Group Finance Director The plans are sumilar m design but differ in specific clausaes,

reflecting the chfferent timing and crcumstances of each Director’s appointment Further details are given in the remuneration report on page 45

A reconciration of option movements dunng the penoed is given below

52 weeks snded 52 weeks ended
27 Sep! 2009 28 Sept 2008
Weighted Weighted
average average
exarcise axerciza
Number price Number price
000 p 000 p
Qutstanding

Beginning of period - n/a - na
Granted 5,500 136 - n/'a
End of penod 5,500 136 - n/a

The tarr value of the options granted and the assumptons used in the calculation are as follows
February
Grant date 2009
Share price at grant date £0 92
Exercise pnce (weighted average) £1 36
Number granted 5,500,000
Vesting penod (years}) 3
Expected volatility 39%
Contracted life {years) 3
Risk free rate a
Dandend yield na
Fair value per option {weighted average) £018

Options were valued using the Binomial lattice model

Expected volatity is based on histoncal volatility of shares in the same sector over the past four years The nsk-free rate of return is the yield on
zerg-coupon UK government bonds of a term consistent with assumed option Iife

The weighted average remasrang contractual life of options outstanding at the end of the penod was 250 months
No options were exercisable at 27 September 2009
32 Related Party Transactions

Except for transactions with subsidiary undertakings, there were no related party transactons during the penod ended 27 September 2008
Detaiis of pnncipal subsidiary undertakings are given in note 34
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33 Events After the Balance Sheet Date

Freehold Disposals

On 10 November 2009, the Group completed the sale and long-term leaseback of the internally developed care home at Taunton for cash
consideration of £4 8m, wiuch 1S aqual to the book value of the property The annual rent payable n respect of the property 1s £0 4m The proceeds
from the sale were used to part repay the drawings on the Group's development facility

On 13 November 2009, the Group exchanged contracts on Wookey Hole and Cathedral View, two homes which were closed following the opening
of the Group's new homa in Wells The sale of these homas completed on 20 and 23 Novemnber 2009 respecively, for cash consideration of £0 9m,
which 1s equal to the book value of the assets The proceeds will be used to further pay down the term loan facility

Sale of Subsidiary Undertakings
On 13 November 2008, the Group completed the sale of Southern Cross {Paislay} Propco Limited and freshold Interest for cash consideration of
£4 6m, realising a profit on disposal of £0 1m

On 13 November 2008, the Group completed the sale of Portishead Fundco Limited, Portishead Newco Limited and freehold interest for £7 4m,
which was equal to the book vatue

Financing

Following the above sales, the Group has reduced its borrowings under its syndicated term loan from £40 Om at the year end to £33 5m, including a

voluntary repayment of £11m The Group has also voluntaniy repaid the £1 9m of borrowings that remamned outstanding under the acquisition faciity
The Group's development facility loan, which was drawn to £19 8m at the year end, has also been reduced to £6 2m, following the disposal of two of
the developments and a voluntary repayment of £1 5m

On 25 November 2008, the Group agreed an extension to its development faciity Under the agreement, the development facilty becomes payabie
on 30 June 2011, being the same date as the Group's syndicated term loan and revohng credit facility

34 Principal Subsidiary Undertakings

The principal subsidiary undertakings as at 27 September 2009, all of which have a year end of 27 September 2009, and 100% of the ordinary
shares are owned and registered in England and Wales (unless ctherwise stated SC = registered in Scotland) and have been consolidated in the
Group financial statemants, are as follows

Care Homa Operating Companias Intermediate Holding Companies

APTA Healthcare (UK) Limited APTA Healthcare Limited

Ashbourne (Eton} Limnited Ashbourne Holdings Limited

Ashbourne Group UK Limited (SC) Ashbourne Limted

Ashbourne Homes Limsted (SC) CCSX Holdings Limsted

Exceter Health Care Group bimited CCSX bmited .
Exceter Healthcare Services Limited CCSX Ventures Limited

Southern Cross BC Opco Limited Southarn Cross (Highfield Holdeo) Limited

Southern Cross Cymru Limited Southern Cross {(SX Holdeo) Limited

Southern Cross Care Homes No 2 Limited Southern Cross Bidco Lmited

Southern Cross (Focus) Limited Southern Cross Care Homes Holdings Limited
Southem Cross Healthcare Services Limited Southemn Cross Care Homes Limied

Southern Cross Home Properties Limited Southern Cross Finance Limited

Southern Cross (LSC) Limited Southern Cross Healthcare Investments No 1 Limited
Southern Cross Opco Limited Southern Cross Healthcare Investments No 2 Limited
Trinity Care Limrted Southem Cross Healthcare Limited
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members
of Southem Cross Healthcare Group PLC (Company)

We have audited the parent company financial statements of Southern Cross Healthcare Group PLC for the 52 week period ended 27 September
2008 which compnise the Company balance sheet, the Company statement of changes in shareholders’ equity, the statement of accounting policies
and the related notes The financial reporting framework that has been applied In therr preparation 1s apphcable law and International Financial
Reporiing Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union and as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006

Respective Responsibilities of Directors and Auditors

As explained more fully in the Directors Responsibiities Statement set gut on pages 35 and 36, the diectors are responsible for the preparation of
the parent company financial statements and for being sausfied that they give a true and far view Our responsibility 1s to audit the parent company
financial statements in accordance with apphcable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us 1o
comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors

This report, Including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company's members as a body in accordance with Sections 495 to 497
of the Companies Act 2008 and for no other purpose We do not, in giving these cpinions, accept or assume responsibility for any ather purpose
or o any other persan to whom this report 1s shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agresd by our prior consent in writing

Scope of the Audit of the Financial Statements

An audit nvolves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the

financial staternents are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or errar This includes an assessment of whether the accounting
policias are appropnate to the parent company's crcumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the reasonabteness

of sigrificant accounting estimates made by the direciors, and the overall prasentation of the financial statements

Opinton on Financial Statements

In our opinion the parent company financial statements

» give a true and farr view of the state of the company's affairs as at 27 September 20089,

* have been properly prepared in accordance with [FRSs as adopted by the European Unien, and
* have bean prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

Opinion on Other Matters Prescribed by the Compantes Act 2006

In our opinion

* the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report 1o be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 20086, and

+ the information given in the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the parent company financial statements are prepared 15 consistent
with the parent company financial statements

Matters on Which we are Required to Report by Exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Compames Act 2008 requires us o report to you 1f, In our opinion

« adequate accountng records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adeguate for our audit have not been received from
hranchas not visited by us, or

= the parent company financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited are not in agresment with the
accounting records and returns, or

+ certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made, or

* we have not receved all the information and explanations we require for our audit

Other Matter
We have reported separately on the Group financial statements of Southern Cross Healthcare Group PLC for the year ended 27 September 2009

® Crsson

Randal Casson {Sentor Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
Newcastle upon Tyne

8 December 2009
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Company Balance Sheet

As at 27 September 2008
27 Sept 28 Sept |
2008 2008 |
Nota £'m £'m
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Investments 2 - -
Other recenvables — amcunts due from subsidiary undertakings 3 2324 2256
Total non-current assets 2324 2256
Total assets 232.4 2256
LIABILITIES
Current habiliies
Other payables 4 (32 (4 4)
Total current habilities {32) (4 4)
Non-current liabilities
Provisians and stmilar obligations 5 {71) {43}
Total non-current labilities {7 1) (4 3)
Total habihties {103) [tXg]
Net assets 2221 2169
Equity
Ordinary shares 6 19 19
Share premium 1615 1615
Retaned earnings 587 535
Total equity 2221 2169
The financia} statements on pages 81 to re approved by the Board of Directors on 8 December 2009 and signed on their behalf by
At NGo
J Buchan R Midmer
Chief Executive Finance Director
. y .
Company Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity
For the 52 weeks ended 27 September 2009
Share
premigm Retained Total
Share capial account eamngs equily
£m Em £m £'m

Balance at 1 October 2007 19 1615 352 1986
Profit attributable to ordinary sharehoiders - - 348 a8
QOrdinary dvidends pawd - - {16 9) {16 5)
Balance at 28 September 2008 19 1615 835 2169
Profit attnbutable to ordinary shareholders - - 52 52
Balance at 27 September 2009 19 161.5 58.7 2221
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Statement of Accounting Policies

The Company's accounting policies are the same as those set out in the statement of accounting policies of the Group financial statements, except
as notad below

Cash Flow Statement |
The Company 15 a hoiding company and does not hold any bank accounts Transactions such as dwvdend payments to Shareholders are paid by
subsidiary compantes and charged through intercompany accounts Therefore no cash flow statement has been presented

Fixed Asset Investments
Fixed asset investments are included at cost, less any provision for impawment
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Company Finanaal Statements and Notes

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the 52 weeks ended 27 September 2009

1 Income S$tatement

Southern Cross Healthcare Group PLC Company has not presentead its own income statement as permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act
2006 The profit attnbutable to ordinary shareholders for the financial pertod dealt with In the accounts of the Company 1s £6 2m (2008 £34 8m)

The audit fee in respect of the Company was £7,000 (2008 £7,000) The Company has no employees (2008 none) Directors are remunerated by

other Group companies in the current penod and prior perod

2 investments

Company

£000

At 27 Septernber 2009 and 28 September 2008

The principat subsidiary undertakings as at 27 September 2008, all of which have a year end of 27 September 2009, and 100% of the ordinary
shares are owned and registered in England and Wales (SC = registered i Scotland) unless otherwise stated and have been consolidated in the
Group financeal information, are given in note 34 of the Group financial statements

All Investments are held indirectly via the intermediate holding company, Scuthern Cross Brdco Limited, with the exception of Southern Cross
Healthcare Investments No 1 Limited and Southern Cross Healthcare investments No 2 Limited

The Directors beliave that the carrying value of the investments 1s supported by their underlying net assets

3 Other Receivables
Amounts due after more than one year

27 Sept 28 Sept
2009 2008
£'m £m
Amounts due from subsidiary undertakings 2324 2256
Amounts due from subsidiary undertakings are unsecured Interest 1s charged at a rate of 5% (2008 7%
The far value of trade and other recenvables 1s equal to the amounts shown above
4 Other Payables
27 Sept 28 Sept
2009 2008
£'m £m
Corporation tax 32 44
5 Provisions and Similar Obligations
Provisions
£m
At 29 September 2008 43
Addtions 28
At 27 September 2009 71

Provisions relate to amounis provided In respect of an onerous contract, which 1s expected to be settled In more than one year
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Company Finanaal Statements and Notes

Notes to the Financial Statements continued

6 Called Up Share Capital

27 Sept 28 Sept
2009 2008
Number Number
Authorised
Ordinary shares of 1p each 300,000,000 300,000,000
£'m £m
Ordinary shares of 1p each 3 3
Humbar Number
Allotted and fully paid
Ordinary shares of 1p sach 188,067,377 188,067,377
£'m £'m
Ordinary shares of 1p each 19 19
7 Dividends Paid and Proposed
The Directors declared an intenm dividend of £Ntl {2008 3 75p) per share, totaling ENIE {2008 £7 1m and paid on 20 June 2008}
The Directors have decided not to recommend a final dvidend for the year ended 27 September 2009 (2008 £Nil)
8 Related Party Transactions
Transactions with subsidiary undertakings for the penod ended 27 Septernber 2009
Tax ralef Dwidend Interest Amounts
raceved recaved recaved owed to
£m m £fm £'m
Subsidiary undertakings (4 5) - 113 2324
Transactions with subsidiary undertakings for the penod ended 28 Septernber 2008
Tax relwt Onadend Interest Amounts
receved recesved receved owed to
£m £m £m £m
Subsidiary undertakings - 283 151 2256
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Other Information

Three-year Record

The following table shows the most recent three-year record under IFRS

52 waeks 52 weeks 52 wegks

snded anded ended
27 Sept 28 Sept 30 Sept
2008 2008 2007
£'m £m £'m
Revenue 937.1 889 4 7319
Home payroll costs (533.7) (500 6) {409 0}
Home running costs (112.8) (113 1) 92 7)
Home EBITDAR' before central costs 290.6 2757 2302
Rent
Charge for rental amounts currently payable (187.3) {171 1) {138 9}
Charge for future minimum rental Increases {51 8) {50 5) {43 5}
Total rent (239.1) {221 B) (182 4}
Home EBITDA? before central costs 515 541 478
Central costs (30 8) {26 5) (26 0)
Cther operating iIncome - - 15
Adjusted EBITDA? before charge for future minsmum rental increases 725 781 66 8
Charge for future minimum rental increases {51 8) (50 5) 43 5)
EBITDA 207 2786 233
(Lossyprofit on disposal of property, ptant and equipment and subsidiary undertakings {4 1) 96) 08
Imparrment of freehold assets held for sale 7N (4 B) -
Depreciation (21 6) (17 6) 132
Amortisation - 11 10
Operating (loss)/profit (127) B52) 119
Finance costs (79) {112) (102)
Excepticnal finance costs - B9 -
Total finance costs 79 (181) (102
Finance Income o8 a4 13
{Loss)/profit before taxation {19 8} (22 9) 30
Taxation (charge)/credit (2.3) 49 (11)
{Loss)/profit attnbutable to ordinary shareholders {22.1) (180Q) 19

1 EBITDAR represents samings before mtarest tax depreciation amortisation and loss on disposal of property plant and equipment and subsidhary undertakings impairment of
freehold assats held for sale and rant

2 EBITDA raprasents earnings before interest tax depreciation amoriisation loss on disposal of property plant and equipment and subsidiary undertakings and impairment of
freahold assets held for sale

3  Adusted EBITDA represents EBITBA after adding back the charge for future mirumum rental increases
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Shareholder Information

2009/2010 Financial Calendar
Intenm results - 10 May 2010
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